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Corporate ‘ PUBLIC FILE
Profile

The board of directors (the “Board”), Supervisory Committee (“Supervisory Commitiee”), the
directors (the “Directors”), the supervisors (the "Supervisors”) and the senior management of
Angang Steel Company Limited (the “Company”) confirm that there is no false representation or
misieading statement contained in. or material omission from this report, and severally and jointly
warrant and undertake for the truthfulness, accuracy, and completeness of the contents of this
report. .

Zhang Xiaogang, the Company’s Chairman, and Ma Lianyong, Chief Accountant and Head of
the Planning and Finance Department (5t BIR4 85 88), confirm that the financial statements in this
report are true and complete

The Board of the Company is pleased to announce the annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2009

CORPORATE PROFILE

The Company 15 a joint stock limited company incorporated on 8 May 1997 with Anshan Iron and
Steel Group Complex (“Angang Holding”) as its sole promoter. Pursuant to the reorganisation,
Angang Holding transferred the Cold Roll Plant, Wire Rod Plant and Heavy Plate Plant to the
Company by Angang Holding. The three plants had a net asset value of RMB2,028,817,600 as
determined by the State-owned Assets Administration Bureau, and 1,319,000,000 domestic state-
owned legal person shares with a par value of RMB1 each were i1ssued to Angang Holding

On 22 July 1997, the Company issued 890,000,000 H shares at HK$1.63 per share which were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 24
July 1997. The Company subsequently issued 300,000,000 A shares at RMB3.90 per share on
16 November 1997, of which 285,505,400 shares were offered to the public and 14,494,600
shares were 1ssued 1o the employees of the Company. Trading of the 285,505,400 shares offered
and 1ssued 1o the domestic shareholders, and the 14,494,600 employees’ shares issued to the
employees of the Company commenced on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 25 December 1997
and 26 June 1998, respectively. '

On 15 March 2000, the Company issued A share convertible debentures amounting to RMB1.5
biilion in the Peop.e’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). On 14 March 2005, the Company paid the
principal and interest accrued for the A share convertible debentures upon their matunity, and
trading in and conversion of A share convertible debentures ended on the same day. As of the
date of matunity, total of 453,985,697 A shares were converted from the convertible debentures
of the Company.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

On 26 January 2006, the Company i1ssued 2,970,000,000 A shares at RMB4.23 per share to
Angang Holding as partial payment of the consideration for the acquisiton of 100% share
capital of Angang New Steel and Iron Company Limited ("ANSI”). The registration for custody
of such shares at Shenzhen Branch of China Securities Registration and Clearing Corporate
Limited completed on 23 February 2006 and they wili not be traded or transferred within 36
months starting from 23 February 2006. The total number of shares of the Company increased to
5,932,985,697 following the issue of new shares.

On 20 June 2006, 1t was approved by the annual general meeting of the Company for the year
2005 to change the Chinese name of the Company from [REHEAFROFTR 23] to &
HRGAMAE], and Chinese short name was changed to 8 ER%] from [ERI\IHAL).
The English name was changed from “Angang New Steel Company Limited” to “Angang Steel
Company Limited”, while the English short name was changed to "Ansteel” from “Angang New
Steel”. On 29 September 2006, the Company obtained its new “Business License for Enterprise
Legal Person” reflecting such change of name.

In December 2005, the Company implemented the non-tradable shares reform, pursuant to which
Angang Holding, the holder of the non-tradable shares of the Company, ofiered 2.5 A shares
and 1.5 “¥&48 JTC 1" share warrants for every 10 shares held by the registered holders of tradable
A shares on the record date for the non-tradable shares reform, and Angang Holding offered a
totel of 188,496,424 A shares and 113,097,855 “##JTC1" share warrants to other holders of A
shares. The “#R$8ITC1"share warrants expired in December 2006. A total of 110,601,666 share
warrants were exercised, as a result of which Angang Holding transferred 110,601,666 shares to
the other holders of A shares at RMB3.386 per share. The “¥&§8JTC 1" warrants which were not
exercised on the date of expiry were cancelled thereafter. Following the exercise of such warrants,
the total number of shares of the Company remained unchanged, comprising 3,989.901,.910 A
shares held by Angang Holding, 1,053,083,787 A shares held by the other A shareholders and
890,000,000 H shares held by the H shareholders.
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Profile (continued)

CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

During 2007, the Company issued rights shares on the basis of 2.2 rights shares for every 10
existing shares 10 all the shareholders of the Company From 10 October to 16 October 2007, the
Company 1ssuea 1,106,022,150 domestic rights shares to A share shareholders of the Company
at the price of RMB15.4 per share, including issuance of 228,240,496 shares to holders of shares
not subject to trading moratonium and issuance of 877,781,654 shares to holders of shares
subject to trading moratorium, Such newly issued domestic rights shares were approved to be
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 25 October 2007 From 22 October to 5 November
2007, the Company issued 195,800,000 H rights shares to H shareholders of the Company at a
price of HK$15.91 per share (equivalent to RMB15.4 per share according io the then exchange
rate). Such newly issued H nghts shares were approved to be listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 14 November 2007. Upon completion of rights issue, the total number of shares of
the Company amounted to 7,234,807,847 shares, of which 4,867,680,330 shares were held by
Angang Holding, 1,281,327,517 shares were held by other A sharehoiders and 1,085,800,000
shares were held by H shareholders

The Company’s principal activities include production and sale of steel products such as hot rolled
sheets, cold rolled sheets, galvanized steel sheets, colour coating plates, silicon steel, medium and
thick plates, wire rods, heavy section and seamless steel pipes. These products are widely used
in industries such as automobile, construction, ship-building, horne electrical appliances, railway
construction and manufacture of pipelines. The Company's products are very competitive in the
domestic and foreign markets and its equipment is of an advanced standard in the PRC.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

e of the Company

{in Chinese)
(n Enghsh)

lega Represeniaive of the Comoany

Secretary 10 the Boaid of iie Compary

Company Address

.Telephone:

Fax:

Regisiered Address of the Comp

20s:al Code:
Website:
E-mail Address.

Company’s AarLal Re

Website for Disclosure of
Information in Hong Kong:

Website for Publication of Annual
Report designated by CSRC

Stock Exchange Listings:

Abbreviations

Stock Code

PUBLIC FiLE

BERGARA «)
ANGANG STEEL COMPANY LIMITED

Zhang Xiacgang

i Qianshan Road West,

Qianshan District, Anshan City,
Liacning Province, the PRC
86-412-8417273 86-412-8419192
86-412-6727772

114021
http://www .ansteel.com.cn

ansteel@ansteel.com.cn

Secretarai office of the B

¢’ Dirag of ine Ceinpany

http:/Avww.hkex.com.kk and
http://angang.wspr com.hk

http://www .cninfo.com.cn

A shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H shares: The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
A shares: Angang Steel

H shares: Angang Steel

A shares: 000898

H shares: 0347
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PUBLIC FILE

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
Unit: RMB million
2008 2007
Before After Before After
2009 adjustment  adjustment  adjustmert  adjustment
Turnover 70,057 78,985 78,985 65,294 65,294
Profit before tax 877 3.847 3,847 10,382 10,382
Income tax 166 854 854 2,848 2,848
Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company 752 2,993 2,993 7,534 7,534
Total assets 103,126 94,826 94,826 87,381 87,381
Total liabilities 49,469 41,855 41,855 33,254 33,254
Equity atuributable to
owners of the Company 52,291 52,971 62,971 54,127 54,127
Net assets per share (RM8) 7.23 7.32 7.32 7.48 7.48
Earnings per share (basic) (RMB) 0.104 0414 0414 1121 1121
Retuin on net assets (%) 1.44 565 5.65 13.92 1392

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (“PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

1.  Key accounting data of the Group for the year:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Unit: RMB million

Items Amount
Operating profit: 789
Total profit 843
Net profit 686
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 727
Net profit less extraordinary items attributable to

shareholders of the Company: . 688
Net cash flow generated from operating activities: 4,549
Investment income: 186
Net non-operating income and expenses: 54
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents: (732)
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PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES ("PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

(continued)

1. Key accounting data of the Group for the year: (continued)

Note: Extraordinary items and amounts of the Group during the reporting period

No.

Extraordinary items Effect on profit

(RMB million)

own B ow

Government subsidies (except for government subsidies
which are closely related to the corporate business
and entitled in standard amount or quantities in
conformity with the uniform standards of the State)

attrtbutable to gains or losses for the period 15
Other non-operating income and expenses apart from

those stated above 39
Sub-total 54
Less Effect of income tax 14
Less Effect of minonity interests (after tax) 1
Tota! 39

2. Differences between the preparations under the PRC Accounting Standards

and IFRSs: .
Unit: RMB million
Attributable to shareholders
The Group of the Company
Net profit Net asset Net profit Net asset
For the For the
forthe pervious  Closing  Opening Forthe pervious  Closing  Opening
period pericd  balance  balance period period  balance  balance
Under IFRSs m 2,993 $3657 29N 5 2,993 52,291 52,97
Under PRC Accounting
Standards 686 2,981 53,798 3,108 nm 2.981 52,432 93,108
Items and total amount as adjusted under the IFRSs:
Revaluaiion of land
use rights 5 9 (a7 (176) S 5 (193] {176}
Production safety expenses 29 10 2 10
Deferred income tax assets (9 (3) 30 39 9 3) 30 39

Total adjustments

25 12 (141) (137) 25 1 (141) (137)

e\ //am
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PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (“PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")
{continued)

3. Major accounting data and financial indices of the Group for the last three

years
Unit: RMB million
Increase/
(decrease)
compared
2008 with 2007
Before Alter previous Beicre After
Items 2009 adjustment  adjustment year adjustment adjustment
(%)
Operating revenue 70,126 79616 79,616 (11.92) 65,499 65,499
Total profit 843 3,842 3,832 (78.00) 10,373 10,373

Net profit attributable

1o shareholders

of the Company 727 2,989 2,981 (75 61) 7.525 7,525
Net profit less

extraordinary items

attributable to

shareholders of

the Company 688 3,016 3,008 (77.13) 7.613 7,613
Net cash tlows from

operating actiities 4,549 11,938 11,938 (61 89) 7.906 1,906
Basic earnings per share

(RMB) 0.100 0.413 0412 (75.73) 1.120 1.120
Diluted earnings per share

(RMB) 0.100 0.413 0.412 (75.73) 1.120 1.120

Basic earnings per share
less extraord:nary

items (RMB) 0.095 0.417 0.416 (77.16) 1.133 1.133

Return on net assets 1.39 563 5.61 Decreased 13.87 13.87
(fully diluted) (%) by 422
percentage
points

Returr on net assets 1.38 557 555 Decreased 2132 2132
(weighted average) (%} by 4.17
percentage

points
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PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (“PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")
(continued)

3. Major accounting data and financial indices of the Group for the last three
years (continued)

Increase/
(decrease)
compared
2008 with 2007
Before After  previous Before After
Items 2009 adjustment adjustment year adjustment adjustment
(%)
Return on net assets less 1.31 5.68 5.66 Decreased 14.03 14.03
extraordinary items by 4.35
(fully diluted) (%) percentage
points
Return on nei assets 130 5.62 5.60 Decreased 2157 2157
less extraordinary items by 4.30
(we:ghted average) (%) percentage
points
Net cash flows per share
from operating activities
(RMB) 0.629 1.650 1650 (6188} 1.093 1093
Increase/
(decrease)
compared
with the
End of 2008 end of End of 2007
End of Before After previous Before After
Items 2009 adjustment  adjustment year adjustment adjusiment
. (%)
Total assets 100,987 92,179 92,184 9.55 86,786 86,786

Shareholders’ equity

attiibutable to

shareholders of the

Company 52,432 53,103 53,108 (1.27) 54,255 54,266
Net asset per share

attnbutable to

shareholders of the

Company {RM8) 1.25 734 734 (1.23) 1.5 75
Share capital 7,235 7,235 7.235 - 7235 7,235
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(continued)

Return on net assets

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES ("PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")

4. Return on net assets and earnings per share as calculated in accordance
with the “Regulations for Preparation and Reporting of Information
Disclosure by Listed Companies (No. 9)” issued by CSRC:

Earnings per share

(%) (RMBishare)
Weighted

Profit for the reporting period Fully diluted average Basic Diluted
Net profit attributable

to holders of ordinary shares

of the Company 1.39 1.38 0.100 0.100
Net profit less extraordinary

items attributable to holders of

ordinary shares of the Company 1.3% 1.30 0095 0.095

5.  Changes in shareholders’ equity during the reporting period

Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company

Unit: RMB million

Total
Share Gpital Surplus Special Undistributed Minority shareholders’
ftems capital reserve reserves reserves profit Sub-total interest equity
At ihe deginnirg of
the penod 138 3.4 3280 n 11,143 $3.108 - 3,108
creyse foi
the period - 87 n 35 Ry 926 1.365 2.9
Decrease ‘o
the perod - - - € 1.53¢ 1,802 - 1607
Al the erd of
tke perod 7238 31.510 3.357 50 10,280 S2.432 1,356 53.158
M
1 0 lagn
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PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (“PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS")
(continued) '

5. Changes in shareholders’ equity during the reporting period (continued)

Reasons for 1 The increase in capital reserve was due to the increase of RMB87
changes million in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.
2. The increase in surplus reserves was due to the allocation of 10%

(RMB77 million) of profit after tax to surplus reserves.

(W]

The increase in undistributed profits was due to net profits attributable
to the shareholders of the Company of RMB727 million generated in
2009; the decrease in undistributed profits was due to (1) the payment
of RMB1,519 million as annual dividends for 2008 and (ii) the allocation
of RMB77 miflion to surplus reserves.

4 The increase in special reserve was due to the provision of RMB35
million of production safety expenses and the decrease of RMB6 million
in production safety expenses incurred

5 Minority interests reached RMB1,366 million, which was attributable
to the consolidation of financial statements of Tianjin Angang Tian
Tie Cold Rolled Sheets Company Limited ("Angang Tian Tie”) into the
Company for the year.

11
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Chairman’s PUELIC FILE
Statement

kl

On behalf of the Board of Angang
Steel Company Limited, | am pleased
to present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31
December 2009 and hereby extend my
regards to all the shareholders.

12




OPERATING RESULTS FOR 2009

Based on the IFRSs. the Group recorded an annual profit attributable to the shareholders
of the Company of RMB752 million for the year ended 31 December 2009, representing a
decrease of 74.87% from the previcus year, and Its baslc welghted average earnings per
share was RMB0.104,

Based on the PRC Accounting Standards, the Group recorded a net profit attributable
to the shareholders of the Company of RMB727 milllon for the year ended 31 December
2009, representing a decrease of 75.61% from the previous year, and Its basic earnings
per share was RMB0.100.

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

As audited and confirmed by RSM China Certified Public Accountants, the Group's net profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company for the year amounted to RMB?727 million
and as at the year end of 2009, the profit avallable for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company was RMB10,280 million under the PRC Accounting Standards. The Board of
the Company recommended a cash dlvidend of RMB0.06 per share (inclusive of tax) for
2009 based on the total share capital of 7,234,807,847 shares as at 31 December 2009 in
accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of assodation of the Company.

The proposal for distribution Is subject to the conslderation and approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting for the year 2009. Subject
to the approval, the Company will, according to the above proposal for distribution of
dividend, distrlbute the final dividend to the H shareholders of the Company whose

pp on the regi of H shareholders of the Company at the Hong Kong
Registrars Limited at the dose of business of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on Tuesday,
18 May 2010. The register of the H shareholders of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 19 May 2010 to Friday, 18 June 2010 (both days inclusive), during which no
transfer of the H shares of the Company willl be registered. To be qualified for the final
dividend, all transfer of the H shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with Hong Kong Registrars Limited, the Company’s H share
reglstrar, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 May 2010,

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Detalled Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China which came into effect from t January 2008, any Chinese domestic
enterprise which pays dividend to a non-resident enterprise shareholder shall withhold
and pay enterprise Income tax at a rate of 10% for such shareholder. As a result, the
Company wlll withhold enterprise income tax for 2009 dividend pald to non-resident
enterprise shareholders (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees
or other groups and organizations) at a rate of 10% at the time of distributing such
dividend to the shareholders. The dividend after deduction of such taxation will be
RMB0.054 per share (for reference only).

=
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Chairman’s , PURBLIC FILE
Statement rontinvey

OPERATING RESULTS FOR 2009 (continued)

Distribution for the last three years

Net profit
attributable to Proportion of

shareholders the amount of
of the Amount of cash  cash dividend in
Company  Distribution plan dividend realized net profit
(AMB mullion) (RM8 mulhon)

i .
2008 2,981 | RMBO.21 per share 1,516 50.96%
2007 7,525 | RMBO.SS per share 3,979 52 88%
2006 7,003 | RMBO.58 per share 3,441 49 14%
Total 17,506 | - 8,539 51.05%

Note: Figures of the Company's realized net profit are figures adjusted n accordance with the latest
requirements under the PRC Accounting Standards

BUSINESS REVIEW

1. Efficient production and operation

During the reporting period, the Group produced 20.510,000 tonnes of iron, 20,070,000
tonnes of steel and 19,000,000 tonnes of steel products, representing an increase of
27.56%. an increase of 25 46% and an increase of 26.79%. respectively, as compared with
the previous year. Sales of steel products amounted to 18,620,000 tonnes, representing an
increase of 22.23% as compared with the previous year and realizing a 98% production to
sale ratio for steel products

14
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PUBLIC FiLE
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

2. New achievements in energy saving and emission reduction

The Group implemented 14 pollution control projects, including the sirtering flue gas
desulphurization project at the west zone of the iron smelting plant (R {8 BEE T & ) during
the year, with a total investment of RMB340 million. Meanwhile, the Group made progress
in the promotion of utilsation of new energy at Bayuquan production base, including
application of solar energy, seawater desalting and wind power generation

There was no environmental accident at or above grade lll for the year. Best-ever results
were achieved in relation to the rate of atmospheric pollutant emission, total emission of
water pollutants from factories and the utilisation rate of recyclable solid wastes.

3. Breakthroughs in scientific research innovation and new product
development

The Group successfully conducted the trial production of finished oriented silicon steel roll
(928K 58 %) through independent R&D and attained the level of bulk productron of
high-grade silicon steel. Its ship plates of high heat input welding ( X & 4% &t 18 1 # 4R ) was
the first in the country to pass the certification of shipping societies from 5 countries ( &
B AL AR . while its highest grade steel was the first of its kind in the country and a
cutting-edge product in the world, Steel used for nuclear power generation facitities (#x
W) SA-738Gr.B successfully completed the first round of wial production and A588
steel used for nuclear module {# T #1387 $§) passed trial production. Dual phase steel
used for vehicle panels (;4 B iR W 48 87) passed the result verification of the China Iron and
Steel Association and became the first TRIP780 steel bulk supplier in the country. Our self-
innovated shape control technology for cold rolled sheets (4 8L 2 & $1 1% # ) passed the .
verification of experts in the country, attained world-class standard as a whole and brought
an end 1o the long term monopoly of foreign countries in the use of technologies A total
of 4,608,000 tonnes of newly developed products were produced in the year, accounting
for 24.6% of our products and contributed a total of RMB19,050 million to the sale
revenue from new preducts

P, 2
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Statement fcontinued

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

4. Continued optimisation and adjustment of product mix

Low-alloy high-strength steel ({E& & % 3% %), rephosphorized steel (Z i) and steel
used for automotive applications (7 T & # 38)) were promoted to manufacturers such as
FAW Cars(—iR# T jand Great Wall Motor (& %% 51) . Sales volume of major products
including steel for use in motorcar plates (;58 ), plates of home electrical appliances (I
BAR). fiux cored welding wire (B 519 & B ), cord thread (4R 18}, pipeline steel (F
#48). medium and thick plates used for ship building (& #4 A F4K) and heavy rails (8
#1). also increased from last year. In 2009, the Company sold 1,670,000 tonnes of steel
plates for automobiles manufacturing, 1,820,000 tonnes of steel plates for ship building
and 780,000 tonnes of heavy rails. A total of 13,840,000 tonnes of specialized steel
materials were sold during the year

5. Improvement in marketing and procurement

The Company kept abreast of the changing needs of key industries and continued to
enhance and maintain its strategic cooperation with leading enterprises engaged in
relevant domestic industries, including China Petrochemical Corporation (4 &1k}, China
National Petroleum Corporation (s T3}, China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (< 4
HI). FAW(—;%), Gree (4 5 )and China North Rail (Jt B M), and established direct
supply relationship with enterprises including Qingdao Aucma (B SRE ), Advanced
Technology & Matenials Co., Ltd (& 3 £l ik M ¥ 178 42 &) and Tianjin Dayu Micro Oven (X
RAFHED)

The Company seized opportunities offered by the PRC government’s stimulating policy in
respect of domestic consumption and infrastructure construction and stepped up efforts
1o bid for key projects. Hence, the Company had won the bids for various key national
projects, including No.2 Gas Pipeline and the Qinhuangdao-Shengyang Gas Pipeline of the
West-East Gas Pipeline Project of China National Petroleurn Corporation (4 75 i 3 & F 45
& - &IAA), the Yulin-Jinan Gas Pipeline Project of China Petrochemical Corporation { &
BALEIELR). the Chongai Br.dge Project {3REX A 1K), the Daya Bay Storage Tank Project
of China Petrochemical Corporation (P B {L A ZMEEE) and the Xiluodu Hydropower
Project CREF /T IHE)

The Company proactively expanded its overseas markets and enhanced its international
operation, as the result, it exported a total of 910,000 tonnes of steel products

16 |
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Statement (continued)

FURBLIC FiLE
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

6. Continuous improvement of corporate management

The Company enhanced its performance assessment measures and established an all-round
benchmarking management system which covered production and operation, technology
and quality, equipment maintenance, finance cost and energy saving and consumption
reduction

The Company also effectively implemented the quality assessment system and continued
to improve its quality performance. 66.87% of its products’ physical quality reached
international advanced standard during the year, representing an increase of 2.96
percentage points as compared with 1ast year.

The Company was the first in the PRC iron and steel industry to control 1ts budget on cost
and expense with reference to the standard cost of SAP procedure and implemented full-
scale quality and cost assessment system.

7. Overall attainment to designed production capacity and targets at
Bayuquan production base

Al of the blast furnaces, converters, continuous casting lines, 1,580mm hot rolling
lines and heavy section rolling lines at the Bayuguan production base had attained to
their production capacity and targets shortly within 10 months after commencement of
production. It is able to produce a range of products that substantially covers its design
outiine. Such achievements at Bayuquan production base are notable in the way that it had
attamned 1o its designed production capacity and targets shortly after its commencement of
operation. it produced a total of 5,280,000 tonnes of iron, 5,050,000 tonnes of steel and
4,350,000 tonnes of steel products during the year with industry-leading performance in
terms of major technological and economic indicators

17
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DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 2010

1. IRON AND STEEL MARKET ANALYSIS AND OPPORTUNITIES AND
CHALLENGES FOR THE COMPANY

Year 2010 will be a criticai year for the Company to become the most comoetitive iron and
steel manufacturer in the international market

From the positive perspective, the global economy has already passed 1ts most difficult
ume. The Economic Work Conference of the PRC central government reiterated the
importance of contiruing implementation of proactive fiscal policies and moderately
relexed monetary policies. A relatively high ievel of fixed assets investment will be
maintained. Reorganisations 1n the industry, including mergers and acquisitions, will
improve the consolidation levei and the overall structure of the ron and steel industry
The good development momentum maintained by downstream ndustries and the PRC
gevernment’s policy to stimulate domestic demand wili also facilitate to raise the demand
for and consumption of the Company’s products, From the perspectve of the Company,
with overall attainment of designed production and targets ai its Bayuquan production
base, 1ts overall production and operation capacity have presented a more stable and
positive outlook.

From the negative perspective, the giobal economy s stll in the process of recovery and
sudject to many uncertainties. The continuous disequilibrium between demand and supply
in the iron and sieel market, :ncrease in energy price and high price of imported iron ore
have put great pressure on the productior cost of iron and steel

2.  Operation plan of the Company for 2010
The guiding principles of the Company 1n 2010 are to study and implemert the scientific
development theory and strive for siructural adjustment and market expansion, to make
new contributions for the purpose of pecoming a most compelitive stee! manufacturer in

the international market and realization of overall and sustainable growth

(1) To strergthen overall management and control and achieve a high level of
productior and operation

(2)  To strengthen scient:fic research in order 1o enhance corporate innovation
(3)  To enhance marketing efforts and increase marke: competitiveness.

(4} To strengthen energy saving and emission reduction 1o achieve a sustainable growth

18




Chairman’s
Statement (continued)

PUDLIC FILE
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 2010 (continued)

2.  Operation plan of the Company for 2010 (continued)

(5)  To speed up the progress of capital investment projects and continue to upgrade
production equipment and facilities.

(6)  To promote innovative corporate management and achieve an overall management
improvement

(7} To expedite the development of the new district of Bayuquan and achieve a
quantum leap of the new district.

3. Capital requirements, utilisation plan and funding sources for 2010

In 2010, the Company intended to earmark RMB7,741 million for safety, quality, energy-
saving and environmental friendly initiatives as well as key construction projects such as
the construction of high-performance silicon steel production lines, renovation of chemical
plants and wire rod plants. In 2010, the Company intends to make an external investment
of RMB1,803 million.

in 2010, the Company’s capital requirements will be mainly financed by proceeds raised
from the market, cash generated from operating activities and bank loans.

Chairman
Zhang Xiaogang

Anshan City, the PRC
19 April 2010
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As at 31 December 2009, the shareholding structure of the Company was as follows:

Unit: Share
Before the hange After the hange during the
during the period Increase/deaease during the period period
Issue of
Number Percentage new shares Others Sub-total Number Percentage
%) %)
1 Shares sudject [0 rac:ng moratoren 4, 340,305,343 6000 2.200) (.700}  4,340,902,643 6000
1 Swatrowned shaes 4,340,834,703 6000 - 4,340 £54,705 60.00
7 Sustowned lega
e300 shates - - - - -
3 Other comestx shares 20534 000 - 2.700) (2,700} 17,53 000
Wnowd 2g shares ked
3y stk
€2 senons -
shaes bed
oy somestx
a3l ce3ons 034 000 {2,760 £2.70C) 17.934 X
4 Foreign hares - - - -
Inclugng shares heid by
ovenexs
legal gersons - - -
shares heid by
ovenexs
RELTE RS S P - - - - -
tShanes nolsubjec to 2,893,5%2.5C4 £&00 270 2700 2.893.905.2(4 4000
1219 MOral0” 47
1 ke ore.rary shares 1,633,102.50¢ u% - 2,100 2700 1.808,°05,20¢ U%
1 Dorestcally bsie
forexn shares - -
3 Ovenes isted forengr:
Investent shares 1,085.£00.000 1501 1,085,800,000 1501
4 Onurs - -
o'l swares 7.234.807.847 00 00 - 3 C 2234807347 100 06
Note: Reasons for changes in the equity structure during the reporting period

Ouring the reporting period, the shares held by a Director from the former session of the Board of the
Company were released from trading moratorium upon the expiry of his/her resignation
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MOVEMENT IN SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium

PUSLICFILE

Unit: share
Number  Number of
Number of of shares i creased Number of
shares subject released shares subject shares subject
totrading from trading  to trading to trading
moratorium at  moratorium  moratorium  moratorium as Reasons Date of
the beginning  duringthe  duringthe  attheendof  fortrading moratorium
Name of shareholder of the year year year the year moratorium release
Angang Holding 4,340.884,709 - —  4,340.884,709 - -
Fu Wei 11,529 — - 11,529 - —
Fu Jihu 6,405 — - 6,405 - -
Lin Daqing 2,100 2,700 — 0 released from 12 December
moratonum 2009
upon
esignation
Total 4,340,905,343 — —  4,340,902,643 — —

1 21
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS

1. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has a total of 118,777
shareholders, of which 544 were holders of H shares.

2. As at 31 December 2009, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were

as follows:

Details of shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders

Number
of shares Number
held subject of shares
Nature of Percentage of  Total number to trading pledged/
Name of shareholder shareholder sharehokdings  of shares held  moratorium frozen
(%) (share} (share}
Angang Holding Holder of staie-
ownegd shaies 6729  4,868,547,330 4,310,884 709 —
HKSCC (Nomunees) Limited Holder of
foregn shares 1483 1,072,840,530 - Unknown
China Industnal and
Commerdial Bank -Boshi
Selective Stock Fund (PR I 1§
g —mMERARE
EEDaRE) Others 05t 36,746,580 - Urknown
China Construction Bank-
Huabao Industnial Prime Equity
Securities Investment Fund
(PRIRG R ~
FRNARTLRBERAY
BHaana Others 039 27,885,623 - Unknown
National Social Insurance Fund
104 Portfolio (2 BB &
-SmED) Others 033 23,889,949 — Unknown
Bank of Communications-
Huaan Strategic Prime Stock
Securities Investment Fund
(RAR(T~URREEE
RANBERAKE) Others 030 21,800,120 - Unknown




Movement in Share Capital
and Shareholders’ Profile (continued

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

2. As at 31 December 2009, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were
as follows: (continued)

Details of shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders (continued)

Number
of shares Number
held subject of shares
Nature of Percentageof  Total number to trading pledged/
Name of sharehoider shareholder shareholdings  of shares held  moratorium frozen
%) {sharej (share)
China Construction Bank -ABN
AMROQ TEDA Fav Value
Excellent Pick Security
Investment Fund (F BIRR B 13
—RREENARS
RADBHATLE) Others 0.29 21,195,616 - Unknown
Industrial and Commercial 8ank
of China-China Souihem Risk-
resistant Value-added Fund
(PBRIART —RHRRAE
z2) Others 025 17,958,188 - Unknown

Bank of Communications-
Fuguo Tianyi Value Securities
Investment Fund (X B817 —
BRIEAAENRTLE) Others 022 16,049,258 - Unknown
Bank of China-lnvesco Great
Wall Dingyi Equity Securities
Invesiment Fund {=
SHRMAEREIRNS .
BHRAERE) Others 022 15,890,636 - Unknown

fi-
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

2.

As at 31 December 2009, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were

as follows: (continued)

Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders not subject to trading moratorium

Name of shareholder

Number of shares
held not subject to
trading moratorium
(share)

Class of shares

HKSCC (Nominees) Limited

China Industrial and Commercial Bank -Boshi
Selective Stock Fund (PR IHHT
—MEFARBEHDARS)

China Construction Bank-Huabao Industrial
Prime Equity Securities Investment Fund
(PRRREH — FRNBIITERN
BREVESRAER)

National Social Insurance Fund 104 Portfolio
(2B REE-PREES)

Bank of Communications -Huaan Strategic
Prime Stock Secutities Investment Fund
(TR — RERIFBEARDYS
BAER)

Chena Construction Bank — ABN AMRO TEDA
Fair Value Excellent Pick Security
Investment Fund
(PRRRERT —
FABRATERARELVAHSRAZLR)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China-
China Southern Risk-resistant Value-added
Fund (PRTHRT -FHRMRBAZS)

Bank of Communications-Fuguo Tianyi Value
Secunties Investment fund
(ZART — BRAZAAESLAZD)

Bank of China-Invesco Great Wall Dingyi
Equity Secur.ties Investment Fund
(FEET - FEEARIBRBYEMAR
BHRARE)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China-
Rongtong Shenzhen 100 Index Securities
investment Fund (PR IHET— RABATE
100/6RES R ARE)

1,072,840,530

36,746,580

27,885,623

23,889,949

21,800,120

21,195,616

17,958,188

16,049,258

15,890,636

15,760,058

Overseas listed foreign
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares
Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares

Renm:nbi ordinary

shares

Renminbi ordinary
shares
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
2. As at 31 December 2009, the top 10 shareholders, the top 10 shareholders
not subject to trading moratorium and their respective shareholdings were

as follows: (continued)

Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders not subject to trading moratorium

{continued)

Explanations on the Angang Holding. the largest shareholder of the Company, has
connected relationship no relationship with any of the other top 10 shareholders of
or concerted action the Company or any of the top 10 shareholders not subject
among the to trading moratorium. Nor is Angang Holding a party to
shareholders mentioned any concerted action as provided in the Procedures for the
above Administration of Information Disclosure for Change in

Shareholdings of the Shareholders of Listed Companies. The
Company is not aware of any connected relationship among
other shareholders of the Company or any parties acting in
concert as provided in Procedures for the Administration of
Information Disclosure for Change in Snareholdings of the
Shareholders of Listed Companies

3.  Details of the controlling shareholder of the Company

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Angang Holding

Legal representative Zhang Xiaogang
Year of incorporatior: 1948
Scope of operation; Production of steel products, metal products (non-franchise), cast

iron tubes, metal structures, metal wire and products, sintering
and coking products, cement, power generation, metallurgical
machinery equipment and parts, electrical machinery, electricity
transmission and supply and control equipment and meters,
mining of iron and manganese ores, refractory earth and stone

extraction
Principal products: Steel pressing products and metal products
Registered capital: RMB10,794 million

Shareholding structure:  Wholly-owned by the PRC

25
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

4. Ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and its
ultimate controlling shareholder

The State-owned Assets Supervision and
Admunistration Commission of the State Council

100%
9

Angang Holding

67.29%

k.

Angang Steel Company Limited

5. Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company held by substantial shareholders and others

Save for disclosed below, as at 31 December 2009, no other person (other than the
Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior managemeni) had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required 1o be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and futures Orainance (“SFO™)
(Chapter 571, the Laws of Hong Kong)

Interest in ordinary shares of the Company

Number and Percentage Percentage in  Percentage in
class of shares in total share total issued H total issued

Name of shareholder held capital shares domestic shares Capacity
Angang Holding 4,868,547,330 67 29% - 79.18% 8eneficial
State-owned owner
shares
HKSCC (Nomirees) 1,072.840,530 14 83% $881% - Nominee
limited H shares
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PUSLIC FAE
DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

6. Trading moratorium on the former holders of non-tradable shares out of
the top 10 shareholders:

Unit: Share
Name of
shareholders Number of Humber of
subject to shares subject  Expiry date shares released
trading to trading  of trading from trading
No.  moratorium moratorium  moratorium moratorium Trading moratorium
1 Angang 4,340,884,709 1 January 2011 4340,884,709 1 The shares held by Angang Holding
Holding following the completion of the Non-

tradable Share Reform Plan will be
subject to a trading moratorium of

36 months from listing date of such
shares except for the shares to be
transferred to any holders of tiadable
orcinary domestic shares upon hister
exercise of the warrants,

2. On 23 February 2006, the Company
issued a total of 2.97 billion new
airculating A shares to Angang
Holding. Such newly issued shares
wiere deposited to Argang Holding's
account and are subject to a trading
mosatorium of 36 months fiom the
completion of the transfer of such
newly issued shares to Angang
Holding,

3. Angang Holding shall maintain &
m:nimum of 60% shareholding in the
Company following the completion of
the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in ANSHll the end of 2010

o v

27




Details of
General Meeting

The Company convened the first extraordinary general meeting of 2009 on 6 February 2009,
announcement of resolutions 1n respect of which was published in China Securities Journal and
Securities Times on 7 February 2009,

The Company convened the 2008 annual genera: meet'ng on 12 June 2009, announcement of

resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities Journal and Securities Times on
13 June 2009

The Company convened the second extraordinary general meeting, the firs: domestic share class
meeting and the first H share class meeting of 2009 on 18 Septembe: 2009, announcement of
resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities Journal and Securities Times on
19 September 2009.

The Company convened the third extraordinary general meeting of 2009 on 28 December 2009,
announcement of resolutions in respect of which was published in Ch'na Securities Journal and
Securities Times on 29 December 2009
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MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaogang. aged 56, a professor-level senior engineer holding a PhD degree in
engineenng, is the Chairman of the Company ana General Manager of Angang Holding
Mt Zhang has obtained a bachelor’s degree from Wuhan University, a master's degree
from Northeastern University and a Fh.D degree from the Central iron & Steel Research
Institute. e has been working for Angang Holding for over 30 years and has held various
senior management positions in Angang Holding, including the Head ot the Technology
Department, the Deputy Chref Engineer and the General Manager of ANSI and the
Executive Deputy General Manager of Angang Holding. He 1s an alternate member of
Seventeenth Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and representatives of
the Eleventh National People’s Congress. Mr. Zhang is an expert in metallurgical industry
with extensive knowledge in the development and innovation of metallurgical technology.
He was a member of the expert panel in the “State 863 and 973 Projects” and was
awarded the First Prize for Scientific and Technological Progress by the state. Mr Zhang is
currently the Chairman i China 'ron and Steel Association, a member of the expert panel
of the Standardization Administration of China, the Director of the Steel Rolling Academic
Committee and the Chairman of International Organization for Standardization 1SO/PC 17/
SC17 and the Low Alioy Steel Academic Committee of The Chinese Society for Metals

Mr. Yang Hua, aged 48, 1s the Vice Chairman and the Secretary to the Party Committee
of the Company and an associate professor Mr Yang graduated from the Faculty of
Philosophy of Peking University with a master's degree in 1990. He joined Angang Holding
in the same year and has been a Deputy Head of the fducation Dwvision of Angang
Party School, a Deputy Secretary to the arty Commuittee of Iron Smeiting Plant ard Half
Continuous Rolling Plant of Angang Holding, the Secretary to the Party Committee of
Iron Smelting Plant of Angang Holding, the tHead of Angang Holding Office, the Assistant
to General Manager of Angang Holding, the Secretary to the Party Committee of the
Company, a Deputy Secretary to the Party Committee of Angarg Holding and the Secretary
to the Party Committee of ANSI,

Mr. Chen Ming, aged 49, is the Vice Chairman and Acting General Manager of the
Company and a professor-level senior engineer. Mr. Chen graduated from Anshan
Instrtute of Iron and Steel Technology with a master's degree In iron and steel metaliurgy.
He nas been working for Angang Holding for over 20 years and has held varnous senior
management posit:ons, including ihe Gereral Engineer of No. 3 Steel Plant of Angang, the
Vice Director and Director of No 2 Steel Plant of Angarg, a Deputy Genera: Manager and
the Head of Production Department of ANSI, the Head of the Planning and Development
Department of Angang. the Head of Strategic Development Department of Angang and
the Deputy General Manager of the Company

4

Clllaite LA

o

[

29



244

PUCLIC FILE

Particulars of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management tontinved

1. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wanyuan, aged 49 1s a Director of the Company, the Deputy General Manager of
Angang Holding and a professor-level sentor accountant. Mr. Yu joined Angang Holding
in 1998. Mr. Yu graduated from Northeastern University with a bachelor's degree in
mechanical engineering. He studied at the Economic College of Xiamen University in 1984
He obtained his second bachelor's degree in management engineering from Northeastern
Unwersity in 1990, Mr. Yu has held the positions as a Deputy Director of Financial
Department of Northeastern University, the Accounting Director of Shenyang Xini Real
Esiate Development Company, a Deputy Chief Accountant of Northeastern University, the
Assistant 1o General Manager, a Deputy Chief Accountant, Chief Accountant and the Head
of the Department of finance and Accounting of Angang Holding

Mr. Fu Jihui, aged 58 is 2 Director, Secretary to the 3oard of the Company and a senior
accountant. Mr. Fu graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics with a
master’s degree in accounting. He joined Angang Holding in 1969 and has held various
positions including the Deputy Manager of the Finance Department.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Shijun, aged 66, 15 an Independent Non-executive Director oi the Company
Mr. L currently serves as an Executive Deputy Secretary-General of China Iron and Steel
Association, Deputy Secretary-General of the Chinese Society for Metals. Mr. Li is a
professor-level Senior Engineer. He graduated from Beijing Iron and Steel College with a
bachelor’s degree. Mr. Li concurrently serves as an independent director of Fujian Sangang
Minguang Co., Ltd. and Xinxing Ductile Iron Pipes Co., Ltd. Mr. Li had been, among
others, Deputy Director of the Technology Division of Ministry of Metallurgical Industry
and a Deputy Director of the Planning and Development Division of the State Bureau of
Metallurgical Industry.

Mr. Ma Guogiang, aged S€, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ma s currently a Vice President of Dongbei University of Finance and Economy, a
professor and tutor of doctorate candidates. He has obtained a master's degree from
Dongbei University of finance and Economy and a Ph.D degree from Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences. He is concurrently an evaluation expert of the National Planning Office
of Philosophy and Social Sciences, and a Vice Chairman of the Chinese Taxation Institute.
Mr. Ma has served in Dongbei University of Finance and Economy as a lecturer, the Deputy
Head and Head of Taxation Department, the Dean of the Finance and Taxation College and
the Assistant to the President
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1. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Liu is currently the Assistant to the President of Peking University, the Dean of School
oi Economics of Peking University, a professor and tutor of doctorate candidates He
graduated from Peking University with a master’s degree and a Ph.D degree. He is the
editor-in chief of Economic Science, a Vice President of China Marketing Economy Research
Center, a Vice President of China Private Economic Research Center, a Vice President 1
of Chinese Association of Productivity Science and a member of Economics Counsel of
Academic Degree Commission of the State Council

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit Victor, aged 43, 1s an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is currently the financial controller of Anwell Technologies Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Limited. He has over 16 years
of experience in the auditing, accounting and financial management in the commerce,
manufacturing and public administration areas. Mr. Kwong s a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong has obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Curtin University of Technology in Australia. Mr
Kwong is also an independent director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited, a company listed on the Shenzaen Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, and Get Nice Holdings Limited, a company also listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

2. MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Wen Baoman, aged 59. is the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company and the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee of Angang
Holding. Mr Wen is also the President of the Angang Communist Party School, a member
of the Standing Commussion of Anshan Municipal Committee of the Communist Party
of China and a senior politician. Mr. Wen graduated with a bachelor's degree from
Liaoning Provincial Party School. Mr. Wen has been with Angang Holding for over 30
years and held various senior positions of Angang Holding, including the Secretary to the
Committee of the Communist Youth League of Angang Holding, the Head of the Office
of the Communist Party Committee of Angang Holding, the Vice Chairman of the Labour
Union of Angang Holding, the Head of Propaganda Depariment of the Communist Party
Committee of Angang Holding, a member of the Standing Committee of the Communist
Party of Angang Holding. the Secretary to the Communist Party Committee of Angang
Construction Company* and the Chairman of the tabour Union of Angang Holding.
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MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (continued)

Mr. Shan Mingyi, aged 56, is a Supervisor of the Company and the Chairman of
the Labour Union of the Company and a senior politician. Mr Shan graduated from
the correspondence education of Central Party’s School majoring in economics and
management. He joined Angang Holding in 1969, and had been the Deputy Head, Head of
the Organization Department, Director of Human Resources Department, Deputy Secretary
to the Party Committee of Angang Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Vice Chairman of
the Labour Union of Angang Holding, and Chairman of the Labour Union of ANSI,

Supervisors from staff representatives:

Mr. Xing Guibin, aged 50, is a Supervisor, currently the secretary to a branch of the
Party of the Company in the continuous casting operation area. Mr. Xing graduated from
Liaoning Gongyun College with an associate degree. Mr. Xing joined Angang Holding
in 1981 and served as a worker, Head and Chief of the Boiler Dwision, Deputy Director,
Director of the workshop, etc. He was recognized as a model worker in the national
metallurgical industry in 1994 and a national model worker in 1995 He was granted one
of the national outstanding youths award by the Communist Youth Party of the central
government in 1996

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT MEMBERS

Ms. Zhang Lifen, aged 45, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company and a senior
engineer. Ms. Zhang graduated from University of Science and Technology Beijing with a
Master’s degree in metallurgical material engineering. Ms Zhang joined Angang Holding
i 1986 and has been the Assistant to Plant Manage:, Deputy Plant Manager, Acting Plant
Manager and Plant Manager of Wire Rod Plant of Angang Holding. the Deputy General
Manager and the Assistant to the General Manager of the Company.

Mr. Fu Wei, aged 50, is a Deputy General Mahager of the Company and a senior engineer,
Mr. Fu graduated from University of Scierce and Technology Beijing with a master’s degree
in Industriai Engineer. He joined Angang Holding in 1982 and held various positions
including the Assistant to the Plant Manager of Cold Roll Plant, Chairman of the Workers
Union of Cold Rolt Plant of Angang Holding, the Deputy Head and Head of Facility Division,
and Assistant to the General Manager of the Company

Mr. Ma Lianyong, aged 48, is the Chief Accountant of the Company and a professor-
level senior accountant. Mr. Ma receved a master's degree n industrial foreign trade
and industnal accounting from Beihang University and a master’s degree in management
engineerng from Northeastern University. Mr. Ma joined Angang Holding in 1984, and
served as the Chief Accountant of Angang Construction’s Complex Construction and
Installation Corporation and Anshan Yinzuo Group Company Limited, the Deputy Head of
Fund Dwision of Finance Department of Angang Holding and the Deputy Head of Finance
Department of ANSI
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2009

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a major steel manufacturer in the PRC. Its principal business includes production
and sale of products including hot rolled products, cold rolied products, medium and thick plates
and other steel products. The domestic market share of the Company’s hot rclled sheets, cold
rolled sheets, galvanized steel sheets, colour coating plates, silicon steel, medium and heavy
plates, wire rods, heavy rails and seamless steel pipes are 6.85%. 7.9%, 5.14%, 0.79%, 12.2%,
8.31%. 0.92%, 18.8% and 2.15%, respectively.

Principal business of the Group by industries and products (prepared in
accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards)

Principal business by industries

Unit. RM8 million

Increase/
decrease of Increase/ Increase/
operating  decrease of  decrease in
revenue operating  gross profit
compared costs margin
with the compared compared
Operating Operating  Gross profit previous with the with the
revenue cost margin year previous year previous year
{percentage
(%) (%) (%) points)

Steel pressing and
processing 70,057 63,635 917 (839) 0.63 (8.10)
Principal business by products

Hot rolled products 25.316 23,326 7.86 117 943 (6.95)
Cold rolted products 24,159 21,306 11.81 (18.65) (1282 (5.89)
Medium and thick plates 10,405 9,518 8.52 (15.02) 890 {20.10)
Other steel products 7518 6,508 13.43 (18.31) (19.70) 1.50

)
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS (continued)

Principal business of the Group by industries and products (prepared in

accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards) (continued)

Notes

1) The increase In operating revenue and. operating cost of hot rolled products was mainly due to the
realization of production capacity of the 1.580 hot rolled sheet production line of Bayuquan 8ranch,
which resulted in the growth in sales volume ot hot rolled sheets The decrease in gross profit margin
was due to the more significant decrease in product prices than that in costs of raw materials

2} The decrease in operating revenue of cold rokied products was mainly attributable to the decrease in
product prices. The decrease in operating cost was due to 1) the decrease in costs of raw materials;
and ii} the decrease in processing cost as a result of the enhancement of cost control. The decrease In
gross profit margin was owing to the inore significant decrease in product prices than that in costs of
raw matenals

3) The decrease in operating revenue of medium and thick plates was mainly due to the decrease in
product prices; the increase in operating cost was primarily due to the growth in sales volume of
heavy plate products, the de<rease :n gross profit margin was principally owing to the more significant
decrease in product prices than that in the costs of raw matenals

a) The decrease in operaiing revenue of other steel products was mainly due to decrease ir product

prices, the decrease in operating cost was due to i) the decrease in casts of raw materials, and i) the
decrease in processing cost as a result of the enhancement of cost control, the increase in gross profit
marg n was mainly due to the relatively slight decrease in product prices as the costs of heavy section
decreased.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS (continued)
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Segmental information of operating revenue of the Group by geographical
locations of sales (prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards)

Operating revenue

Unit: RM8 milfion

Increase/

decrease in
operating

revenue

compared with the
previous year

(%)
Northeast China 24,005 (10.16)
North China 11,088 9.54
East China 17,778 8.70
South China 11,374 15.59
Central south China 1,235 (7.68)
Northwest China 690 (32.75)
Southwest China ’ 447 36.57
Export sales 3,509 (74.73)
Total 70,126 (11.92)

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 June 2009, the Company convened its 2008 annual general meeting in Anshan, at which
the 2008 profit distnbution plan was considered and approved. It was resolved to distribute a
cash dividend of RMB2.1 per 10 shares based on the total share capital of 7,234,807,847 shares
On 30 June 2009, the Company distributed cash dividends 1o holders of H shares. The applicable
exchange rate was the average of the basic exchange rate of Renminbi and Hong Kong doliar
announced by the Bank of China one calendar week prior 10 the holding of the shareholder
meeting, being HK$100 to RMB88.17. The cash dividends actually paid to holders of H shares
was HK$259 million. On 26 June 2009, the Company distributed cash dividends 1o holders of
circulating A shares ang state-owned shares, totaling RMB1,291 million. The cash dividends for

2008 distributed by the Company were RMB1,519 miillion in total.

35




23¢%

Report of

the Directors wontived;

SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2009, effective interests in the Company’s issued share capital held by
Directors, Supervisors and senior management were as follows:

Number of shares  Number of shares

held as at 1 hetd as at 31 Reason of
Kame Position Gender Age  Terms of appointment lanuary 2009 December 2009 Change
{Share) Sharej
irargXeogag  Chairmar Mi'e £ 200905 - 5oen: 0 < -
Yarg¥aa Vice Cha Mae 48 200306 - oesen: ] < -
Cter Mrg Vice (R Mye 5 203905 - €0 615
Actng Gereial Manager 203905 - ozsen:
Ve Viasyaan G recist Mae 49 200006 - oesen: 1837 -
o e D recicr, Seceetay Mie 58 206906 - presen: 5.540 -
10 the Boare
Li Sk yur 'rdepeagent Nze € 200 C6 - pieseni 0 { -
Norexecytve O
M3 Guigang nczpeaden: Naie S5 2009 C€ - present ¢ <
hor -execulive Suector
1 Wel Inzzpe-deat Wele 3 1A TE - presert ¢ S -
hon-exzcubve Juecter
uorg Chice, Inazpe~d:1i Nl 4 20905 - presert [4 S -
Ve Non-execuitve Juector
Wer Baorin Chavnar of Wl 9 2003 36 - presert 4 ) -
e SLoe vy Comirtize
Star Mot gy Sapenv s’ Wik 2003 06 - preser| LR S -
X g Cubir Sugan 5ot Male 100536 - presert G 2 -
Zharglien Depuy Female 20511 - presert 0 4 -
Canral Maragel
fIWe Desnty Mele Re 740508 - presert 15,377 15.372 -
Ceneral Varuger
Ma Levyorg Choef Azczuntars Male 4 200293 - prasert 0 4 -

Notes. Ail the shares mentioned above are A sha‘es of the Company. Such shares were held by the persons
mentioned above In the capacity of individual beneficiai owner except for Mr Chen Ming, Mr Yu
Wanyuan and Mr Skan Mingy in the capacity of family interest (held by his spouse)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY HELD BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above. as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations {within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of tne
SFO, or which were notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
tne Mcdel Code for Secunties Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix
10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Korg Limited
("Hong Kong Listing Rules”)

POSITIONS HELD BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

1 Mr. Zhang Xiaogang, Chairman of the Company, has served as the General Manager of
Angang olding, the controlling shareholder of the Company since January 2007

2 Mr. Yu Wanyuan, Director of the Company, has served as the Deputy General Manager of
Angang Holding since Cecember 2001

3 Mr. Wen Baoman, Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company, has served as
the Deputy Secretary of Party Committee of Angang Holding since May 2005,
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of each of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management was proposed
by the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee under the Board and the Supervisory Committee
respectively. Such remuneration has been approved upon discussion by the Board and the
Supervisory Commuttee, and preposed for approval by the shareholders at the general shareholder
meeting. Such remuneration was determined according to the business performance of the
Company and the remunerat.on offered by comparable enterprises in the PRC.

Total
remuneration Whether receiving
receivéd from remuneration
the Company from the

during the shareholders of the
reporting period Company or other

Name Position (Inclusive of tax) associated entities
(RMB0'000)

Zhang Xiaogang Chairman — Yes

Yang Hua Vice Chairman 417 No

Chen Ming Vice Chairman, 16.6 Yes, receving annual

Acting General Manager remuneration for his

serv.ce In Angang
Holding in 2008

Yu Wanyuan Director —_ Yes

fu lihui Director, Secretary to 242 No
the 8oard

<1 Shijun Independent Non-executive 5.3 No
Director

Ma Guoqiang Independent Non-executive 5.3 No
Director

Liu Wei Independent Non-execut:ve 53 No
Director

Kwong Chi Kit, Independent 5.3 No

Victor Non-executive Director

Wen Baoman Chairman of the — Yes
Supervisory {cmmittee

Shan Mingy: Supervisor 243 No

Xirg Guibin Supervisor 12.5 No

Zhang Lfen Deputy General Manager R 171 No

Fu Wer Oeputy General Manager 241 No

Ma Liaryong Chief Accountant 246 No

Total — 206.3
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Note: The total remuneration above did not include the Company’s contribution to retirement schemes and
other welfare funds.

The remuneration of Ms Zhang Lifen was the remuneration for her term of office as the supervisor of
the Company from january to June 2009 and her term of office as the deputy genera! manager of the
Company from November to December 2009

RESIGNATION, APPOINTMENT OR DISMISSAL OF THE COMPANY'S
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

1. The first extraordinary general meeting for 2009 was held on 6 February 2009, at which
Mr. Chen Ming was elected as the director of the fourth session of the Board.

2 The annual general meeting for 2008 was held on 12 June 2009, at which Mr. Zhang
Xiaogang. Mr Tang Fuping, Mr. Yang Hua, Mr. Yu Wanyuan, Mr. Chen Ming, Mr. Fu Jihui,
Mr. Ma Guogsang, Mr. Liu Wei and Mr. Li Shijun were elected as the directors of the fifth
session of the Board, among which Mr. Ma Guogiang, Mr. Liu Wei and Mr. Li Shijun were
:ndependent non-executive directors.

3 The annual general meeting for 2008 was held on 12 June 2009, at which Mr. Wen
Baoman and Mr. Shan Mingyi were elected as the shareholders’ representative supervisors
of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee. Mr Xing Guibin was elected as the staff
representative supervisor of the fifth session of the Supervisory Commuttee of the Company
through democratic means by the staff of the Company on 5 June 2009. Mr. Wen Baoman,
Mr. Shan Mingyi and Mr. Xing Guibin constituted the fifth session of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company.
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RESIGNATION, APPOINTMENT OR DISMISSAL OF THE COMPANY'S
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

4. The st meeting of the fifth session of the Board on 26 June 2009, at which the foliowing
proposals were passed:

(1} Elected Mr. Zhang Xiaogang as Charman of the fifth session of the Board of the
Company;

(2}  Elected Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Chen Ming as Vice Chairman of the fifth session of
the Board of the Company;

(3)  Appointed Mi. Fu Jihui as secretary to the #ifth session of the Board of the Company;

(4)  Agreed Mr. Tang Fuping’s resignation as the general manager, Vice Chairman and
director of the Company

(5)  Approved Mr. Chen Ming, deputy general manager of the Company, to act as the
acting general manager.

S The 1st meeting of the fifth session of the Supervisory Comrmittee was convened on 26
June 2009, at which Mr. Wen Baoman was elected as the Chairman of the fiftn session of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company

6 The second extraordinary general meeting for 2009 was convened on 18 September 2009,
at which Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor was elected as the independent director of the fifth
session of the Board

7. The 7th meeting of the fifth session of the Board was convened on 5 November 2009, at
whicn the appoiniment of Ms. Zhang Lifen as the deputy general manager of the Company
was passed
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OPERATIONS AND RESULTS OF THE MAJOR CONTROLLED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES (PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS)
Total assets
Name of controlled Registered asall Net profit
No. Company of joint venture Shareholding  Majo¢ products or services pital  December 2009 for 2009
(RME mdion) (RM8 méon)
1 Angang Steel .0grt3 100%  Procuctior, processg, whowesale 3o retall AW380 ~ihon s1 H
{Wuhar) Company Umited business of ste<l and relevant products
? Tery AnGasg a1 T.¢ S0%  Steel rdit ng process g W30 ulon 1£93 (32)
Coid RoDled Sheeis production, piocessing and sake
Comgany Limizd of coid roed heets, galamized sicel
i1 coloe (oated shees.
echnology comedlation
and techaology semvice for mea'lurgal
eQapmer’s {exclusve
of utermedia 1), mpor and
€01 business
3 ANSC-TKS Gaveriag S0%  Procucion of rold hoi dip gavas sed US$13Z miloa 2,688 12
Co, W ("ANSC-TXS") steel procucts and mKrosloyed steei
2458 3 $irp2 20K, sake of
seil-gracuced producs ard
provision of afer-sales sernces
4 ANSC -Dactuan Keavy lnovsiaes 0% Frocessing of sieel pocs, and AVE330 Tubor 1641 i
Dahan Steel Product franufactunng, dreindution and
Processing and Cistazition sale of s5Lclura! sizel
Compary L
S Changchua FAM Stael Frocessing 0% Pocesing 919 po0wbon 0f FME0 mfton 7 ‘o
a%¢ Sinter C5, LW slee’ pod s 376 0L%er
telal2d senvces
6 TRAS (Chagehur; Sieer Sevee G Moewuon, prixess 1, sl of U 2 mion e 7

Ceater L:d (formarly known
35 ANSC-TKS Stzel Logeixs
{Changcha) Comgany Limited)

steel matend’s 204 cider redted
Commeroal Mk
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OPERATIONS AND RESULTS OF THE MAJOR CONTROLLED OR INVESTED
COMPANIES (PREPARED UNDER THE PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
(continued)

Of which, the impact of ANSC-TKS on the net profit of the Company for 2009 reached more than
10%. The principal operating income of ANSC-TKS in-2009 amounted to RMB2,033 million and
the operating profit amounted to RMB147 million

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The total amount of purchase from the Company’s five largest suppliers was RMB36,527 million,
representing 62.59% of the Company's total purchase for the year, 27.19% of which was
attributable to the Company’s largest supplier. The sales to the Company's five largest customers
aggregated to RMB15,265 miflion, representing 21.99% of the Company's total turnover for the
year and the largest cusiomer accounted for 7.94%

Except for those disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, supervisors and their associates
nor any shareholder {(which to the knowledge of the Directors hold 5% or more of shares in the
Company) had any interest in any of the aforementioned suppliers or customers of the Company
during 2009,

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor, an Independent Director of the Company who has been a Director
since 18 September 2009, entered into a service contract with the Company starting from 18
September 2009. Other Directors and supervisors have entered into service contracts with a
term of three years starting from 12 June 2009 All Directors and Supervisors’ contracts of the
Company shall expire upon the election of Directors of the sixth session of the Board at the 2011
Annual Generai Meeting. No Director or Supervisor has entered into any service contract with the
Company which may be terminated by the Company within one year and compensation shall be
paid other than statutory compensation

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the reporting period, tnere was no other purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries of its securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the laws of the PRC, no pre-

emptive nghts exist 1o require the Company tc offer new shares 10 the existing shareholders in
proportion to their shareholdings
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DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

In 2009, none of the Directors or Supervisors of the Compary had any material interests in any
contracts in which the Compary, or the holding Company or any of its subsidiaries were involved

FIXED ASSETS

Changes in the fixed asseis during the year are set out In note 12 to financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs on pages 238 10 239 of this report

OPERATING RESULTS
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 and its financial position as

at that date are set out 1n the firancial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs included in
this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capial during the year are set out In note 26 to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs on pages 249 to 250 of this report

RESERVES

Changes in the reserves during the year are set out in note 28 1o financial statements prepared in
accordance with FRSs on pages 251 to 252 of this report

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the employee retirement scheme of the Company are set out in note 34 to financial
statements prepared 1n accordance with 1ERSs on page 261 of this report

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of centinuing connected transactions for the year are set out on pages 77 to 84 of this
report

FIVE-YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the resuits and balance sheet ¢f the Company for the past five years 15 set out on
pages 269 10 270 of this report
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CHAPTER 13 DISCLOSURE

The Directors confirmed that there was no matter occurring in 2009 which would have given
rise to a disclosure requirement under Rules 13,13 to 13.19 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The
Company’s controlting shareholder did not pledge any of its shares in the Company to secure any
debts. guarantees or other support of obligations of the Company, nor did the Company sign
i0an agreements imposing specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholders.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC SHAREHOLDINGS
According to the information obtained by the Company through public channels, and so far as
the Directors are aware of as at the latest practical date before the publishing of this anntal

report, the Company has been maintaining sufficient public shareholdings to comply with the
Hong Kong Listing Rules during the year

AUDITORS

RSM Neison Wheeler (Certified Public Accountants in hong Kong) and RSM China Cerufied Public
Accountants (Registered Accountants in the PRC) were appointed as the Company’s international
and domestic auditors respectively in 2009.

A resolution for the appointment of RSM China Certified Public Accountants and RSM Nelson
Wheeler as the Company’s domestic and international auditors, respectively, for 2010 will be
proposed at the 2009 Annual General Meet:ng to be held on 18 June 2010.

WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD

The Board meetings during the reporting period

1. The fourth session of the Board of the Company convened the 33rd meeting on S January
2009, announcement of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities
Journal and Secunities Times on 6 January 2009.

2 The fourth session of the Board of the Company convened the 34th meeting on 17
February 2009, announcement of resolut.ons in respect of which was published in China
Securiues journar and Securities Times on 18 february 2009.

3. The fourth session of the Soard of the Company convened the 35th meeting on 14 Apni
2009, announcement of resolutiors n respect of which was puthshed in China Securities
Journal and Secunties Times on 15 Apri: 2009.

4. The fourth session o° the Board of the Compary convened the 36tn meetng on 27 April
2009, announcemrent of resclutions in respect of which was published in China Securities
Journal and Securities Times on 28 Apri® 2009

OB ATICK w4
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WORKING REPORT OF THE BOARD (continued)

The Board meetings during the reporting period (continued)

The fiith session of the Board of the Company cenvened the 1st meeting on 26 June 2009,
announcerrent of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securiuies Journal
and Securities Times on 27 June 2009,

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 2nd meeting on 22 July 2009,
announcement of resolutions 1n respect of which was published in China Securities Journal
and Secunities Times on 23 July 2009

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 3rd meeting on 10 August
2009, anncuncement of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities
Journal and Securities Times on 11 August 2009

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 4th meeting on 1/ August
2009, at which 2009 Interim Report was considered and approved

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 5th meeting on 28 August
2008, announcement of resolutions in respect of which was published 1n China Securities
Journal ang Secuiities Times on 29 August 2009

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 6th meeting on 27 October
2009, announcement of resolutions in respect of which was published in China Securities
Journal and Securities T.mes on 28 October 2009.

The fifth session of the Board of the Company convened the 7th meeting on § November
2008, announcement of resolutions in respect of which was publisned In China Securities
Journa! and Securities Times on 6 November 2009
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Report of
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EXECUTION OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT GENERAL MEETINGS OF
THE COMPANY BY THE BOARD

On 12 June 2009, the Company convened its 2008 annua!l general meeting in Anshan, at which
the 2008 profit distribution plan was considered and approved. It was resolved to distribute
a cash dividend of RMB2.1 per 10 shares based on the total share capital of 7,234,807.847
shares. On 30 June 2009, the Company distributed cash dividends 1o holders of H shares. The
applicable exchange rate was the average of the basic exchange rate of Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar announced by the Bank of China one calendar week prior to the holding of the general
shareholder meeting for that year, being HK$100 to RMB88.17. The cash dividends actually
paid to holders of H shares was HK$259 million. On 26 June 2009, the Company distributed
cash dividends to holders of circulating A shares and state-owned shares; in a total amount of

RMB1,291 million. The cash didend for 2008 distributed by the Company was RMB1,519 million
in total

PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE UNDER THE BOARD

ior performance of duties by the audit committee, please refer to the content concerning Audit
Committee in Corporate Governance Report as set out in page 69 of this report.

PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES OF REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION
COMMITTEE UNDER THE BOARD

Please refer to the content concerning Remuneration and Evaluation Committee 1n Corporate
Governance Report as set out In page 66 of this report.

ESTABLISHMENT OF REGULATIONS

On 19 April 2010, the “"Management System for Persons Utilizing External Information” and
the “Management System for Persons Informed of Insider Information” were considered and
approved at the 10th meeting of the fifth session of the Board of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhang Xiaogang

Chairman

19 April 2010
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the Supervisory Committee

During the year, members of the Supervisory Committee duly fulfilled their duties in accordance
with the Company Law and the articles of association of the Company in order to protect the
lawful interests of the Company and its shareholders

1) The Supervisory Committee attended three general meetings and four Board meetings
of the Company as non-voting participants and convened five supervisory meetings.
The Supervisory Committee has given independent opinions and advices on the basis of
their full knowledge of the Company’s major production and operation decisions and
implementation process.

1 The fourth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 14th meeting on
14 Apnl 2009, at which the following resolutions were considered and approved:

(1
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To approve the Company’s annual report for 2008 and its summary;

(2)  To approve the work report of the Supervisory Committee of the Company for
2008;
(3)  To approve the proposed remuneration for supervisors of the Company for
2008,
(4) To approve the self-evaluation report on nternal control of the Company for
2008;
(5 To pass the resolution in relation to the election of members of the fifth
session of the Supervisory Committee
2 The fourth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 15th meeting on

27 April 2009, at which the following resolutions were considered and approved:

(1)

(2)  To approve the proposal for the adjustment on the relevant information of
the same period last year of the first quarterly financial statements of the
Company
3. The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 1st meeting on 26

June 2009, at which the following resolutions were considered and approved:

m

To approve the 2009 First Quarterly Report of the Company;

To elect Mr. Wen Baoman as the Chairman of the fifth session of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company;

To pass the proposal for the amendment of the Rules of Procedure for
Supervisory Committee Meetings
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The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 2nd meeting on 17
August 2009, at which the 2009 Interim Report of the Company and its summary
were considered and approved.

The fifth Supervisory Committee of the Company convened the 3rd meeting on
27 October 2009, at which the 2009 Third Quarterly Report of the Company were
considered and approved.

(1) In 2009, the Supervisory Committee of the Company also monitored the Company's
operations to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Company Law, and the articles of association of the Company. It examined the connected
transactions entered into between the Company and Angang Holding and reviewed the
relevant information in order to ensure the fairness of such transactions.

The Supervisory Committee had given independent opinions on the following issues:

1

19 Apnl 2010

During the year, the Company's operations had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations and no violation of regulations had occurred. The Company has
comprehensive internal control system and the decision making procedure of the
Company complied with applicable laws and regulations.

None of the Directors and senior management had violated any laws or regulations
of the articles of association of the Company when performing their duties or have
otherwise acted in a manner as to infringe upon the interests of the Company.

The Company’s financial report truly reflected the Company’s financial position and
operating results

The Company’s actual application of the latest funds raised was in line with the
projects undertaken

The acquisitions and disposals of assets were carried out by the Company at
reasonable prices and there was no insider dealing or any damage to part of the
shareholders' interests or any loss 1o the Company’s assets

During the year, routine continuing connected transactions and other connected
transactions were conducted on a fair basis in the Company’s production and
operation. There was no insider dealing and the interests of the Company were not
adversely affected.

On behalf of the Supervisory Commitiee
Wen Baoman
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW

Confronted with the attack and impact from the global financial crisis In 2009, thanks to
concerted efforts of our staff and flexible countermeasures, we made progress in each
tasks

(1) Operating Results

Based on the IFRSs, the Group recorded a profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB752 million for the year ended 31 December
2009, representing a decrease of 74.87% from the previous year, and its weighted
average basic earnings per share was RMB0.104

Based on the PRC Accounting Standards, the Group recorded a net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB727 million for the year ended
31 December 2009, representing a decrease of 75.61% from the previous year, and
its basic earnings per share was RMB0.100.

(2)  Analysis on the Group’s Financial and Operational Status

Under the PRC Accounting Standards Unit: RMB million
Item 2009 2008 Change
%
Total assets 100,987 92,184 9.55
Non-current liabilities 11,702 17,753 (34.08)
Shareholders’ equity 53,798 53,108 1.30
Operating revenue 70,126 79.616 (11.92)
Profit from operations 789 3,868 (79.60)
Net profit 686 2,981 (76.99)
Net increase in cash
and cash equivalents . (732) (4.759) 84.62
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
(2)  Analysis on the Group's Financial and Operational Status (continued)
Under the IFRSs Unit: RMB million
Reason for
Item 2009 2008 Change change
%
Total assets 103,126 94,826 8.75
Non-current liabitities 11,641 17,706 (34.25) B
Equity attributable to
owners of .
the Company 52,291 52,971 (1.28) C
Turnover 70,057 78,985 {(11.30) D
Gross profit 4,153 8,146 (49.02) o]
Profit for the year

attributable to

owners of

the Company 752 2,993 (74.87) D
Net increase in cash at

banks, cash and

cash equivalents (732) (4,759) 84.62 E

~
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(2)

Analysis on the Group’s Financial and Operational Status (continued)

Notes:

A

The increase in total assets was mainly attributable to (1) the consolication of financial
statements of Angang Tian Tie and (2) the increase 1n loans for working capital of the
Company.

The decrease in non-current liabilities was mainly attributable to the transfer of long-
term loans due within one year into non-current liabilities due within one year

The decrease in equity attributable to shareholders of the Company was mainly due
to: (1) the decrease of RMB767 million in retained profit (including the increase of
RMB752 million in net profit attributable to shareholders of the l.sted Company for
the year, the decrease of RMB1,519 million for payment of dividend for 2008); (2) the
increase In reserve of RMB87 million arising from change in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets

The decrease in turnover, gross profit and profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company was mainly attributable to the faliing steel product price

The increase in net increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly attributable to
(1) the decrease n net profit, the increase in cperating receivables and the decrease in
payables, resulting in a decrease of RMB7.860 million in net cash inflow from operating’
activities over last year. (2) the decrease of RMB10,739 million in net cash outflows
from investing activities as compared with the previous year due to the decreased
acquisttion of fixed assets and expenditures in construction in progress; and (3) the
increase of RMB1,148 million in net cash inflow from financing activities as compared
with the previous year due to the increase in cash received from borrowings and the
decrease in cash payment for distribution of cash dividends

.o v
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Unit: RMB milfion

(3) Analysis on the changes of financial figures including the Group's
assets and expenses (prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards)

Increase /

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 {decrease)

Asa  of percentage

Asa perceniage in total assets

percentage :ntotal  compared with

Item of Balance Sheet Amount  in total assets Amount assets the previous year

{percentage

1%} (% points)

Bills receivable 3,396 33 2,583 280 256

Accourts “evabie 170 175 1235 134 41

Prepaymerts 6,212 6.15 210 2% 319
Available-for sale )

{nanaia; assets 161 0.16 45 0.65 [A}]
Fixed assels 53,805 §3.28 43,252 46.92 636
Construction materiaks 2,334 231 6,242 617 446)
Short-term loans 13,10 13.58 1570 82t 537
Advances from customers 5,942 5.88 3629 3% 194
Non-cuirert habrlines due

within ane year 7,653 758 1,031 112 646
Long term loans 11,502 o139 17,565 19.05 (7.56)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Analysis on the changes of financial figures including the Group's
assets and expenses (prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards)
(continued)

Notes: In preparing firancial statements of the Group, its assets were measured at historic

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

7

8)

cost but available-for-sale financial assets were measure at fair value subsequent to
initial recognition.

The increase of RMB813 million in bills receivable as compared with the end of last year
was mainly attributable to (1) increased payment from sales of the Company as a result
of an increase in resources, (2) increase in bills receivable of RMB238 million as a result
of the consolidation of financial statements of Angang Tian Tie and the Company.

The increase of RMBS535 million in accounts recervables as compared with the end of
last year was mainly due to the increase in payments in arrear and sales receivables
from steel distributors and such other factors as a result of the steel market condition

The increase of RMB3,481 million 1n prepayments as compared with the end of last
year was mainly attributable to: (1) increased prepayment for imported raw fuel; and (2)
increased prepayiment of RMB918 million as a result of the consolidation of financial
statements of Angang Tian Tie and the Company

The increase of RMB116 million in available-for-sale financial assets as compared with
the end of last year was due to the increase in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets for 10,000,000 shares in Zhuzhou Smelter Company Ltd of Hunan subscribed
by the Company through non-public offering, which was at RMB16.16 per share as
compared to RMB4.49 per share at the beginning of the year

The increase of RMB10,553 miltion in fixed assets over the end of last year was mainly
due to (1) the transfer from construction in progress to fixed assets after completion of
Bayuquan project; and (2) the increase of RMB2,085 miltion in fixed assets as a result
of the consolidation of financial statements of Angang Tian Tie and the Company

The decrease of RMB3,908 million in construction supplies as compared with the end
of last year was mainly attributable to the consumption of construction materials.

The increase of RMB6,140 million in short-term loans was mainly attributable to (1) the
increase of RM84,630 million in loans for working capital of the Company; and (2) the
increase of RMB1,510 mitlion short-term loan as a resuit of consolidation ot financial
staiements of Angang Tian Tie and the Company

The increase of RMB2,313 million in advances from customers as compared with the
end of last year was mainly attributable to: (1) the increase in advances due to price
rebound of steel products, increased output of Bayuquan Company and increase in
depcsits from customers for increased orders, and {2) the increase of RMB350 milton
in advances from customers as a result of the consolidation of financial statements of
Angang Tian Tie

—
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(3)

Analysis on the changes of financial figures including the Group's
assets and expenses (prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards)
(continued)

g) The increase of RMB6,622 million in non-current fiabilities due within one year was
mainly due to (1) the transfer of long-term borrowings due within one year: and (2) the
increase of RMB315 million in long-term loans due within one year as a result of the
consolidation of financial statements of Angang Tian Tie

10) The decrease of RMB6,063 million in long-term loans was mainly attributable to the
transfer of tong-term loans due within one year into non-current habilities due within
one year

Unit: RMB million
Increase (+¥
decrease (-)

from the

Item of Income Statement 2009 2008 previous year

(%)

Selling expenses 1,081 1,687 (3592)

Administrative expenses 2,962 3,798 (22.01)

Financial expenses %02 694 29.97

Income tax expense 157 851 (81.55)

Notes

0 The decrease of RMB606 million in selling expenses was mainly due to (1) the decrease
in package expenses due 1o less package cost: and (2) the decrease in transportation
expenses, export operation fee and consigned sale handling charge as a result of
decreased export volume

2) The decrease of RMB836 mullion in administrative expenses was primarily attributable to
the decrease in the Company’s staff remuneration, maintenance fee and other charges

3) The increase of RMB208 million in financial expenses was mainly due to the (1)
decrease in capitalized interest as a result of the completion of constructions; and (2)
increased interest expenses due to the increase in loans of the Company

4) The decrease of RMB694 million in income tax expense mainly was due to decreased

profit of the Company
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
(4) Components of cash flow generated from the Group's operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities (prepared under

the PRC Accounting Standards)

Unit: RMB million

Item 2009 2008 Marn reason for change

Net cash flows 4,549 11,938 The decrease in cash flow from
from operating operating actvities as compared
activities with last year was mainly due to

the decrease in net profit, increase
in operating receivables and the
decrease in items payable

Net cash flows (5,213) (15,554) The decrease In net cash outflows
from investing from investing activities as
activities compared with last year was mainly

due to acquisition of fixed assets
and the decreased expenrses in
construciion in progress

Net cash fiows (68) (1,143) The decrease in net cash flow from
from financing financing activities was due tc (1)
activities the increase In cash received from

borrowings during the year; and (2)
the decrease in cash payment for
distribution of cash dividends
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(5) Items related to fair value measurement (under PRC Accounting

Standards)
Unit: RMB million
Cumulative
Gains o
losses arising
Gains or losses  from changes
arising from  in fair value
Balance at changes in previously  Impairment Balance at
the beginning  fair value for reported in made for the end
ftem of the year the period equity the period of the year
fhavn st
Fnancal assets & - - - -
pizftoriess
o Avakbefersale
403Nl 2558 & < 87 0 51
Subiotal cf hrarcal assets L5 S 87 ] 5
Frangal gt Itiss
“otal 45 4 & S 61

The Company formulated Account.ng Treatment Measures and other internal control
pohicies relating to fair value measurement

The Company has no financial assets in foreign currency




Management Discussi
and Ana|yS|S {continued)

on

1.

2.

E'H TN PN
(R RRA

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(6)

Number of Employees, Employees’ Qualifications, Salary Policy and
Training Programmes of the Company

As of 31 December 2009, the Company had 30,902 employees, of which 20,950
were production staff, 282 were sales stafi, 2,898 were technicians, 282 were
accounting staff and 1,256 were administration personnel. Of the Company’s
employees, 5,959 held bachelor or higher degrees, representing 19.28% of the total
number of the employees; 7,606 held diplomas. representing 24.61% of the total
number of the employees and 13,872 held the certificate of secondary education,
representing 44.89% of the total number of the employees

In 2009, 24,242 employees attended and completed centralized training course
and 22,398 employees attended on-the-job training. 372 member counts of senior
management attended training for. among others, political theory knowledge,
strategy management, and 6,398 counts of management technology staff attended
training for management knowledge, computer, English, expertise and studying in
institutes and colleges. 9,779 production staff counts attended training for technical
grades, computer, equipment inspection, security knowledge. 22,398 employee
counts attended training for operating skills, 2,038 employees attended training
for team and group management knowledge, 48 employees attended training for
on-the-job studying for master's or doctor's degree and 5,607 employees counts
attended other trainings. As a result of these trainings, the overall quality of
employees had been improved, which enabled the Company to achieve production
and operation targets.

The Company has adopted a position and performance-based annual remuneration
packages for senior management; position-based linked remuneration and new
product development incentive packages for research personnel; sales/profit-
linked remuneration package for sales personnel; and position-based remuneration
packages for other personnel.

INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY

(8]

External investment

The Company’s external investment for 2003 aggregated to RMBE52 miilion,
representing a decrease of 52.09% from RMB1,361 million last year

In particular, the Company invested RMB432 million and RMB220 million, in Angang
Tian Tie and Heilongjiang Longmay Mining Group Co., Ltd. respectively.
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2. INVESTMENT OF THE COMPANY

(2) Investment projects not funded by proceeds and the progress thereof

Unit: RMB million

Project
budget Project Project
Project name amount progress proceeds
1,450mm cold rolling
production line 2.900 100% 40.5
High-performance cold rotling
silicon steel line 3,13C 89% —
Seamless ¢ 177 petro'eum pipeline 817 88% (22.23)
Wire production line renovation 776 41% —
Total 7,623 — 18.27

3. LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF
THE GROUP (PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRSs)

As of 31 December 2009, the Group had long term loans of RMB11,502 million {exclusive
of loans due within one yeas) with interest rates ranging from 4 86% 10 S 94% per
annum. Under the terms of 3 to 25 years, the loans wiil expire 1n 2011 to 2030. The loans
are mainly used for replenishing werking capital and project capital. The Group's long-
term loans due within one year amountec to AM37,653 million. With good creditability
and relatively hrgh profitability of preducts, the Group will have sufiicient cash 10 repay the
existing liabilities falling due in the future

As of 31 Becember 2009, the Group’s cash and-cash equivalents decreased by RMB732
million to RMB2,242 million frorn RMB2,974 million ir: the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to (1) net cash inflow from operating activities of &MB2,971 million; (2) net
cash outflow from investment activities of RMBS,240 million, (3) net cash inflow from
financing acivities of RMB1.537 million

As at the end of 2009, the Group’s total assets less current liabilities amounted 1o
RMB65.298 million, compared with RMB70,677 million at the end of 2008

Tne shareholders’ equity of the Groug amounted 1o RMBS53,657 million at the end of 2009,
compared with RMBS52,971 millior as at the end of 2908
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had capital commitments of RMB3,082 million, which
was primarily attnbutable to construction and renovation contracts entered nto but not
performed or performed partially and external investment contracts entered into but not
performed or performed partially

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group did not have a significant foreign currency nisk exposure arising from its
exported products and the import and procurement of raw materials for production and
equipments for projects as the Group adopts locked exchange razes 1o seitle the amounts
with main export and import agents.

GEARING RATIO

Under the'IFRSs, the ratio of the Group’s shareholders’ equity to liabilities tn 2009 was 1.08
times (2C08: 1.27 times).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES OR CORRECTION OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ERRORS OF THE GROUP FOR 2009, ANALYSIS ON SUCH CHANGES
AND REASONS FOR CORRECTION AS WELL AS THE IMPACT
THEREOF:

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the “Interpretation of Accounting
Standarcs No 3" (Car Kui [2009] No.8), the Ccmpany recognize safety production expenses
in “'special reserves”. As a result of retrospective adjustment of this item, tne beginn ng
balance of sharehclders’ equity has increased by RMBS mull:on
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1. STRUCTURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company operates strictly in accordance with the requirements of the Company Law,
Securities Law, relevant rules of the China Securities Regulatory Commussion as well as the
Hong Kong Lising Rules and the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and establishes a sound corporate governance system.

Four special committees have been set up by the Board with independent non-executive
directors acting as conveners of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, and accounting for the majority of such
committees’ members.

2. DISCHARGE OF DUTIES BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has formulated amendments to the Work System for Independent Directors
in accordance with relevant regulations and laws, mainly including the qualifications, duties
of independent non-executive directors, and the work procedures relating to this Annual
Report. The independent non-executive directors have discharged their duties in accordance
with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations, reviewed carefully the financial
and other relevant information of the Company and expressed their independent opinions
on significant matters of the Company in order to safeguard the interests of the Company
and the minority shareholders.

Attendance of the independent non-executive Directors at the Board meetings of the
Company in 2009 are set out as follows

Requirad
attendance &t
Name of independent the Boad Attendance Attendance by
non-executive Director mestings - in persan proxy Absence  Remark

(rumder of times)  fumber of tives)  (umber of Gmes)  (number of Gmes)

Li Shqua 7 7 C 0 Elezted s a1 indegecer| ciresior
of the Compary .n . s 2002
Ma Guoqang 7 7 9 G Eected &5 an 1ncepencent credtor of

the Compary in Jure 2009
Elected as an indepenger. irector
of the Comaany  June 2009
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor ? 7 0 € ERcted as an incepenoent Cirector
of 1 Comany 1 Sepesber 208

Liu Wer ?

-
o

W Xcur 4 4 k] € Tewumexd2d a5t Jure 2005
warg Lirses 4 4 3 ¢ derureenyed as 2 lure 2005
Lu Yogre 4 4 0 C Teruweexs.ed 35 ai Jure 2005
Fanes L Chak Yan 4 4 0 G Tenure exo:ed 33 2t lure 2008
Warg Xo00n 4 3 1 0 Tenyre expired 25 21 Jure 2003
:
N
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THE COMPANY IS COMPLETELY INDEPENDENT OF ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER IN TERMS OF BUSINESS, STAFF,
ASSETS, ORGANIZATION, FINANCE, ETC. SUCH INDEPENDENT
CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND OPERATION ARE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS. THE COMPANY HAS AN INDEPENDENT AND
COMPLETE BUSINESS AND IS CAPABLE OF OPERATING
INDEPENDENTLY.

APPRAISAL AND INCENTIVE MECHANISM FOR THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has set up position-based and risk-based annual salary distribution schemes
for the senior management personnel. The position-based salary scheme is linked to the
Company’s overall operating results while the risk-based salary system is linked to the
performance of and operational indicators assumed by individuals.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(1) Corporate Governance Practice

With shares listed on both the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, the Company is committed to improving its corporate governance in
accordance with international corporate governance stardards The Board and the
management understand that they are responsible for establishing good corporate
governance practices and procedures and the strict implementation of such practices
and procedures, in order to protect the interests of the shareholders and to maximise
the investment return for the shareholders in the long term

During the reporting period, the.Company has been in complance with all code
provis.ons and most of the recommended best practices set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as contained in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

X
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(2) Securities Transactions of Directors

The Board has adopted the relevant code for securities transactions by directors
in compliance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules. In the responses to the special
enquiries with each of directors, they have confirmed that they have complied with
the standards set out in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing securities transactions
by the employees of the Company who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

(3) Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the reporting period, the Board has been in compliance with the Rule
3.10(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which requires a company to maintain at
least three independent non-executive directors, and with the Rule 3.10(2) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, which requires one of those independent non-executive
directors to possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financal management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has
verified with its independent non-executive directors in respect of their independence
as follows: the Company has accepted the written confirmation of each of the
independent non-executive directors ascertaining that they are in compliance with

Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules in respect of theirr independence. The
Comgany 15 of the opinion that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
62 TV e
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees
@ Composition of the Board

The Sth session of the Board of the Company comprises 9 members including
1 Chairman, 4 executive directors and 4 independent non-executive directors.
The number of independent non-executive directors of the Company
represents over one-third of members of the 8oard.

The Board establishes 4 special commitiees, which are all comprised of
directors In particular, the majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are
independent non-executive directors who are also the conveners. There is at
least one independent non-executive director in the Audit Committee who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting. Each of the
special committees reports to the Board and submits proposals to the Board
for consideration and approval. The members of the 5th session of the Board
of the Company and their attendance in 2009 are as follows

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Zhang Xiaogang Chairman 100%
Yang Hua Executive Director 100%
Chen Ming Executive Director 100%
Yu Wanyuan Executive Director 100%
Fu hhui Executive Director 100%
Li Shijun Independent non-executive Director 100%
Ma Guogiang Independent non-executive Director 100%
Liu Wei Independent non-executive Director 100%
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor  Independent non-executive Director 100%

The directors (including independent non-executive directors) are subjeci to a
term of 3 years and may offer themselves for re-election
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)
[y Compostition of the Board (continued)

The 4th session of the Board of the Company comprises 14 members
including 1 Chairman, 7 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
5 independent non-executive directors, The number of independent non-
executive directors of the Company represents over one-third of members of
the Board. The members of the 4th session of the 8oard of the Company and
their attendance in 2009 are as follows:

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Zhang Xiaogang Chairman 100%
Tang Fuping Executive Director 100%
Yang Hua Executive Director 100%
Chen Ming Executive Director 100%
Wang Chunming Executive Director 100%
Lin Daqing Executive Director 100%
Fu Wei Executive Director 100%
Fu Jihut Executive Director, Secretary to
the Board 100%
Yu Wanyuan Non-executive Director 100%
Wu Xichun Independent non-executive Director 100%
Wang Linsen Independent non-executive Director 100%
Liu Yongze Independent non-executive Director 100%
Francis Li Chak Yan Independent non-executive Director 100%
Wang Xiaobin Inependednt non-executive Director 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

Duties and Operation of the Board

The Board 1s accountable to the general meetings and exercises the following
powers:

Vi

v

to convene and report to shareholders at the general meetings;

to implement the resolutions passed at the general meetings,;

to decide the Company’s business and investment glans;

1o prepare the Company’s annual budget and its implementation plan;

to prepare the Company's profit distribution plan and loss recovery
plan;

10 prepare the proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company’s
reg:stered capital, 1ssue of debentures or other securities as weil as
listing;

to draw up plans for significant acquisition by the Company, purchase
of the Company’s shares or the merger, division and dissolution of the
Company and change of corporste form;

to determine the Company’s internal management structure;

to appoint or dismiss the Company’s manager and the Secretary
10 the Board. to appoint or dismiss the Company’s deputy general
manager and other senicr management including financtal controller as
nominated by the manager, and determ.ne their remunerations, awards
a~d punishment;

to prepare the Company’s basic management system;

to orepare amengdments o the articles of association of the Company
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

@

Duties and Operation of the Board

Save for the resolutions in respect of the matters spectfied in sub-paragraphs
vi, vii and xi above, which shall be passed by votes of more than two-thirds of
the directors, the resolutions in respect of other matters specified above may
be passed by votes of at least half of the directors

The Board of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Company during the relevant
period.

In 2009, the Board of the Company held a total of 11 Board meetings.
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
The members of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee of the Sth

session of the Board of the Company and their attendance 1n 2009 are as
follows:

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Liu Wei convener 100%
Li Shijun member 100%
Yang Hua member 100%

Yu Wanyuan member 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee (continued)

The members of tne Remuneration and Evaluation Commitice of the 4th
session of the Soard of the Company and their attendance in 2009 are as
follows:

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
francis Ll Chak Yan  convener 100%
Tang fuping member 100%
Wang Chunming member 100%
Wu Xichun member A 100%
Liu Yongze member 100%

Main duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are

i to research the assessment criteria of directors and senior maragement;
to carry out the assessment and provide advices; and

1l to study and review the remuneratior policies and proposais of
employment for the directors and senior management

In 2009, the Remuneration and Evaluation Cornmittee of the Company held
1 meeting. During the meeting, the performance of the directors and senior
management personnel of the Company during 2008 was assessed and their
remunerations during 2008 were reviewed, and subrritted to the Board for
consideration.

In Aprii 2010, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee of the
Compary held a meeting, at which the performance of directors and senior
management personrel of the Company dur ng 2009 was zssessed anc the
cerresponding remunerations dunng 2009 were examined. The Remuneration
and Evaluation Committee was of op:nion that remunerations of directors and
senior management personnel in 2009 were linked to overalt operating results,
performance and operating indicators assumed by individuals, wnich played
an actwe role in stmulating the iniiatives of directors and senior management
personne: and was in line with the level of domrestic counterparts.
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)

@

Nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committee of the 5th session of the Board

of the Company and thewr attendance in 2009 are as follows

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Li Shijun convener 100%
Zhang Xiaogang member 100%
Ma Guogiang member 100%
Fu Jihui member 100%

The members of the Nomination Committee of the 4th session of the Board

of the Company and their attendance in 2009 are as follows

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Wang Linsen convener 100%
Zhang Xiaogang member 100%
Yang Hua member 100%
Wang Chunming member 100%
Lliu Yongze member 100%

Main duties of the Nomination Committee are:

i. to study the cniteria and procedures of selection of directors and senior

management, and provide suggestions,;

it to conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of directors and

senior management personnel; and

Hii. 10 assess the candidates for directors and senior management and

provide relevant recommendations.
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)
@ Nomination Committee (continued)

In 2009, the Nomination Committee of the Company held 4 meetings
to nominate directors and senior management in accordance with the
qualification requirements and the relevant laws and regulations and the
aruicles of association of the Company and to submit the same for the
consiceration of the Board

® Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee of the Sth session of the Board of the
Company and therr attendance in 2009 are as follows:

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Ma Guogiang convener 100%
Liu Wei member 100%
Yu Wanyuan member 100%
Chen Ming member 10C%

The members of the Audit Committee of the 4th sess on of the Board of the
Compary and their attendance in 2009 are as follows:

Attendance
Name Position in the Board to meetings
Liu Yongze convener 100%
Yu Wanyuan member 100%
Wang Linsen member 160%
Francis Li Chak Yan  member 100%
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)
® Audit Commitiee (continued)

Main duties of the Audit Committee are

to make proposals in relation to the engagement and change of
external auditors;

i, to supervise the Company's internal auditing system and implementation;

it to facilitate communication tetween internal auditing department and
external auditors;

iv to review financial information of the Company and its disctosure; and

V. to review the Company’s internal control system

The Audit Committee of the Company reviewed the internal control systern
and report of the Company with reference to the latest requirements set out
in Rule C.2.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange,
taking into account of the resources of the accounting ana financial reporting
of the Company, the sufficiency of qualifications and experience of its staff
and the training courses for employees and the relevant budget. It will also
submit the reviewed interna! control report to the Board cf the Company for
consideration

In 2009, the Audit Commitiee of the Company held a total of 4 meetings.
During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annua financial statements anc finéncial information set out in the
quarterly, irterim and annual reports of the Company, reviewed the internal
cortrol system of the Company, and made recommendations in relation to
the engagement of external auditors

Tne Audit Committee and the maragement of the Company have jointly
inspected the Company’s accounting policy and have discussed on the issues
in relation to the auditing, internal control and financial statements of the
Company, including a review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009.
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(4) The Board and its Special Committees (continued)
& Audit Committee (continued)

In accordance with relevant reguilations of CSRC and Shenzhen Siock
Exchange, the Audit Committee of the Company performed their duties with
due diligence, and summarnised its performance as follows:

Opinions after reviewing the 2009 Annual Report

The Company’s firanctal statements for 2009 was prepared based on
the requirements of the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises;
expenditures were reasonable; revenues. expenses and profits were
recognized truly and accurately; relevant provisions were made as specified
by the laws, regulations and relevant systems, which reflected the Company’s
financial positions and operating results and cash flow on a true, accurate and
complete basis; it was approved to be submitied to the 3oard of the Company
for consideration.

Review opinicns on the Audit Work Summary by Accountants for 2009

Zhong Rui Yue Hua Certified Public Accountants and RSM Nelson Wheeler
performed ther duties durng the auditing the Company’s financial statements
for 2009 In accordance with relevart laws and regutations of the PRC and
Hong Kong and in compliance with professional ethics of accountants, and
expressed their opimion on the Company's firancial statements, enabl'ng
the Company to satisfy the requrements from the domestic and overseas
regulatory institutions.

Review opinions on the Appointment of RSM China Certified Public
Accountants and RSM Nelsor Wneeler as Domestic and Overseas Auditors of
the Company for 2010

The Board 1s proposed to appoint RSM China Certified Public Accountants and
RSM Nelson Wheeler as domestic and overseas auditors of the Company for
2018 with a term from tne close of Annual General Meeting for 2009 to the
tme of convening of Annual General Meeting for 2010
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
(5) Chairman and General Manager

The positions of Chairman and General Manager of the Company are assumed by
different persons with definite division of duties.

Outies of the Chairman:

i to preside over the shareholders’ general meetings and to convene and
preside over the Board meetings;

ii. to supervise and check the implementation of resolutions of the Board;
iii 10 sign the share certificates issued by the Company; and

v 1o exercise other powers conferred by the Board

Duties of the General Manager:

The General Manager of the Company reports to the Board and exercises the
following powers:

i to take charge of the Company’s operation and management and to organize
and implement the resolutions of the Board and report to the Board;

i, to organize and implement the Company’s annual business plan and
investment plan;

iii., to make proposals in relation to the Company’s internal organizational
structure;

% to make proposals «n relation to the Company’s basic management system:

v. 1o prepare the basic rules and regulations of the Company;

vi. to make proposals in relation to the appointment or termination of
appointment of the deputy general manager or other senior management

personnel of the Company (including the financia! controller);

vii 1o appoint or dismiss the management personnel other than those required to
be appointed or dismissed by the Board; and

viii.  other powers as conferred under the articles of association of the Company or
[ granted by the Board.
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5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
(6) Auditors’ Remuneration

RSM China Certified Public Accountants and RSM Nelson Wheeler were appointed at
the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company as the domestic and international
auditors of the Company, respectively, for the year 2003. The remuneration of
the Company's auditors for 2009 amounted to RMB6.10 million. The Company
reimbursed the auditors out of pocket expenses arising from auditing. RSM China
Certified Public Accountants and RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public Accountants
had provided auditing services o the Company for two consecuive years

(7) Internal control

To further improve the internal control system, in accordance with the requirements
of the Company Law, Securities Law, relevant rules of the China Securities
Regulatory Commussion, the Hong Kong Lising Rules, the Rules Governing the
Lising of Shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Rules for Corporate
Governance of Listed Companies and Guidance for Internal Control of Listed
Company of the Shenzhen Stock Excnange, the Company amended “Procedures
for Adm:nistration of Internal Ccntrol of Lisied Company” (2010 revised) ({ - &
AR EE I B P H# X)), To integrate and improve the internal control system, the
“Handbook on Outstanding and Effic.ent Management” (¢ & i 41 % 1 3 1)) was
prepared based on a systematic integration of the requirements of internal control
system and the requirements of the Company’s management mode on outstanding
and efficent performance, with reference to the actual situation of the needs for
operation development, organizational structure and operating targets The internal
control system of the Company has fully taken into consideration of regulations
and laws as weli as other relevant requirements including the listing rules. There
are no material shortcomings and abnormality in the completeness, systematism,
efficiency and compliance in the current internal control system, thus providing
reasonable assurance to hones: and legal operation, true and reliable financial
reports, improvement in operation efficiency and results and avoidance of predicabe
significant risks of the Company. Accordingly, it will belp the Company realize its
operational targets and gradually perfect its performance
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
(7) Internal control (continued)

The Company has been equpped with internal auditing mechanism, which requires
an overall evaluation of the internal controi system cn a regular basis. The daily
auditing 15 exercised by functional departments and front units of the Company
by adopting on a uniform basis of the mode of “internal review of management”,
focusing on activities including examination of financial control, operational control,
legal comgliance control, and risk contrcl. Moreover, the auditing also covers the
resources for accounting and finanaial reporting, sufficiency of qualifications and
experiences of employees and the sufficiency of the training courses for employees
and the related budget. Major part of internal control mechanism is 1o supervise and
ensure the efiective operation of internal control system

The Board of Directors has conducted auditing for the operation of internal control
system of the Company tn 2009, reporting that the internal contro; system s
sound, comprehensive and effective, and the resources for accounting ard financial
report'ng, the qualifications and experiences of employees and the training courses
for employees and the retevant budgets are sufficient

(8) Establishment of “Accountability System for Major Errors in Disclosure
of Information in the Annual Report” (FHUBRRERXEHBRNERR
FE))

On 19 April 2010, the 10th meeting of the 5th session of the Board of the Company
considered and approved the "Accountability System for Major Errors in Disclosure
of Information in the Annual Repor:” {EBRIZL ARBEAZERFRALEY)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

(9)

EIG X ol

Special measures on corporate governance

Pursuant to the relevant notice concerning good practices on corporase governance
of listed companies and an array of principles uphold by the CSRC, the Company
continued to develop its corporate governance measures In order to enhance the
sales network, improve the sales system, the Company and Argang Internationai
Economic Trading Co., Ltd.* (HRMEMERE M S K D &) ("Angang
International Trading Company”) entered into the “Joint Venture Agreement
regarding the establishment of Angang Trading Co., Ltd.* by Angarg Steel Company
urmited* and Angang International Economic Trading Co., Lid * “ ({BIERH AR
AERBANERAREAMSUROGNBAATHEENRIIRA T2 INSEIGHR))
on 28 August 2009, pursuant io which the parties jointly invested in a company with
imited liability engaged in the domestic trading of steel products The company has
a registered capital of RMBS573 mitlion. The registered capital was held as to 51% by
the Company and as to 49% by Angang International Trading Company

The transaction was approved by the Company on the third extraordinary general
meeting in 2009 of the Company or 28 December 2009. The said company is in the
process ot establishment,
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Significant
Events

1. MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

The Group was not involved in any maternal litigation or arbitration in 2009
2. EQUITY IN OTHER LISTED COMPANIES HELD BY THE COMPANY

Unit: RMB8 million

Change in
Percentage Loss and owner's
inthe | Book value gain interest
Initial | company’s | attheend | during the | during the
Stock Abbre- investment share of the reporting reporting Source of
Code viition amount capital period period period | Available shares
600961 Ihuzhoy §1 19% 161 0 87 | Avalable-ior-sale Subscription
Smeliet inaacal asse’s 0f Shares
GioLd
Total - € - 1€ 0 81| - -
3. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
Net profit
contributed
to the
Company | Whether a
sincethe | connected Whether all
date of | transaction (i ownership
acquisition | so, state the of assets Whether
Counterpartand | Date of to the year- |  basis of involved all debts
assets acquired acquisition | Consideration end | pricing) transferred | transfesred
(RM3 million)
Acquasition from January 2009 | 85 0 1A conrecied Yes Yes
Angang Holc:ng of | transaction The
the assets relating consideration 15
to the electroslag determined based
remelting project on the appraised
in progress value provided by
Beifng Yue Hua
De Wei Assets
Valuation Corpany
Limited
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4. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

4]

Continuing connected transactions

In 2009, the Group purchased a portion of the raw materials, energy and services
necessary for its production operations from, and sold some of its products to
Angang Holding and its subsidiaries. The transaction methods and prices were
in compliance with the provisions of Supply of Matenials and Services Agreement
entered tnto between the parties

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties.

As 2 percentage
of the
contractual
value of similar

129 (onzent

e +e207ed o the *( usioms
. the cracedag hali-yee” iepo”

he “iway irersoantatien <ost fiem be wquan
Fort 1z the Comoany a3 weli 3s adpsiment
whect 1o the grace of the 1o concensiate
wh ot way bases o
$race ¢i e
tta Comaary 1= tre prececing belfye

evary * pecertage po At icease o 0k

T e gade of w0~ conzen:

be 10

a2, 1e size wll

0" cac-eased Dy VB Giten-e
Argang Foldizy 2 edged io give dsccent aer
e highest ke s 2071 mee The dsccaat
13t 15 5% of average impeit anze 9t wen
0wentrate ceaoriec 1y the PR custo ¢ the

grececirg nal'-year

ftem Pricing principhe Price Amount transactions
{FMS mition) %)
Iran Concentraze mpot pice cf FRC|  RMET4CR0Ar: 6.475 LERT]
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Events wontinued
4. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(1) Continuing connected transactions (continued)
1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties:
(continued)
As a percentage
of the
contractual
value of similar
Item Priting principle Price Amount transactions
(RM8 m3bon) {%)
Pettet Based on the average pice of pelleis purchased|  RMBIOS/ionne 4835 295
oy the Company from 1ndepeadert third parties
ia 1he preced ng saltyear repoited penod For
every ! derceatage point increase ¢f decrease
1 the grade cf pelets, the crice w.ll de
120183500 OF dereases by AM3i0iotne
Sni ore The price of ron concest-aie plus processing | RM3893oane 2417 10000
cost of the suppker 1 the preceding hall-
year reported cenod olus 10% gross profit
{of whkh, the processing cost 1s not hgher
tan that of sirrar procucts pocuced by the
Comdary)
Scrap sizel Market pnzes - p) 4203
Billets - (3 5085
Subtozal 14,086 €212
Eleciricniy State price RMBO SO/AWR 1,844 3835
Water W23 230 83 10000
Subozel 1927 k8
lre 012 Not a.gher har. the selling ¢rices offerec by EM3S¥:51%e 13€ 8508
Uime powdz: rg'evart members ¢f Angang Holdirg i¢ AVR267iorne 757 339
Relactory indepeadent thad parties B 1% e
matefidk
Other zacillary % 150
Soere peris - 335 5t
ard 10¢is
Subiotal 1,45C 1388
Total - - 17,473 4531
e
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MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1) Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1) Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties.

ke

NS e s WL

T~k ey e
¢

{continued)
As a percentage
of the contractual
value of similar
Item Pricing principle Amount transactions
RM3 midor) %)
Kailway '3 wpoiation Sate e £60 5118
Roac warsporiano Ma-ke: pices 328 B3
Agexy senvices 15% &5 (3mm3si0n inot roe ir a1 te 255 Uiy
— impat of 2w matarzls, [Cha] laned oy 152 main stase oot érs
T, 2101t zerpanes 3¢ Thinay o free of charge
CToness éd
arg lary mater &ls
- xport ot procusts
o st saks o°
pradysts
kegz © a7d maatenance of Market prces 1083 7318
equipment
Des5:30 an< 20 "2er.0¢ &V (e 1,154 3367
Consic.tor poect agersy [ Free o charge - -
and marage RIVCes
10a facliies, vocations' | Masee: orces 5 3485
eLenon, of e
Tas 59, asklon senies
Company vehi & sevizas 3 474
Crarge fo arange~art o 2 553
2us 1ess 2rd meeting
epense;
Craenirg sewizes fapecses of ancur, malenes and Managerent ] 9164
SeeuTY savice were paid basee or et 2 19 6532
Newscaper ard cther $ate ote H 3BY

pub a2 915

EITXTE
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4. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1) Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Purchase of products and receipt of labour services from related parties:

{continued)

As 2 percentage
of the contractual
value of similar
Item Pricing principle Amount transactions
(RMB milkon) %)
Te'ecommurkaten tusiness | State avce ¢ deprec ation <os: plus martzrarce 8 82.65
and senices Inormation wosts
system
Zamisnmental protectior a~a | Steie pe 6 87.49
SECUTITY INSpection servces
Susply of hea: State pree 3 ny
PIoditicn cocrainaton a1g | £xpenses ot labour, maierals ard managemest A7 8716
maintenance were paid based on market prces
2 00°d 13101 ang 16 7618
manienance
Frocessiag with supplied Frocessing cost plus gross profit margin of no - -
maleriay noe thar S%
Toul - 6.034 Q703
Interest on func foc seti’ement | Siate price 8 a767
Loans 212 2 scouriec ireves: | Stae pe 33 b

Note:

In which, for the twelve months ended 31 December 2009, steel products
provided by Angang International Trading Company as a domestic and ove'seas
agent amounted to 7,300,000 tonnes and 910,000 tonnes respectively
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4.

MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(§))

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2)

PP SN

‘a? e amek e B

Sale of products and provision of labour services to related parties

As a percentage
of the
contractual

value of similar

Item Pricing principle Price Amount transactions
(RMS miifon) %
Codroled sheets | The seiling price offerec oy the Company to the | 3M33,557801%¢ 1514 sn
Heawy Flaies _ independent 1aid paies, Sor PIONSON REW | pu; 951 onre 39 SN
wie rods orodurs ceve'epec for the sher Dany, e WB3.21 Ronne sa1 "
pike 6 based on the ma:«et pre If tre Térnet
Heavy section prxe ensts, if the market pice does ot exsi, M35, 360R0nne 9 05
Hot rcled shee's the prce 15 basad cr. ‘e peacip'e cf the cost | AVEZ.04100nne 2m 1067
Meaunpite plus & -easorabe picts, wh e the "eascradle| aw3303:a010e [ 1%
Gahanized sheets prehit iate s not hgner than the average gross M33,7280nne m .8
proht maigin of relaied prodts provded by
Co'out ccated ooV emoe: ¢ g € fiVB4,89' Aonne 4 038
sheers
Seamless oipes RMZ3, 3550000 %9 39
Volien “2a AVEZB4iM0nre is $i18
Ccke ANVBEBA NN 11 100
Chemuzel by- - 2% 13
procJcts
Subiotal - 6,096 28
Scrapieppar Marks! ices - 35 ‘0000
Abzncoreg - u 809
maieniahy
o sve The citlerence ‘1om he Basc oree of sinter ore - R
powder s the cost of sriering process of Angasg
Holding
Sebtzial 123 sene
Total - 6,219 59

N R

PRy )
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4. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(1) Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2)

Sale of products and provision of labour services to related parties (continued)

As a percentage
of the
contractual

value of similar

Hem Pricing principle Price Amount transactions
(RMS m2iion} %)
New water Saie prce RM82 62 /tonne 4 9530
Ciean recyclec Producuon cost plus & gross p-of:2 marg 1 of 5% | IMB3D 74 Koane Ki %95
water
it water RMB2 82 fionne 03 10000
G35 RMBRE 37/G) 330 & 63
.25t farnace gas RM24.20/5. 43 100 00
Sieam RM339 SWG) 8 9894
irogen RM3119 35 /KM3 07 9.00
Orygen RMBASE €1 XM3 3 e
Argon RMBSS8 28 /AM3 0¢ 18
Compressed 3 RMB38G 50 xM3 1 99N
Unusec Foi watei AMBE §5/C) 27 8737
Froduci testing Market prices - [} 8367
serne
Transportatica - 06 100 00
servce
Total - - Si? 3

The above connected transactions of the Group were all settled in

cash.

Explanation as to the necessity and continuity of connected transactions:
production of steel and iron is on a continuous basis. The Company relies
on the supply of most of its raw materials from Angang Holding and 1its
subsidiaries and a portion of products of the Company were sold to Angang
Holding and its subsidiaries. Thereiore, the above continuing connected
transactions are necessary to the smooth operation and production of the

Group
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)
2) Sale of products and provision of labour services to refated parties (continued)

The above connected transactions, as confirmed by the independent non-
executive Directors of the Board who are independent of the controlling
shareholder, were entered into @ in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company, @ on normal commercial terms or on the terms not less
favourable 1o the terms offered by independent third parties; or on the terms
which are fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned if no comparable reference 1s avalable; @ in accordance with
the terms of Supply of Materials and Services Agreement which are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its shareho'ders as a
whole; and @ in 2009, the total amount of ongoing connected transactions
of the Company did not exceed the relevant caps as set out in Supply of
Materials and Services Agreement.

The auditors to the Company have reviewed the above connected transactions
and issued a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions @ have received the approval of the Board; @ so far
as they are aware, there 1s no instance of non-compliance with provisions
of Supply of Matenals and Services Agreement; and @ the actual amounts
of such connected transactions did not exceed the relevant caps under the
wawer

Connected transactions arising from transfer of assets and investment
1) Acquisition of assets

The 33rd meeting of the 4th session of the Board was held by the Company
on S lanuary 2009. The Board approved the Proposal for Acquisition by the
Company from Anshan Iron and Steel Group Complex of the Assets Relating
to the Electroslag Remelting Project :n Progress. The appraised value of
such assets relating to the electrosiag remelting was RMB85,424,241.93
as appraised by Beijing Yue Hua De Wei Assets Valuation Company
Umited. The consideration determined based on the appraised value was
RMB85,424,241.93. The acquisition of assets was funded by internal
resources.




aompany Limited

e

Significant

e
I seds

PUCLIC

Events wontiouedy

170

84

4.

MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2) Connected transactions arising from transfer of assets and investment
(continued)

2) Investment

The Sth meeting of the Sth session of the Board was held by the Company
on 28 August 2009. The Board approved the signing of “Joint Venture
Agreement regarding the establishment of Angang Trading Co., Ltd.* by
Angang Steel Company Limited* and Angang International Economic Trading
Co, A" BEHRBARLNEENBERSANS BRI IMNER
TRIEH AR T QTS R BM)) with Angang International Trading
Company, pursuant to which the registered capital amounted to RMB573
million. The Company paid RMB318,340,900 in cash premium, of which
RMB292,230,000 was contributed to the registered capnal, representing
51% of the registered capital. Angang International Trading Company paid
RMB306,337,000 assessed asset premium, of which RMB280.770,000 was
contributed to the registered capital, representing 49% of the registered
capital. The contributions of both parties in excess of the registered capital
were accounted for in capital reserve.

(3) Amounts due to or from related parties of the Company or guarantee
provided from related parties to the Company

There was no claims or obligations between the Company and the connected parties
tor non-operating purpose as at 31 December 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, RMB1.0 billion of the Company’s bank loan was
guaranteed by Angang Holding.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR IMPLEMENTATION

(1)

2)

(3)

(@)

The Company did not enter into any trust, contractual or lease arrangement during
the reporting period.

There was no material guarantee granted by the Company at the end of reporting

The Company did not entrust any financial management during the reporting period

There were no other material contracts entered into by the Company during the

Opinions of independent Directors in relation to cumulative and current external
guarantees and capital occupied by the controlling shareholders and other related

parties:

In accordance with the princples of the “Notice in Relation to Certain Issues Concerning
the Regulation of Funds Transfer Between Listed Companies and Connected Parties, and
External Guarantees Granted by Listed Companies” {2003} No. 56 (the “Notice”) issued
by CSRC, we have faithfully and carefully rewewed and finalized the Company’s external
guarantee and flow of funds between the Company and its related parties, and hereby
make the following statements and opinions

Q)]

(S)

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements of the Listing rules since
1ts listing, and has not provided any guarantee to its controlling shareholders, any
other connected party which has a less than 50% shareholding in the Company, any
non-legal person unit or any individual

The Company has not provided any guarantee for any other company during the

During the reporting period, none of the controlling shareholders or other related
parties had occupied the Company’s capital

To date, the Company has not been subjected to penalty, criticism or condemnation
by the securities regulatory authorities in respect of the Company's external

In strict compliance with relevant regulations, the Company has clearly specified
relevant procedures and requirements concermng external guarantee in the Articles
oi Association, The Company also formulated Administrative Procedures for External
Guarantee so as to strengthen the management of the external guarantee. The
regulations of the Articles of Association of the Company and Administrative
Procedures for External Guarantee are in compliance with the requirements of the
relevant domestic and foreign regulations. )
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6. UNDERTAKINGS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

(1) Ouring the reformation of non-tradable shares, Angang Holding, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, in addition to the undertakings required under the
relevant laws and regulations, has made the following special undertakings in
relation to the State-owned Share Reform Plan:

1) The shares held by Angang Holding following the implementation of the
State-owned Share Reform Plan will be subject to a trading moratorium of 36
months from the listing date of such shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
except for the shares corresponding to the exerase of the warrants by any
holder of tradable A shares

2) for the tradable A shares of the Company issued to Angang Holding for the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in ANSI, such shares will also be
subject to a trading moratorium of 36 months from the day on which the
shares are deposited to Angang Holding’s account.

3) Angang Holding will maintain @ minimum of 60% shareholding in the
Company following the completion of the acquisiion of the entre equity
interests in ANSI till the end of 2010

4) Angang Holding will reimburse other shareholders for any loss arising from 1its
failure to fulfil the whole or part of 1ts undertakings.

S5) Angang Holding will arrange for the deposit of the relevant shares of the
Company as compensation under the State-owned Share Reform Plan with
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, Shenzhen
Branch to ensure fulfilment of its obligations under such arrangement.

6) Angang Molding will pay for all the costs arising from the implementation of
the State-owned Share Reform Plan.

Angang Holding further undertakes that:
“Angang Holding will perform its undertakings on a good faith basis and accepts
the liabilities thereunder. Unless the transferee agrees and is eligible and capable to

make the undertakings, Angang Holding will not transfer any share held by it.”

During the reporting period, none of breach of Angang Holding's undertakings was
found

¢x 3
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6. UNDERTAKINGS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (continued

(2)  On 24 October 2007, the Company and Angang Holding entered into the Supply
of Materials and Services Agreement (2008-2009), pursuant to which, Basic Price of
iron concentrate is "not higher than the average free-on-board import price reported
to the PRC Customs for the previous six months (”Average Import Price”) plus
railway transportation expenses from Bayuquan Port to the Company and adjustment
according to grade. Among other things, adjustment according to grade is on the
basis of weighted average grade of iron concentrate imported in the previous six
months. Price adjustment for every 1% of grade is RMB10 / tonne.” Angang Holding
made the undertaking to give a 5% discount to the maximum price of Average
Import Price which was confirmed by Basic Price. The undertaking shall be valid from
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2009

During the reporting period, none of breach of Angang Holding's undertakings was
found. :

(3)  On 28 October 2008, the Company received a notice from Angang Holding that
according to the Approval Reply Relating to the Whitewash Waiver to Angang
Holding from General Offer to Acquire Shares in Angang Steel Company Limited*
from CSRC, Angang Holding intended to increase the shareholding in the Company
from the secondary markets within 12 months since the date of share acquisition
(ie. 28 October 2008) in a quantity no more than 361,000,000 shares or 4.99% .
of the issued shares of the Company. On 28 October 2008, Angang Holding had i
acquired additional 1,000,000 shares in the Compavny through trading system of :
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, accounting for 0.014% of total share capital of the
Company !

Angang Holding undertook to the Company that it would not reduce 1ts
shareholding in the Company within the period of shareholding increase and the
statutory period.

During the reporting period, none of breach of Angang Holding's undertakings was
found

v~
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6. UNDERTAKINGS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (continued

4) On 27 October 2009, the Company and Angang Hold'ng entered into the Supply
of Materials and Services Agreement (2010-2011), pursuant to which, Basic Price of
ron concentrate 1s “not tugher than the average free-on-board import price reported
to the PRC Customs for the previous six months (“Average Import Price”) plus
railway transpcrtation expenses from Bayuquan Port to the Company and adjustment
according to grade. Among other things, adjustment according 1o grade is on the
basis of weighted average grade of iron concentrate imported in the previous six
months. Price adjustment for every 1% of increase or decrease in iron concentrate
grade 15 RMB10 / tonne.” Angang Holding made the undertaking on 4 December
2009 to give a discount of 5% of Average Import Price to the maximum price which
was confirmed according to the Basic Price The vahdity of undertaking shall be the
same as the Supply of Materials and Services Agreement (2010-2011)
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The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Friday, 18 June 2010, details of

which and the proposed resolutions are set out in the accompanying notice of the annual general

meeting
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Audit Report

Zhongrui YueHua shenzi[2010]N0.05419
All Shareholders of Angang Steel Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Angang Steel Company Limited
(the Company), wrich comprise consolidated balance sheet and the balance sheet of the parent
company as at 31 December 2009, the consolidated incorme statement and the income statement
of the parent company, the consol.dated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of the parent company, the consolidated cash flow
statement and the cash flow statement of the parent company for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements

MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management s responsible for the preparation of these financial statements n
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business [nterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finarce of the People’s Republic of China. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying approariate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opimon on these financial statemen:s based on our audit
We performed our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Cerufied Publ.c
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit involves pesforming proceaures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financ:al statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgmen:, including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement c¢f the
firanciai statements, whether due to fraud or error in making those risk assessments; the auditor
consigers Internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements :n order
to design audrt procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bu: not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internai control An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of account:ng policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by managemen:, as wel as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that the aud:t evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
aopropriate to provide a basis for our audit opnion
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Audit Report (continued)

OPINION

in our opimon, the financial statements comply with the requirements of China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic
of China and present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and the
financiat position of the parent company as at 31 December 2009, the consolidated results of
operations and cash flows, the results of operations and cash flows of the parent company for
the year then ended.

Zhongruquehua Certified Public Accountants Ceriified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Cao Bin
Wang Ruiqi

China Beljing
19-04-2010
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Prepared by | Angang Steet Company timsted
At as 31 December 2009
Monetary unit Rmb mulion

Assets Note 31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008
Current assets:
Cash at banks and on hand (1) 2,242 2,974
Trading financial assets
Bitls receivable 72) 3,396 2,583
Accounts receivable 7(3) 1,770 1,235
Prepayments 7(5) 6,212 2,731
Interest recevable
Other receivables 7(4) 19 78
Inventories 7(6) 10,658 10,372
Non-current assets due within 1 year
QOther current assets
Total current assets 24,297 19,973
Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets 7(7) 161 45
Long-term equity investments 7(9) 1,629 2,262
Investment real estate
Fixed assets 7(10) 53,805 43,252
Construction In progress 7(11) 10,588 12,547
Construction material 7(12) 2,334 6,242
Intangible assets 7(13) 7.061 6,761
Deferred income tax assets 7{14) 1,112 1,102
QOther non-current assets
Total non-current assets 76,690 72,211
Total assets 100,987 92,184
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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e e o i Consolidated Balance Sheet (continved)

Monetary umt Rmb muilion

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans 7(16) 13,710 7,570
Bills payable 7017) 3,509 4,585
Accounts payable 7(18) 3,318 3,427
Advances from customers 7(19) 5,942 3,629
Employee benefits payable 7(20) 326 329
Tax and surcharges payable 7(21) (2,296) (2,771)
Other payables 7(22) 3,283 3,523
Non-current liabilities due within 1 year 7(23) ’ 7,653 1,031
Cther currert liabilities 7(24) 42
Total current liabilities : 35,487 21,323
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans 1(25) 11,502 17,565
Deferred income tax liabilities 7014) 61 47
Other non-current Liab:lities 7(26) 139 141
Total non-current liabilities 11,702 17,753
Total liabilities 47,189 39,076
Shareholders’ equity:
Share caprial 727} 7,235 7.235
Capital reserve 7(28) 31,510 31,423
Specia! reserve 7(29) 50 21
Surplus reserve 7(30) 3,357 3,280
Undistributed profit 7(31) 10,280 11,149
Differences from translation of foreign currency
Subtota: of shareholaers’ equity attributable
to parent company 52,432 53,108
Minority interest 1,366

53,798

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 100,987 92,184
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
Monetary unit Rmb mahon

Items Note 2009 2008
1. Operating income 70,126 79,616
Including” Operating income from main bustness 2(32) 70,126 79,616
2. Operating costs 69,523 75.844
Including Operating costs for main business 3 63,712 66,511
Business tax and surcharges 7(33) 183 948
Selling experses 1,081 1.687
Administrative expenses 2,962 3,798
Financia' expenses 902 694
Impairment losses on assets 7(35) 683 2,108

Aad gains/losses from fair value varatior

(*-" means loss)
Investment income {"-“ means loss) 7(34) 186 96
Including. Income from nvestment in jointy

caontrolled enterprises and associates 176 80
3. Operating profit (*-* means loss) 789 3,868
Add Non-operating income 7(36) 93 33
Less Non-operating expenses 37 39 69
Including" Less on non-current assets disposal 39 63
4 Profit before income tax (“-" means loss) 843 3,832
Less Income tax expenses 7{38) 157 851

S. Net profit for the year

(*-" means net loss) 686 2,981
Net profit attributable to shareholder of
parent company 727 2,981
Gany/losses attributable o minority shareholder (41)
6. Earning per share
(1) Basic earnings per share 7(39) 0.100 0412
2) Diluted earnings per snare 7(39) 0.100 0.412
7. Other comprehensive income 7(40) 87 (170)
8. Total comprehensive income 773 2,811
Share of total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholder of parent company 814 2811

Share of total comprehensive income

atiributab'e to munonty interest 41)
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiacgang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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rewetty sgmsecomanr s Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Monetary unit' Rmb miltion
Items Note 2009 2008
1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering of services 72,934 92,862
Refund of tax and fare received 800
Other cash received relating to operating actvities 7(41) 292 59

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services 63,879 68,780
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 2,554 2,589
Cash paid for all types of taxes 2,255 8611
Other cash paid relating to operating activities 7(41) 789 1.003
Sub-total of cash outflows 69,477 80,983
Net cash flow from operating activities 7(42) 4,549 11,938
2. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from return of investiments
Cash receved from investment income 47 17
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other lorg-term assets 23 5
Nei cash received from the disposal of

subsidiaries and other operating units
Other cash received relating to

investment activities 7(41) 1,730 409
Sub-total of cash inflows 1,800 431
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 6,870 14,684
Cash paid for acquisition of investments 143 1,301
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries

and other operating units
Other cash paid relating to investment activities
Sub-total of cash outflows 7,013 15,985
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement et s siestcompany e

For the yeor enced 31 December 2009
Monetary unit Rmbd mithon

Items Note 2009 2008

3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash receved from absort:ng investment
Including. received of subsidiary fror
minority shareholder
Cash received from borrowings 20,140 16.220
Other casn received relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows 20,140 16,220
Cash paia for setthng cebt 17,084 11,795
Cash paid for distribution of dwidends or profit or

reimbursing interest 3,086 5.509

Including. dwidends or profit paid to
minonty interest

Other cash payments relating to financing actvities 7(41) 38 59
_______ e o S 2028136
eeeee Mot cosh flow from financng actonties e 68 .00
4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents

5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7(42) (732) (¢,759)
Add Cash and cash equivalents at year-begin 7(42) 2,974 7,733
6. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 7(42) 2,242 2,974
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Monetary unit:Rmb miliion

P
oo™ Consolidated Statement of changes in shareholders' equity
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2009
Shareholders' equity attributable to parent company
Less: Surplus  General Undistri- Total of
Share  Capital treasury  Special  public sk buted Minority shareholders’
Iterms @pital  reserve stock  reserve  reseve  reserve profit Other  equity  equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2008 [P KVE) 3,0 N4
Ads Charge of accacas il (i H S
Correcion of Last 3cauning
e D18
Qther
2. Balance as at 1 Jan. 2009 133 3.8y a 318 11,149 5308
3. Increase/decrease in 2009
(*-* means loss) 81 il n (855 1,365 50
') Netcrohi m “n 635
(7, Clher compienarsve i(am £ 87
Sustets. ¢ (") and () 87 1 1) m
31 Inpat 250 :acuced casita of
OWNEs 1.407 407
1 Caniial npyt oy cwre's 1467 L7
- Anount of sheresbased
22y
ownet's gLy
Q) i {1.596) 11519
1 ARPICPIFING 3PS “2serve n an
n Apprepnat g getenl
1% reseve
.1 Cstibateen to Starsheiders 11.315) {515
w Jiter
(S; Crarsier satealy of
sharehakiers eq: ly
' sletng caaile “eserve
sheve a0l
it Treangiesrrg surplus reserve
Intc share Lapia.
i Waking Jp 1sses wain
su°zlis resene
w Otrai
Asprocraingad usig
9 il
1 Azpreprater numsa ¢t
this geat 3k 3t
4 Using nuTbe” o this ea* 3
¢ Balance as at 31 Dec. 2009 135 35N S0 337 10.28) 1368
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by : Angang Steef Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Consolidated Statement of changes

A shareholders' equity e

Monewary unit. Rmb milhion
2008
Shareholders’ equity attributable to parent company
Less: Surphuis  General  Undistri- Total of
Share  Capital treasury  Special  public sk buted Minority shareholdery’
Items capital  reserve stock  reserve reserve reserve  profit  Other  equity  equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2007 1235 3158 2981 12,448 54.255
A3d Change ¢ accountirg pokcy " i
Cortectior 0F Last ceaurting )
[ H 1Y
Otwer
2. Balance as at 1 Jan. 2008 7235 31,993 " 1,581 12,448 54266
3. Increase/decrease in 2008
{*-" means loss} (170) 10 %9 {1,297 (1.15)
(1) Netprofit 298 2981
(2} Other comprehensive LCome (170) (170}
Sutsotat of (1) :d {2} (170) 2,981 281
(3) laput and reduzed captal of
ownes
+ Caotainp.: oy owrers
- Amcea: of shates-2aseC
payment recciced 0
owner's equity
. Other
(4)  Prehi; dstnbubion 99 (4.218) 3.979)
i. Appropaiating surpiys tesenve 99 (299)
- Appropriaiing genesal
nsk reserve
21 Distnbuton tc Sharetolders 13.979 (3579
rv. Other
{35 Trans'e" irternaly of
sharer0ide”’s equity
1 Traagterneg aptal veserve
inio share Cap1y
u Trarsterong serplus reserve
inte share capntal
1 Making up losses with
SUTphIS fesenve
iv. Otter
(6} Appropr.ating and vsrg
soe0al reserve 19 )
1 Appropratier aumbe: ¢f
%S ye3r 3¢ 4
1 Jsagnumher of s year et e
© Balanceas at 31 Dec 2008 75 n4n N3 1,145 53108
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Prepared by - Angang Steel Company Limited
As at 31 December 2009
Monetary unit. Rmb milion

Assets Note

frre e [
[ VRS

Balance Sheet

31 Dec.2009 31 Dec.2008

Current assets:

Cash at banks and on hand 1,138 2,914
Trading financial assets
Bills receivable 3,157 2.583
Accounts receivable 15(1) 1,770 1,235
Prepayments 5,294 2,731
Interest receivable
Dividend receivable
Cther receivables 15(2) 12 78
Inventories 10,045 10,372
Non-current assets due within 1 year
Other current assets
Total current assets 21,416 19,913
Non-current assets:
Available-for-sale financial assets 161 45
Long-term equity investments 15(3) 3,094 2,322
Investment real estate
Fixec assets 51,720 43,252
Construction in progress 8,713 12,547
Construction material 2,317 6,242
Intangible assets 6,609 6,761
Deferred income tax assets 904 1,102
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets 73,518 72,271
Total assets 94,934 92,184
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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. . Prepared by | Angang Steel Campany Limited
Balance Sheet (continued) ot 31 becenbe 3009
Monewry unit: Rmb million

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Note 31 Dec.2009 31 Dec.2008

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans 12,200 7,570
Bills payable 2,776 4,585
Accounts payable 2,818 3,427
Advances from customers . 5822 3,629
Employee benefits payable 325 329
Tax and surcharges payable (2.149) (2,771)
Other payables 3,263 3,523
Non-current liabilit.es due within 1 year 7,338 1,031
Other current liabilities 42

Total current liabilities 32,435 21,323

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term loans 9,822 17,565
Deferred tax liabilities 61 47
Other non-current liabilities 139 141
Total non-current liabilities 10,022 17,753
Total liabilities 42,457 39,076

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capial 7.235 7,235
Capital reserve 31,510 31.423
Special reserve 50 21
Surplus reserve 3,357 3,280
Undistributed profit 10,325 11,149
Total shareholders’ equity . 52,477 53,108
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . 94,934 92,184
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong

100 : ~ BT




Prepated by | Angang Steel Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Monetary unit. Rmb milfion

FCZLITELE

Income Statement

Items Note 2009 2008
1. Operating income 15(4) 69,469 79.616
Less Operating costs for main business 15(4) 62,988 66,611
Business tax and surcharges 183 948
Selling expenses 1.066 1,687
Administrative expenses 2,946 3,798
Financial expenses 884 694
impairment fosses on assets 683 2,106
Add gainsflosses from fair value vanation
(“-" means loss)
Investment income (“-" means loss) 15(5) 186 96
Including: Income from investment in jointly
controlled enterprises and associates 176 80
2. Operating profit (*-* means loss) 905 3.868
Add Non-operating income 90 33
Less Non-operating expenses 39 69
Including™ Loss on non-current asse:s disposal 39 63
3. Profit before income tax (*-* means loss) 956 3.832
Less Income tax expenses 184 851
4. Net profit for the year (“-* means loss) 72 2,981
5. Earning per share
(1) Basic earnings per share 0.107 0412
(2) Diluted earnings per share 0.107 0.412
6. Other comprehensive income 87 {170)
7. Total comprehensive income 859 2,811
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma Lianyong
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Cash Flow Statement

SV Ll PN

PUZLIC
Prepared by Angang Steel Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Monelary unit Rmd mulhon

Items Note 2009 2008
1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering of services 72,2717 52,862
Refund of tax and fare received 800
Other cash received relating to operating activities 292 59
Sub-total of cash inflows 73,369 92,921
Cash paid for goods and services 63,263 68,780
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 2,543 2,589
Cash paid for al! types of taxes 2,245 8,611
Other cash paid relating to operating activites 786 1,003
Sub-total of cash outflows 68,837 80,983
Net cash flow from operating activities 15(6) 4,532 11,938
2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash receved from return of investments
Cash receved from investment :ncome 47 17
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets.
intangibte assets and other long-term assets 23 5
Net cash recewved from the disposal of
sudsidiaries and otner operating units
Other cash received relating to
Investment activities §37 409
Sub-total of cash inflows 607 231
Cask. paid for acquisition of fixed assets
intangible assets and other long-term assets 6,473 14,684
Cash paid for acquisition cf investments 575 1,361
Net casn paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
ana other operating units
Other cash paid relating to investment actvities
Sub-total of cash outflows 7,048 16,045
Net cash flow from investing activities (6,441) (15,614)
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Prepared by Angang Steel Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Monetary unit Rmb misihon
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Items Note 2009 2008
3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from absorbing investment
Including. received of subsidiary from
minonty shareholder
Cash recewved from borrowings 20,040 16.220
Other cash received relating to financing activities
Sub-total of cash inilows 20,040 16,220
Cash paid for settling debt 16,834 11,795
Cash paid tor distribution of dvidends or
profit or reimbursing interest 3,035 5,509
Including” dwidends or profit paid to
minority interes:
Cther cash payments relating to financing activities 38 59
Sub-total of cash outflows 19,907 17,363
Net cash flow from financing activities 133 (1,143)
4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents
5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 15(6) (1,776) (4,819)
Add Cash and cash equivalents at year-begir 15(6) 2,914 7,733
6. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 15(6) 1,138 2914
Legal representative Chief Accountant Controller
Zhang Xiaogang Ma Lianyong Ma lianyong
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Prepared by : Angang Steel Company Limited
Fo: the year ended 31 December 2009

Monetary umt:Rmb million

2009
Less: Surplus  General Undistri-  Total of
Share  Capital treasury  Special  public risk  buted shareholders’
Items capital  reserve stock  reserve  reserve  reserve  profit  equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2008 7235 31413 3,301 11,144 53,103
Add:  Change of accounting policy 21 n S S
Correciion of Last acounting
efrors
Other
2. Balance as at 1 Jan, 2009 7235 31,43 2 3,280 11,149 53108
3. Increase/decrease in 2009 (*-*
means loss) 87 29 7 (824) (63t}
(1) Net profit 172 m
(2) Other comprehensive income 87 87
Subiotal of (1) and (2} 81 m 859
(3) Input and reduced capital of
cwners
i Capita input by owners
1. Amount of shares-based
payment recoided in
owner's equity
i, Othes .
(4) Profit distribution 17 (1,596)  (1,519)
1 Appropriating surplus reseive 7 n
u Appecpriating general
risk reserve
iit. Distrioution to Shareholders (1519 (1.519)
1v. Other
{5) Transier internally of
shareholder’s equity
i Tramsferiing capital reserve
into share capital
ii. Teansteriing surplus reserve
into share capital
tii. Making up losses with
surplus reserve
. Othe
{6) Appropriating and usiag
special reserve 29 Py}
1 Appropriation number of
this year 35 35
ii. Using number of this year (6) 6}
4. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2009 7235 31510 50 3357 10325 52477
Lega! representative Chief Accountant Controller
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Prepared by Angang Steel Company Lmited
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Monetaty unit:Rmb mifiion
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tatement of changes in shareholders’ equity tontiues;

2008
Less: Surplus  General Undistri-  Total of
Share  Capital treasury  Special  public risk  buted shareholders’
\tems capital  reserve stock  reserve  reserve  reserve profit  equity
1. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2007 7235 31,593 2,981 12,445 54255
Add  Change of accounting policy n "
Correction of Last accounting
erfors
Other
2. Balance as at 1 Jan. 2008 7235 31,593 " 2,981 12,446 54,265
3. Increase/decrease in 2008
(*-* means toss) (170) 19 299 (1,267 (1,158)
{1) Net profit 2,981 2.98t
(2} Other comprehensive income (170} (170)
Subtotal of (1) and (2) (170) 2,981 2811
{3) Input and reduced captal of
owners
1 Capital input by owners
il Amount of shares-based
payment reccided in
owney’s equity
. Other .
W) Profit distribution %9 (4,278)  (3979)
1 Appropriating susplus reserve 299 299
- Appicpriating general
115k ‘eserve
. Dist:-but.on to Shareholders (3979) (3979
w. Other
(5) Transter :nternally of
shareholder's equity
1. Transierring capital reserve
1nio share capital
it Transferning surplus reserve
into share captal
i Making up .0sses with
srplus reserve
1. Other
(6) Appropriating and using
special reserve 10 19
1 Appropriaiicn azmber of
{his yea: 34 E)
i Using auraber of this year (24) (24}
4. Balance as at 31 Dec. 2008 7235 342 21 3,260 11,149 53108
Legal representative Chief Accountant Conltroller

Zhang Xiaogang

Ma Lianyong

Ma Lianyong
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Notes to the financial statements For the yeor 2009

(Expressed in RM8 million
unless otherwise indiated)

COMPANY PROFILE

Angang Steet Company Limited (formerly known as Angang New Steel Company Limited)
(abbreviated as “the Company”) was formally established on 8 May 1997 as a joint-stock
limited company.

The Company was established as a joint-stock hmited company under the Company Law
of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), with Anshan Iron & Steel Group Complex
(“Angang Holding”) as the sole promoter, pursuant to the approval document TI GAl
SHENG {1997] No. 62 "Reply to the Approval of the Establishment of Angang New Steel
Company Limited” issued by the State Commussion for Economic Restructuring of the
PRC. The Company took over the businesses of the Wire Rod Plant, the Thick Plate Plant,
and the Cold Rolling Plant (collectively referred to as the "Plants”) of Angang Holding
According to the Division Agreement which took effect from 1 January 1997, Angang
Holding transferred the production, sales, research and development, administration
activities of the Plants together with the relevant assets and habilities as at 31 December
1896 as its contribution to the Company. The above net assets were converted into
1.319,000,000 shares of the Company of RMB1.00 each.

The Company issued 890,000,000 foreign invested ordinary shares (“H shares”) with a
par value of RMB1.00 each on 22 July 1997 which were subsequently listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 24 July 1997. the Company also issued 300,000,000
ordinary A shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each on 16 November 1997 which were
subsequently listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 25 December 1997

The Company issued 1.5 billion A share convertible bonds in the PRC on 15 march 2000
The bonds reach its maturity on 14 March 2005. fotat.of 453,985,697 A shares of the
company were transferred from the bonds

On 26 January 2006, the Company made an additional 1ssue of 2,970,000,000 ordinary
A snares with a par value of RMB1.00 each at an issue price of RM84.29 each to Angang
Holding for a total consideration of RMB12.74 billion Proceeds of the issue were used to
partly finance the acquisition of the entire equity interest in ANSI Upon the completion of
the entire equity acquisition of ANSI, all the business, assets and liabilities of ANSI were
transferred to the Company, and ANSI has applied for deregistration.

According to a special resolution approved by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting on 20 June 2006, the Company changed its name from Angang New Steel
Company Limited to Angang Steel Company Limited on 29 September 2006 upon the
issuance of revised business license.

The Company proposed to issue A shares and H nghts shares to all shareholders with
5,932.985,697 outstanding shares on the basis of 2 2 Rights Shares for every 10 existing
Shares 1n October 2007. The subscription price for A shares and H shares is RMB15.40
per share and HKD15.91 respectively. The entitlements to the Rights Shares under the
Share Rights Issue represent 3 total of 1,301,822,150 shares, including 1,106,022,150 A
shares and 195,800,000 H shares. The new shares are listed for trade on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limitec on 25 October 2007 and 14
Novernber 2007 respectively. The Company had obtained the revised bus:ness license on 31
Marcn 2008
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For the yaar 2009
{Expressed in RM8 miihon
unless otherwise indrcated)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

COMPANY PROFILE (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company’s legal representative. Zhang Xiaogang, Registered
capital’ RMB7,234,807,847, Business certificate code’ 210000400006026; Registered
office: Production Area of Angang Steel, Address of the Company Tie Xi District, Anshan
City, Liaoning Province, the PRC

The Company and its subsidiary (abbreviated as “the Group”) are principally engaged in
ferrous metal smelting and steel pressing and processing

The financial statements has been approved by the Board of Directors in Apnil 19, 2010
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The finanzial statements of the Group are based on the assumption of going concern
principal according to the actual transactions and events, in light of the accounting
standard for business enterprise promulgated by the Ministry of finance of PRC in Feb
2006 and 38 speafic accounting s:andards, the following promulgated application
guidelines, interpretations and other related ruies (“Enterprise Accounting Standards ™).

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENTERPRISE ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Group declared that the Financial Report prepared by the Group was in line with
requirements of the Enterprise Accounting Standards, These finarcial statements present
truly, accurately and completely the financiai position of the Group as at 31 December
2009, the results of operation, the cash flow of the Group for the year then ended. In
addition, these financial statements also comply with, in all matenal respects, the disclosure
requirements of “Regulation on the Preparation of information Disclosures of Companies
Issuing Public Shares, No 15 General Requirements for financial Reports” revised by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission {"CSRC™) in 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

(1)  Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 Decemnber
(2) Functional currency and presentation currency

The Group’s functional currency 15 RM8

107




108

ng Sl\'civG<>m|
S S S

e T oo
pany Limited 5 <

EETTR ro
Vsl

Notes to the financial statements (continued) Fo the yor 2009

4.

(Expressed n RMB mullion
unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(3) Business combinations

Business combinations are classified into the business combinations under the same
control and the business combinations not under the same control.

(a)  The business combinations under the same control

The assets and liabilities that the combining party obtained in a business
combination shall be measured according to its book value in the combined
party on the acquisition date. As for the difference between the carrying
amount of the net assets obtained by the combining party and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid by it (or the total par value of the shares
issued), the paid-in capital reserve (share premium) shall be adjusted by
the difference. If the capital reserve (share premium) is not sufficient to be
offset, the retained earnings shall be adjusted. The direct cost occurred in the
business combination of the combining party shall be recorded into the profits
and fosses at the current period

(b)  The business combinations not under the same control

For the business combinations not under the same control, the combination
costs shall be the fair value, on the acquisition date, of the assets paid, the
habilities incurred or assumed and the equity securities 1ssued by the acquirer
in exchange for the control on the acquiree. All relevant direct costs incurred
to the acquirer for the business combination shall also be recorded into the
cost of business combination. For a business combination realized by two or
more transactions, the combination costs shall be the summation of the costs
of all separate transactions. Where any future event that is likely to affect the
combination costs is stipulated in the combination contract or agreement, If
it is likely to occur and its effects on the combination costs can be measured
reliably, the acquirer shall record the said amount into the combination costs.
The acquirer shall, on the acquisition date, measure the assets obtained
and liabilities incurred or assumed in hght of their fair values in a business
combination not under common control.

If the combination costs are more than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets obtained, the acquirer shall recognized the difference as goodwill; if
the combination costs are less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
obtained, the acquirer shall firstly reexamine the measurement of the fair
values of the identifiable assets obtained, liabilities incurred and contingent
liabilities incurred, as well as the combination costs. After that, if the
combination costs are still less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets
obtained, the acquirer shall recognized the difference in profit or lose of the
current period
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For the year 2009

(Expressed in RMB mudlon
unless otherwise ndicated)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@)

Preparation methods for consolidated financial statements

(a)

(b}

Recognition principle

The scope of consolidation of consolidated financial statements shall be
ascertained on the basis of control power. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
1ts activities. The Company shall present consolidated f{inancial statement in
which it consolidated it investments in subsidiaries in which the Company
holds more than S0% capital share or even less than 50% but substantively
control its financial and operation activities

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements shall, on the basis of the financial
statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries, be prepared by the
parent company after the tong-term equity investments in the subsidiaries are
adjusted by employing equity method and the long-term equity investments
of a parent company in its subsidiaries be offset against its portion of owner's
equity in the subsidiaries, and the effects of the internal transactions and the
iterns of credits and debts beiween the parent company and its subsidiaries
are offset The accounting policy or accounting period of each subsidhary shall
be adjusted as that of Company if it is different from that of the Company;
or subsidiaries shall prepare financial statement again 1n cormpliance with the
accounting policy and accounting period of the company.

If the parent company has a new subsidiary due to business combination
under the same control during a reporting period, it shall adjust the beginning
balance in the consolidated balance sheets when preparing consolidated
balance sheets. If it is not under the same controf the parent company shall
not adjust the beginning balance in the consolidated balance sheets when
preparing consolidated balance sheets. If the parent company disposes of a
subsidiary within a reporting period, when it prepares consolidated balance
sheets, it shall not adjust the beginning balance in the consolidated balance
sheets.

If the parent company obtained the subsidiaries under the same control, the
sales, expenses and profits of the subsidiaries from the beginning to the end
of the reporting period in which the combination takes place are included
in the parent company’s consolidated income statements; If it is not under
the same control, the sa'es, expenses and profits of the subsidiaries from the
acquisition date to the end of the reporting period are included in the parent
company’s consolidated income statements. If the parent company disposes
of a subsidiary within reperting period, the sales, expenses and profits of the
subsidiaries from the beginning of the reporting period to the disposal date
are included in the parent company’s consolidated income statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Fo e ea 2009

(Expressed i RMB miilion
unfess othervise indicated)

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(4) Preparation methods for consclidated financial statements (continued)
{b) Preparation of consalidated financial statements (continued)

If the parent company obtained the subsidiaries under the same control, the
cash flow of the subsidiaries from the beginning to the end of the reporting
period in which the combination takes place are included in the parent
company’s consolidated cash flow statements; If 1t is not under the same
control, the cash flow of the subsidianes from the acquisiiion date to the end
of the reporting period are included in the parent company’s consolidated
cash flow statements. If the parent company disposes of a subsidiary within
reporung period, the cash flow of the subsidiaries from the beginning of the
reporting period to the disposa: date are included in the parent’s consolidated
cash flow statements

(5) Recognition standard for cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits that are available for
payment at any time and short-term (within 3 months from the purchase date) and
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible o known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value

(6) Business of foreign currencies and the translation of foreign financial
statement

{a) Business of foreign currencies

At the time of imitial recegnition of a foreign currency transaction, the amount
in the foreign currency 1s translated to RMB at the spot exchange rate of the
transaction date. {Generally, a spot exchange rate 1s middle price quoted by
the Peopie’s Bank of Cnina on the day of transaction), nonetheiess, business
of foreign currency exchange or transaction involving foreign currency
exchange shall be transiated into RMB by actual exchange rate
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For the year 2009

(Expressed in RM8 mithon
unless otherwise ndicaled)

4.

Notes to the financial statements (ontinved)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(6) Business of foreigh currencies and the translation of foreign financial
statement (continued)

(b)

Translation of financial statements listed in foreign currency

Monetary items denominated n foreign currency are translated into RMB
at the spot exchange at the balance sheet date. The balance of exchange
arising from the difference between the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date and the spot exchange rate at the time of initial recognition or
pror to the balance sheet date shall be recorded into the profits and losses at
the current period, unless that it is arising from foreign currency borrowings
which is specifically for the purpose of acquisition, construction of quailfying
assets and satisfying the condition of capitalization The foreign currency
non-monetary items measured at the historical cost shall still be translated
at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date, of which the amount of
functional currency shall not be changed. The foreign currency non-monetary
items measured at the fair value shall be transtated at the spot excharge rate
on the date fair value ascertained, and the translation difference shall be
recorded Into the profits and losses at the current penod.

(7) Financial instruments

(a)

(o)

Recognition of the financial instruments

A finanaial asset or financial hiak:lity 1s recognized in the balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party by the contractual provssions of a financial
mstrument

Classification of financia: assets and financial hability

Financial assets of the Group shall be classified into the four categories
accordirg to investment purpose and business substance

(i) The financial assets shall be measured at fair values and the vanation
of which shall be recorded into the current profits and losses, including
transactional financial assets and the designated financia! assets which
are measured a: their fair values and of which the va-iation is included
in the current profits and losses; (1) The investments which will be heid
to therr maturity; (in) Loans and the account receivables; () Financial
assets avauable for sale

Financ:al liabilities shall be classified into the following two categories
according to business character of the Groun

(i) The financial liabilities which are measured at their fair values and the
variation of which 1s recorded into the current profits and losses, including
transactior:al financial liabilities and the designated financial liabilities
which are measured at tneir fair va'ues and of which the varation is
in<luded in the currert profits and lesses; (i} Cther financial habilities
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)
(<) Measurement of financial assets and financial habilities

(i The finanaial assets or financial liabilities shall be measured at their
fair value and the vanation of which shall be recorded into the current
profits and losses

When obtained, the financial assets or financial liabilities shall be
initially measured at their fair value (except the interest on bonds of
which ‘the mature interest rate is not drawn in the payment or the
cash dividend which is declared but not extended in the payment),
its transaction costs are charged to profit or foss. The interest or cash
dividend which was gained in the period are recognized as investment
income. At the balance sheet date, the variation in the fair value of the
financial asset or financal liabihity shall be recorded into the profits and
losses of the current period. When the said financial assets of financial
liabilities are on disposal, the difference between the fair value and the
amount of initial recognition shall be recognized as investment income;
meanwhile, the profits and losses arising from the variation in fair value
shall be adjusted.

(ii) The investments which will be held to their maturity

The investments held to maturity shall initially be measured at fair value
when obtained (except the interest on bonds of which the mature
interest rate is not drawn in the payment) plus transaction expense
The interest revenue shall be calculated according to amortized cost
and effective interest rate (if the difference between effective interest
rate and coupon rate is minor, interest revenue could be measured at
coupon rate), and be recorded into investment income. The effective
interest rate, ascertained when initially obtained, shall maintain
unchanged within the predicted term of existence or within a shorter
applicable term. When the investments held to their maturity is
derecognized, the difference between the consideration obtained and
investment book value shall be recorded into the profits and losses of
current period
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o e e NOtES to the financial statements (continued)

uniess otherwise ndicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(i) The accounts recewables

The creditor’s right receivable that formed during selling goods or
service rendering and others, including accounts receivable, bills
receivable ,other receivable long-term receivable ,etc but financial
instrument that have no quoted price in active market, shall be initially
measured in accordance with the contract or agreement signed
between the Company and the buyers. Financial recewables shall be
initially measured at discounted value. While the accounts receivable
recovered or disposed of, the difference between the realized value
and the book value shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the
current period

(iv)  Financial assets available for sale

The financial assets available for sale shall initially be measured at fair
value when obtained (except the interest on bonds of which the mature
interest rate is not drawn in the payment) plus transaction expense. The
interest revenue or cash dividend gained during the period of holding
the financial assets available for sale shall be recorded into investmert
income. On balance sheet date, the financial assets shall be measured
at fair value, while the variation in fair value shall be recorded into
capital reserves {other capital reserves). When disposed of, the
difference between initially purchase price and the book value of the
financial assets shall be recorded into investment income; meanwhile,
the portion of accumulated vanation in fair value previously recorded
into share holds’ equity shall be transferred to the current profits ad
losses according 10 a certatn propartion.

(v} Other financial habilities

Other financial habilities snall be initialiy measured at fair value plus
transaction cost, and subsequently measured at amortized cost except
following circumstances:

1} The derivative financial liabi'ties, of which the far value cannot
be reliably measured and quoted price does not exist in active
marked, and connected to the equity instrument and be obliged
to settled by delivering equity instrument, shall be measured at
costs
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unless othenwise indicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(7) Financial instruments (continued)
() Measurement of financial assets and finanaal liabiltties (continued)
(v} Other financial liabilities (continued)

2) The financial guarantee contracts ,which are not designated as a
financial tiability and measured at its fair value and the variation
is recorded into the profits and losses of the current period, and
the bank loan commitments, which are not designated to be
measured at the fair value and of which the variation 1s recorded
into current profits and losses and which is incorporated with
preferential interest rate, subsequently measured at the higher of
following two amounts after initial measurement:

A) The amount ascertained according to the -Accounting
Standards for Enterprises No. 13 Contingencies;

8) The surplus of initially recognized amount from which
the accumutative amortization ascertained according to
the principles of the Accounting Standards for Enterprises
No.14 Revenues is subtracted

(d} Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets

The financial assets shall be derecognized while the Group has transferred
nearly all the risks and rewards related to the ownership of which to the
transferee, and it shall not be derecognized while the Group retain nearly all
the risks and rewards related to the ownership.

Substance over form principal shall be adopted while making a judgment on
whether the transfer of financial asset satisfies the conditions for termination
of recognition. The transfer of financial assets could be classified into the
entire transfer and the paruial transfer.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions for
termination of recognition, the difference between the amounts of the
following 2 items shall be recorded into current profits and losses:

(1} The book value of the transferred financial asset;

(i) The sum of consideration received from the transfer, and the

accumutative amount of the variation in fair value previously recorded
into the shareholders’ equities
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

(d)

(e

Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets (continued)

If the partially transfer of financial asset satisfies the conditions of termination
of recogrition, the entire book value of the transferred financial asset shall
be apportioned according to their respective relative fair value between the
portion of derecognized part and the remains, and the difference between the
amounts of the following 2 items shall be recorded into the profits and losses
of the current period:

(@)

(i)

The book value of derecognized part;

The sum of consideration of the portion derecognized and the portion
of the corresponding accumulative amount of the variation in the fair
value previously recorded into the shareholders’ equities

Determination of fair values

(i)

(i)

Where there i1s an active market of financial assets and liabilities, the
quoted prices in the active market shali be used to determine the fair
values. The quoted price is ascertained in accordance with the following
two principles’

M

2)

In the active market, the quoted prices of the financial assets the
Company holds or the financial liabilittes the Company plans to
assume shall be the present actual offer, while the quoted prices
of the financial assets the Company plans to acquire or the
financial liabilities the Company assumed shall be the available
charge.

Where there 1s no available offer or charge for a financiai asset
or financial liability, the Company shall adopt the market quoted
price of the latest transaction or adjusted market quoted price
of the latest transaction, except that there are obvious evidence
shows the quoted price is not fair

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a valuation
technique will be used to establish the fair value
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Fo ey 2009

4.

uniess otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

%))

Financial instruments (continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets

An imparment test shall be made on the financial assets at the balance
sheet date The impairment-related losses shall be recogrized If any objective
eviaence shows that it has been imoaired. The objective evidence, showing
the financial assets has been impaired, is referred to the events which occur
after the imtial recognition and matenally affect the future cash flows
gererated by financal assets and the infiuence could be reflably measured

() The investments which will be held to their matunty

Investment held to maturity megasured at amortize cost shall be written
down to present value of estimated future cash flow (excluding the
loss of future credits not yet occurred)discounted by original effective
interest rate, and the written-down shall be recorded into current
profits or loses

An independent impairment test shall be made on the financial assets
with significant single amounts. With regard 10 the financiai assets wth
insignificant singie amounts, an independent smpairment test may be
carned out, or they may be tested in a combination of financial assets
with similar credit risk features. The financial assets with significant
single amount that an indepenaent impairment test show which has
not been impaired shall be put n a combination of financial assets
with similar risk features and tested again. The financial assets with
significant single amount suffered from an impairment loss proven by
independent impairment test shall not be tested again

(D] The acccunts receivables

The way of impairment testing and rmpairment measurement s
disclosed in "note 4(8) recevables”

(i) Avallable-for-sale financial asset

While the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset ‘alls
significantly, cr judged by the Company that descending trend 1s not
temporary after taking :into account related data comprehensively,
the difference between fair value and book value shall be recognized
as imparrment loss, meanwhile, the variation ir. fair value previously
recerded in sharenolders’ equity shall be transferred out and recognized
as impairment loss
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unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(8)

Account receivables

(a}

(b)

Recogrution of provision

at the balance sheet date ,The Group carry out an overall inspection on the
carrying amount of the account receivables Where there 15 any objective
evidence as followings proving that such account receivables has been
impaired, an impairment provision shall be made.

(i} A sertous financial difficulty occurs to the issuer or debtor, (i) The debtor
breaches any of the contractual stipulations, for example, fails to pay or delays
the payment of interests or the principal, etc. (i) The debtor will probably
go bankrupt or carry out other financial reorganizations; {iv) Other objective
evidences showing that tne accounts receivables suffering impairment

Measurement of provision

Accounts receivables are tested for impairment both on an individual basss
and on a collective group basis

On balance sheet date, an independent impairment test shall be made on
accounts recewable with significant single amounts and insignificant single
amounts which will be riskier as they are put into a combination by credit
risk features. Account receivables with insignificant single amounts and
those has not been impaired upon independent test are divided to a series of
combination, and then perform tmpairment test.

Where impairment is tested on an individual basis, the book value of accounts
receivable shall be written down to present value of estimated future cash
flow(excluding the loss of future credits not yet occurred) discounted by
original effective interest rate, and the written-down shall be recorded 1nto
current profits or losses.

Where impairment is tested on collective basis, the impairment is based on
historical loss of accounts receivable combination by similar credit nisk feature,
and adjusted i1n accordance with economic data obtained under current
circumstances.

Reversal of provision

If evidences show that the value of receivable is recovered and that recovery
is connected to the event subsequent to the recognition of impairment loses,
previously recognized impairment losses shall be revered and recorded into
current profits and losses, however, the book value after reversed .mpairment
losses shall not excess the amortized cost on the assumption that no
impairment losses have been made previously.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(9) Inventories
(a) Classification of inventory

The inventory of the Group comprises raw material, work in progress, finished
goods, consumables, spare parts, materials in transit, and outsourcing
materials etc.

(b)  Pricing of inventory received and dispatched

The tnventories shall be initially measured in light of their cost when
purchasing, the cost of inventory consists of purchase costs, processing costs
and other costs. The cost of good transferred to manufacturing cost by
weighted average method and specific identification method

Besides the purchase costs of raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods and the direct tabor cost shall be aliocated to production overheads by
appropriate apporticn rate

(4] Recognitron and measurement of provision for decline in value of inventories H

On balance sheet date, the inventories shall be measured at the lower of
lower of the cost and the net realizable value

The net realizable value is the amount after deducting the estimated cost of
completion, estimated selling expense and relevant taxes from the estimated
selling price of inventories, which includes: 1) As to the inventories held for
sale, such as finished goods, products and materials held for sale, the net
realizable value is the amount after deducting the estimated selling expense
and relevant taxes from the estimated selling price of inventories; 2) The
net realizable value refers to those material inventories, which need to be
processed, ir the daily business actwity the amount afier deducting the
estimated cost of completion, estimated selling expense and relevant taxes
from the estimated selling price of inventories; 3) The net realizable value of
inventories held for the execution of selling contracts or labor contracts shall
be calculated on the ground of the contract price. If an enterprise holds more
inventories than the quantities subscribed in the selling contract, the net
present value of the excessive part of the invertories shall be calculated on
the ground of the general selling price.

The provision of inventories except the spare parts for decline in value is
caicuiated by individual inventory item. The provision for dechne in value
of spare parts is calculated according to the actual situation and the
management’s estimations.
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unless othenwise indicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(9) Inventories (continuéd)

(c) Recognition and measurement of prowision for decline in value of inventories
(continued)

At the balance sheet date, if the cost of inventories is higher than the net
realizable value, the provision for the foss on decline in value of inventories
shall be made and be recorded into the current profits and losses. If the
factors causing any write-down of the inventories disappeared, the amount of
write-gown shall be resumed and be reversed from the provision to the extent
of provision previously made. The reversed amount shall be recorded into the
current profits and losses

(d}  The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system
(e) Amortization of consumables

Consumables such as low-value consumables, packaging materials and
other consumables are amortized by lump-sum, units-production method or
equal instaliments method depending on their nature. The amounts of the
amortization are recorded in the cost of the related assets or the current
profits and tosses

(10) Long-term equity investments
(a) Initial Measurement

For the long-term equity investment obtained by business combination under
common control, it shall, on the date of combination, take the share of
book value of the shareholders’ equity of subsidiaries as the initial costs of
long-term equity investment. For the iong-term equity nvestment obtained
by business combination under different control, it shall, on the date of
combination, take combination cost as initial cost of long-term equity
investment. Besides long-term equity investment obtained by bushiness
combination, the initial cost of long-term equity investment obtained by other
means shall be ascertained by accordance with actual cash payment, the fair
value of the equity securities issued, the conventional value stipulated in the
investment contract or agreement ,etc. The initial cost consists of the expenses
directly relevant to the obtainment of the long-term equity investment, taxes
and other necessary expenses

. 119




Ist

f LS

I F
imitéd | ANNUALREPO’RT.%O'OL

R PHe

AL G ik B ped
i V2SS S s G

Notes to the financial statements (continued) For the oo 2009

{Expressed in RMB milhon
unless otherwise indicated)

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)
(a)  Imitial Measurement (continued)

For the long-term equity investment obtained by business combination under
common control, it shall, on the date of combination, take the share of book
value of the shareholders’ equity of subsidiaries as the initial costs of long-
term equity investment. The difference between initial costs of long-term
equity investment and the book value of consideration of combination shall
offset against capital reserve. If the capital reserve i1s not sufficient to diluted,
the retained earnings shall be adjusted. As to combining party, the direct
cost including the expenses for audit, assessment and legal services for the
business combination shall be recorded into current profits and losses i the
consideration of combination 1s issuing bonds, the fees, commissions and
other expenses for assuming other habilities shall be taken as part of initial
cost of the bonds or other debts. If the consideration of combination is issuing
equity security, the fees, commissions and other expenses for the issuance
shall offset against premium of issuance of equity security. If the premium is
not sufficient, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

For the long-term investment obtained by business combination under different
control, the initial cost, on the date of combination, shall be ascertained in
accordance with assets transferred as consideration, the fair value of equity
security 1ssued and liability incurred or assumed and other expenses directly
related to combination. For a business combination realized by two or more
transactions, the combination costs shall be the summation of the costs of
all separate transactions. Where any subsequent events stipulated in the
combination contract or agreement that are likely to affect the combination
costs, if it is likely to occur and its effects on the combination costs can
be measured reliably, the acquirer shall record the said amount into the
combination costs. If the consideration of combination 15 issuing bonds, the
fees, commissions and other expenses for assuming other liabilities shall be
taken as part of initial cost of the bonds or other debts. If the consideration of
combination 1s 1ssuing equity security, the fees, commissions and other expenses
for the 1ssuance shall offset against premium of issuance of equity secunity, If
the premium is not sufficient, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

The initial cost of a long-term equity investment obtained by making payment
in cash shall be the purchase cost which is actually paid The initial cost
consists of the expenses directly related to the long-term equity investment,
1axes and other necessary expenses.

The initial cost of a long-term equity investment, obtained by means of issuing
equity securities, shall be the fair value of the equity securties issued

The nitial cost of a long-term equity investment contributed by shareholder
shall be the value stipulated in the investment contract or agreement except
that value stipulated in the contract or agreement is not fair.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)
(a)  Initial Measurement (continued)

The initial cost of a long-term invesiment obtained by the exchange of
nonmonetary assets shall be ascertained in accerdance with the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises No. 7 - Exchange of Non-monetary Assets

The imtial cost of a fong-term equity investment obtained by deot
restructuring shalt be ascertained in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Enterpnises No 12 - Debt Restructuring

The in:tial cost of a long-term investment shall be measured in comphance
with its revaluation price while the book value of assets and habilities are
adjusted in ight of 1ts appraised value in the reformation of its mechanism.

Except the direct cost related to business combination, the initial cost of long-
term investment, acquired by other ways, comprise direct acquisition cost,
relevant tax and othe- necessary expenditures

The cash dividends and profits annourced, which 1s induded in consideration, shall
not be recognized as initial cost of accounts receivable but long-term irvestrent

(b} Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and recognition of
investment income

0] A long-term equity investment of an investing enterprise, which is aole
to control the invested enterprise, does not do joint contro: or does not
have significant influences on the 1nvested entity, and has no quoted
price in the active market and its fair value canno: be reliably measured,
are stated by employing cost method

The long-term equity investment stated by employing cost method shall ke
measured at initial investrent cost. The cost of the long-term equity investment
shall be ad.usted while the amount of investrrent added or withdrew.

(i) A long-term eguity investment of the investing enterprise that does joint
control or significant influences over the invested entity shall be stated
by employing equity method. {f the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment is more than the investing enterprise’ attributable share
of the far value of the invested entity’s identifiable net assets for the
investment, he inttial cost of the long-term equity investment may not
be adjusted. if the imual cos: of a lorg-term equity investment 1s less
than the investing enterprise’ attributable share of the fair value of the
invested ent:ty’s identifiable net assets for tne investment, the difference
shall be recorded into the current profits and osses and tine cost of the
long-term equity investment shall be adjusted simultaneously
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)

(b)  Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and recognition of
investment income (continued)

Long-term equity investment shall, in accordance with the proportion of
the net profits or losses of the vested entity attributable 1o the Company,
recognize the investment profits or losses and adjust the book value of the
long-term equity investment simultaneously. The investing enterprise shall
reduce the book value of the long-term equity investment in accordance with
the proportion of the profits or cash dividends declared by the invested entity,

An investing enterprise shall recognize the net losses of the invested
enterprise to the extent that the book value of the long-term equity
investment and other long-term rnghts and interests which substantiaily form
the net investment made to the invested entity are reduced to zero, unless
the investing enterprise has the extra obligation to undertake extra losses. If
the invested entity realizes any net profits later, the investing enterprise shall
resume recognizing its attributable share of profits after its attributable share
of profits offsets againstits attributable share of the un-recognized losses.

The investing enterprise shall ascertain attributable share of invested entity
profit on the ground of the fair value of all identifiable assets of the invested
entity when it obtains the investment and adjust the net profits of the
invested entity in accordance with the accounting policies and accounting
penods adopted by the invested entity if there is any difference between
two sides after offsetting any inter-transaction profit floss attributable
to the investing entity(all inter-transaction loss due to impairment is fully
recognized). If there 15 debit variation relating to the investment in assoc-ates
and joint venture prior to first adoption of accounting standard, investment
income ascertained after deducting cumulative amortization of that debit on a
straight-line method.

Where any variation is made to the owner’s equity other than the net profits
and losses of the invested entity, the book value of the long-term equity
investrnent shall be adjusted and the variation shall be directly recorded in
the shareholder’s equity simultaneously, when disposed of, the vanation
previously directly recorded in shareholders’ equity related shall be transferred
to current profits or losses

() Measuremert standard of the joint control and sign.ficant influences

1) Measurement criteria of joint control: No any party could solely
control operating activity of the joint venture. The strategic financial
and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(<) Measurement standard of the joint control and significant influences

(continued)

2) Measurement criteria of significant influences | Wher the Company
directly or indirectly owns, or by subsidiaries owns, 20% or above but
less than 50% of the voting shares of invested entity, unless there 1s
obvious evidence shows that the Company sha'l not participate in the
financial and operating decision making, the Company has significant
influence on invested entity. If the Company owns less than 20% of
the voting shares of invested entity, generally, the Company has no

significant influence on invested entity.

But with the following conditions, we believe that the Company has

sgnificant influence over the invested entity

1) Have representative(s) in board of directors of the invested entity or

similar authority organization
2) - Getinvowed in policy making of the :nvested entity
3} There are significant transactions with the invested entity
4) Oispatch management staif to the invested entity
) Providing key technology to the invested entity.

(d) Method of impairment test and recognit:on of provision

At the balance sheet date, the Company shall check the leng-term eguity
investment whether there 15 a sign of impairment exists as ihe follows If there
is sign of impairment, the estimated recoverable value shall be ascertained.

1) The current market price of long-term entity investment ‘alls, and its
decrease is obviously higher than the expected drop over time or due to the
norinal use; 2) The economic, technological or legal environment 1n which
the enterprise operates, or the market where the long-term entity investment
is situated wil. have any significant change n the currert period or 1n the
near future, which wi!l cause adverse impact on the enterprise; 3) The market
interest rate or any other market investment returr rate has rnsen in the
current period, and thus the discount rate of the enterprise for calculating
the expected future cash flow of the long-term entity investment wil' te
afiecied. which will result in great decline of the recoverable amount of the
long-term entity investment; 4) The long-term entity invesiment have been or
will ke left unused. or terminated for use, or disposed ahead of schedule, 5)
Any evidence in the internal report of the enterprise shows thai the econornic
performance of the long-term entity investment have been or will be lower
than the expected performanrce, for example, the net cash flow created by
long-term entity investmert cr the operating profit (or ioss) realized 15 lower
(higher) than the excepted amount, etc.; 6) Other evidence indicates that the

impairment of long-term entity Investrrent has probabiy occurred

t

w o
¥ s Bonn

123




|So

noTE

NNUAL REPORTE

Ce TET

,mlite(! ’ I

A n;iu ng Steel Compa

PUZLIC S

Notes to the financial statements (continued) o thayear 2009

(Exressed n RM8 miifion
unless othervsise indicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(10) Long-term equity investments (continued)
(d) Method of impairment test and recognition of provision (continued)

The recoverable value shall be ascertained In light of the higher one of the
net amount of the selling fair value of the long-term equity investment and
the current value of the expected future cash flow of the long-term eqguity
investment. The Company estimates the recoverable value on the basis of
individual long-term equity 1nvestment.

When the recoverable value of an individual long term equity investment 1s
lower than its book value, the Company shall diminish the book value 10 the
recoverable value The diminution amount shall be recorded into the profits
and losses of the current pericd, anc recognized the corresponding provision
for impairment.

Once any provision for impairment 1s recognized, it shall not be written back
within the assets’ useful life

(11) Fixed assets
(a)  Recognition

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in
the preduction of goods, service rendering, and rentung and ogeration
management purposes with useful lives over 1 year. No fixed asset may be
recognized uniess it simultaneously meets the conditions as follows' (i} The
economic benefits pertinent to the fixed asset are likely to flow into the
enterprise, (i1) The cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably

(b} Classification and depreciation methed

Fixeg assets are depreciated using the straighi-iine metnod cver their
estimated useful lives. The usefu! lives, residual value.rates of each class of
fixed assets are as follows:

Residual
Classes of fixed assets Useful lives value rate
Plants and buildings 10--20 years 3%-5%
Machinery and equioment 3-15 years 3%-5%
Other fixed assets 2-12 years 3%-5%

fixed assets for which impairment provis:on has beer made are depreciated
based on the res.dual useful life and cost deducted scrap value ard cumulative
depreciation and provision Fixed asset, reached expected usable condition but
the buaget is not yet completed, shall te initially measured at esuimated value
and depreciated timely. After the completion of purchasing or construction
of fixed asset, tne imual cost shall be adiusted but the previous depreciaticn
based on estimated vaiue.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

{(11) Fixed assets (continued)
(b)  Classification and depreciation method (continued)

The useful life estimated residual values and depreciation method of the fixed
assets shall be checked at the end of each fiscal year, and be adjusted timely
if necessary.

(¢)  Method of impairment test and measurement of provision

At the balance sheet date, the Group shall make a judgment on whether there
is any sign of possible impairment exists, 1f there is, the group shall estimate
the recoverable value of fixed assets and perform an impairment test,

1) where the current market price of assets falls, the fall is obviously higher
than the expected drop over time or due io the normal use; 2) The economic,
technological or legal environment in which the Group operates, or the
market where the assets situated in will have any significant change in the
current period or in the near future, and which will cause adverse impact on
ithe enterprise; 3) The market interest rate or any otner market investment
return rate has risen 1n the current period, and thus the discount rate of the
enterprise for calculating the expected future cash flow of the assets will be
affected, which will result 10 great decline of the recoverable amount of the
assets, 4) Any evidence shows that the assets have become obsolete or have
been damaged substantially; S) The assets have been or will be left unused,
or terminated for use, or disposed ahead of schedule; 6) Any evidence in
the internal report of the Group shows that the economic performance of
the assets have been or will be lower than the expected performance, for
example, the net cash flow created by assets or the operating profit {or loss)
realized 1s lower (higher) than the excepted amount, etc.; 7) Other evidence
indicates that the impairment of assets has probably occurred.

The recoverable value shall be ascertained in light of the higher one of the net
amount of the fair value of the fixed assets deducting the disposal costs and the
present value of the expected future cash flow of the fixed assets. The recoverable
value sha!l be estimated on the basis of single item assets. Where 1t is difficult to
do so, it shall be ascertained on the basis of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. The term “group assets” refers to a minimum combination of assets that
may be recognized by an enterprise, by which the flow-in cash generated shall be
generally independent of those by other assets or group assets.

When the recoverable value of an individual fixed asset or the asset group of
which it belongs to, is lower than its book value, the Group shall write down
the book value to the recoverable value. The diminution amount shall be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period, and recognized the
corresponding provision for impairment. Once any provision for impairment is
recognized, it shall not be reversed within the assets’ useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(11) Fixed assets
(d)  Fixed assets gained through financal lease

The recognition criteria, valuation methods and depreciation methods of fixed
assets obtained by financial lease, see Note (19).

(12) Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes technical renovation project, technicai measures to
project, project formed with scattered fixed assets. Construction in progress shall be
initially measured at cost

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it i1s ready for its
intended use.

At the balance sheet date, the Group shall make a judgment on whether there is any
sign of possible impairment exists based on following information, if there s, the
group will estimate recoverable value of fixed asset and perform an impairment test

1) Where the current market price of construction in progress falls, and 1ts decrease
is obviously higher than the expected drop over time or due to the normal use; 2)
The economic, technological or legal environment in which the enterprise operates,
or the market where the construction in progress is situated will have any significant
change in the current period or in the near future, which will cause adverse impact
on the enterprise; 3) The market interest rate or any other market investment return
rate has risen in the current period, and thus the discount rate of the enterprise
for calculating the expected future casn flow of the constructions in progress will
be affected, which will result in great decline of the recoverable amount of the
constructions in progress; 4) Any evidence shows that the constructions in progress
have become obsciete or have beer damaged substantialy; 5) The constructions
in progress have been or will be left unused, or terminated for use, or disposed
ahead of schedule; 6} Any evidence in the internal report of the enterprise shows
that the economic performance of the constructions in progress have been or will
be lower than the expected performance, for example, the net cash flow created by
constructions in progress or the operating profit {or loss) realized is lower (higher)
than the excepted amount, etc, 7) Other evidence indicates that the impairment of
constructions in progress has probably occurred

The recoverable value shall be ascertained in light of the higher one of the net
amount of the fair value of the construction in progress deducting the disposal
costs and the present value of the expected future cash flow of the construction
in progress. The recoverable value shall be estimated on the basis of single item -
constructions in progress. Where it is difficult to do so, it shall be accrued on the
basis of the asset group to wnich the construction in progress belongs. The term
“group assets” refers to a mimimum combination of constructions in progress that
may be recognized by an enterprise, by which the flow-in cash generated shall be
generally independent of those by other assets or group assets
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(12)

(13)

Construction in progress (continued)

When the recoverable value of an individual construction in progress or the asset
group of which it belongs to, is lower than its book value, the Group shall diminish
the book value to the recoverable value. The diminution amount shall be recorded
into the profits and losses of the current period, and recognized the corresponding
provision for impairment. Once any provision for impairment 1s recognized, it shall
not be revered within the assets’ useful life.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs include interest on borrowings, amortization of discounts or
premiums on borrowings, ancillary expenses, and exchange difference on foreign
currency transiation concerning borrowings. Borrowing costs incurred directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction of a qualified asset are capitalized
as part of the cost of the asset. Except for the above, other borrowing costs are
recognized as financial expenses in the income statement when incurred.

(a)  Recognition and Measurement

The borrowing costs shall not be capitalized unless they simultaneously meet
the following requirements:

(i) The asset disbursements have already incurred; (i) The borrowing costs
have already incurred; (1) The acquisition and construction or production
activities which are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sate
have already started.

(b)  Capitalization period

The capitalization period shall refer to the period from the commencement to
the cessation of capitalization of the borrowing costs, excluding the period of
suspension of capitalization of the borrowing costs.

Where the acquisition and construction or production of a qualified asset
is interrupted abnormally and the interruption period lasts for more than 3
months, the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be suspended. The
borrowing costs incurred during such period shall be recognized as expenses,
and shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current period,
tll the acquisition and construction or productior: of the asset restarts. If
the interruption 15 a necessary step for making the qualified asset under
acquisition and construction or production ready for the intended use or sale,
the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall continue.

While qualified asset under acquisition, construction or production is ready for
the intended use or sale, the capitalization of the borrowing shall be ceased;
after qualified asset under acquisition and construction or production 1s ready
for the intended use or sale. The borrowing costs shall be recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period when they are incurred

cne e
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(13) Borrowing costs (continued)
(<) Calcuiation of borrowings

During the period of capitalization, the to-be-capitalized amount of interests
(including the amortuization of discounts or premiums) in each accounting
period shall be ascertained according to the following prowisions:

(i) As for specifically borrowed loans for the acquisition and construction
or production of assets eligible for capitalization, the to-be-capitalized
amount of Interests shall be ascertained in light of the actual cost
incurred of the specially borrowed loan at the present period minus
income generated from unused borrowing loan as a deposit or a
temporary investment.

(i)  Where 3 general borrowing is used for the acquisition and construction
or production of assets eligible for capitalization, The Group shall
calculate and determine the to-be-capitalized amount of interests
on the general borrowing by multiplying the weighted average asset
disbursement of the part of the accumulative asset disbursements
minus the specific borrowing by the capitalization rate of the general
borrowing used. The capitahization rate shall be calculated and
ascertained n hght of the weighted average interest rate of the general
borrowing.

(14) Intangible assets
(a) Initial Measurement

The intangible assets shall be initially measured according to its cost. The cost
of intangible assets is ascertained by foliowing methods:

[0] The cost of purchased intangible assets shall include the purchase price,
relevant taxes and other necessary expenditures directly attributable
10 intangible assets for the expected purpose. Where the payment of
purchase price for intangible assets is delayed beyond the normal credit
conditions, which is of financing intention, the cost of intangible assets
shall be ascertained on the basis of the current value of the purchase
price. The difference between the actual payment and the current value
of the purchase price shall be recorded into profit or loss for the credit
period, unless it shall be capitalized under the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises No. 17 Borrowing Cost

(i)  The cost of intangible assets invested by investors shall be ascertained

according to the conventional value stipulated in the investment
contract or agreement, except it is unfair.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(14) Intangible assets (continued)
(3)  Imual Measurement (continued)

() The cost of self-developed intangible assets shall include the total
expenditures incurred during the period from the time when it meets
the provisions of Articles 4 10 9 of these Standards to the time when the
expected purposes of use are rea‘ized, except that the expenditures which
have already been treated Last to the said period shall not be adjusted

(iv) The costs of intangible assets obtained from non-monetary assets
transacton, debi recombination, gcvernment grants, and merger
of enterprises shall be ascertained respectively according to the -
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 7 Exchange of non-
monetary assets, Account:rg Standard for Business Enterprises No.
12 Debt Restructurings, Accounting Standard for ‘Business Enterprises
No 16 Government Grants and Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises No. 20 -Business Combinations.

(b)  Subsequent measurement

The Group shall analyze and judge the service life of intangible Assets
when it obtains intangible assets. The service life s ascertained according
to the period through which 1t can bring eccnomic benefits to the group
If the period when the intangible asset can bring economic benefits to the
enterprise 1s uncertain, the intangible asset shall be regarded as an intangible
asset with indefinite service life.

With regard to intangible assets with himited service hfe, its amortization
amount shall be amortized within 1ts service life systematically and reasonably.
The g-oup amortized intangible assets by straight-line method The respective
amortization periods for each intangible asset ave listed as follows

Amortization

Items period
Land using nghts 50 years
Acguired software 3-10 years
Industnal technology 6-10 years

The reasonable amortization amount of intangible assets shall be 1ts cost miaus
the expected residual value. For intangible assets with an impairment prov sicn,
the accumulative amoun: of impairment provision shail be deducted from :he
cost as well. Intangible assets with indefinite service life shall not be amortized.

The Group shall, at least at the end of each year, check the service life and
the amortizatton method of intangibie assets with defrnite service life and
adjust its service Iife if necessary
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(14) Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement (continued)

The Group shall check the service life of intangible assets with indefinite
service life during each accounting period. Where there are evidences to
prove the intangible assets have limited service life, it shall be estimated of its
service life, and be treated according to these Standards The group has no
intangible assets with indefinite service life

(c) txpenditures on research and development

Expenditures on an internal research and development project are classified
into expenditures on the research phase and expenditures on the development
phase. Research expenditures shall be recorded into current profits and loses
while development expenditures may be confirmed as intangible assets when
they satisfy the following conditions simultaneously:

(i} H is feasible technically to finish intangible assets for use or sale;
(i) 1t 15 intended to finish and use or sell the intangible assets;

() The usefulness of methods for intangible assets to generate economic
benefits shall be proved, including being able to prove that there is
a potential market for the products manufactured by applying the
intangible assets or there is a potential market for the intangible assets
itself or the intangible assets will be used internally;

(iv) It is able to finish the development of the intangible assets, and able
to use or sell the intangible assets, with the support of sufficient
technologies, financial resources and other resources,

(v) The development expenditures of the intangible assets can be reliably
measured

(d} Method of impairment test and measurement of provision

The Group shall, on the day of balance sheet, make a judgment on whether
there is any sign of possible assets impairment as follows. If there is, the
Group shall estimate recoverable amount and perform impairment test. The
Group shall perform impairment test each year on intangible assets with
indefinite service life whether there are signs of impairment or not
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(14) Intangible assets (continued)

Method of impairment test and measurement of provision (continued)

(1) The current market price of assets falls, and its decrease is obviously higher
than the expected drop over time or due to the normal use; (ii) The economic,
technological or legal environment in which the Group operates, or the
market where the assets situated in will have any significant change in the
current period or in the near future, which will cause adverse impact on the
Group; (i) The market interest rate or any other market investment return
rate has risen in the current period, and thus the discount rate of the Group
for calculating the expected future cash flow of the assets will be affected,
which will result in great decline of the recoverable amount of the assets; (iv)
The assets have been or will be left unused, or terminated for use, or disposed
ahead of schedule; (v) Any evidence in the internal report of the Group shows
that the economic performance of the assets have been or will be lower than
the expected performance, for example, the net cash flow created by assets
or the operating profit (or loss) realized is lower (higher) than the excepted
amount, etc.; (vi) Other evidence indicates thai the impairment of assets has
probably occurred

The recoverable amount shall be ascertained in light of the higher one of
the net amount of the fair value of the assets minus the disposal expenses
and the current value of the expected future cash flow of the assets. The
Group shall, on the basis of single item assets, estimate the recoverable
amount of intangible assets. Where 1t is difficult to do so, it shall determine
the recoverable amount of the group assets on the basis of the asset group
to which the asset belongs The recogmition of an asset group shall base on
whether the main cash inflow generated by the asset group 15 independent of
those generated by other assets or other group assets

The carrying value of the asset shall be written down to the recoverable
amount while the measurement result of the recoverable amount indicates
that the recoverable amount of an asset is lower than its carrying value,
and the written down shall be recognized as impairment loss recorded into
current profit or loss and as provision simultaneously. Once any loss of asset
impairment s recogmizec, it sha'l not be reversed back within the assets’
useful Iife.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(15) Projected Liability
(3} Recognition basis

The obligation, pertinent to Contingencies such as external guarantee,
pending litigation or arbitration, lay-off plan, product assurance deposit,
onerous contracts, obligation of restructuring, decommissioning obligation,
shall be recognized as projected liability when the following conditions are
satisfied simultaneously

(i) That obligation 1s a current obligation of the Group; (1) It is likely to cause
any economic benefit to flow out of the enterprise as a result of performance
of the obligation; (ni) The amount of the obligation can be measured in a
reliable way

(b) Measurement method

The projected liability shall be mitially measured in accordance with the
best estimate of the necessary expenses for the performance of the current
obligation. To determine the best estimdte, the Group shall fully take into
consideration of the risks, uncertainty, time value of money, and other
factors pertinent to the contingencies. |f the time value of money 's of great
significance, the best estimate shall be ascertained after discounting the
relevant future outflow of cash. The Group shall check the book value of the
projected hiability at the balance shect date If there 1s any obvious evitdence
indicating that the book value cannot really reflect the present best estumate,
the group shall adjust the book value of projected hability in accordance with
the present best estimate

(16) Revenue
(a)  The recognition of the revenue from selling goods

The revenue from selling goods shall be recognized when the fo'lowing
cond:tions are met simultaneously

(1) The significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the goods have peen
transferred to the buyer by the Croup; (i) The Group retains neither
centinuous management right that usually keeps re'ation with the ownershio
nor effective control over the sold goods, (iii) The relevant amount of reverue
can e rreasured reliably; (iv) 't 1s probable that relevant economic oenefi will
ficw Intc the Group, (v) The costs of selling goods, incurred or will incur, can
be measured relably.

Tne Group recognized tne revenue from selling googs based on fair value of
amount ‘hat received or receivable on the contract or agreement.
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ESTIMATES (continued)

(16) Revenue (continued)

(b)

(c)

The recognition of the revenue from rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of service can be
estimated reliably, revenue from the rendering of service shall be recognized
in the income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the proportion of services performed to date to the total
services to be performed

Where the outcome of service rendering canno: ke estimated reliably, the
revenue and cost shall be respectively treated as following

(i) If the costs incurred are expected to be recoverable, revenues are
recognized to the extent that the costs incurred that are expected to be
recoverable, and an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss as
service cost;

(i) If the costs incurred are not expected to be recoverable, the costs
incurred are recognized in profit or loss and no service revenue 1s
recognized

Revenue from leasing use right of assets

(i) Pnnc]ple of recognition:

The revenue from leasing use right of assets consists of interest revenue
and royalty revenue. Revenue from leasing use right of assets may be
recognized when the following conditions are met simultaneously:

1) The relevant economic benefits are likely to flow into the Group;
2) The amount of revenues can be measured refiably

) Method of recognition

1) The amount of interest revenue should be measured and
cenfirmed in accordance with the length of time for which the
Group’s cash 1s used by others and the effective interest rate;

2) The amount of royalty revenue should be measured and

confirmed in accordance with the period and method of charging
as stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement

il
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(17) Government grants

Government grants consist of the government grants pertinent to assets and
government grants pertinent to income

(3) Recognition

No government grants may,be recognized unless the following conditions are
met simultaneously as follows

(1) The Grouo can meet the conditions for the government grants; (ii) The
Group can obtain the goverrment grants

(b) Measurement

[0} 't government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset,
It 1s measured at the amount that is received or receivable. f a
government grant is in the form of a trans’er of a non-monetary asset,
1t1s measured at its far value. If its fair value cannot be obtained in a
reliable way, it shall be measured at its nominal amount

(i Government grant pertinent to an asset is recognized in:tially as
deferred income and amortized to profit or loss on a straignt-line basis
over the useful ife of the asset. A grant that compensates the Group
for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent perods is recognized
initially as deferred inccme and recognized in profit or loss in the
same periods tn which the expenses are recognized. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses incurred is recognized ir profn or
loss immediately.

(ni) if 1115 necessary to refund ary government subsidy which has been
recogrized, 1t shall be treated respectively in accordance with the
crcumstances as follows: If there 1s the deferrec income concerned, the
book balance of the deferred income shall be offset aganst, but the
excessive part shall be included in the current profits and iosses; if there
is no deferred income concerned to the government subsidy, 't shall be
directly included in the current profits and losses

(18) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities

Where there 15 di*ference (temperary difference) between the carrying amounts of
the assets or iabilities ard its tax base, or temporary difference of items that s not
recognized as asset of hability but car asceriain its tax base accoraing 1c tax ‘aw, the
deferred income tax assets or the deferred income tax habilities shall be ascertained
using ba'ance sheet labil.ty metnod
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Notes to the financial statements ontinued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(18) Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities
(continued)

(a)

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

As for any deductible loss or tax deduction that can be carried forward 1o the
next year, the corresponding deferred income tax assets shall be ascertained
10 the extent that the amount of future taxable income to be offset by the
deductible loss or tax deduction to be likely obtained, except

(i)

(ii)

The deductible temporary difference arising from the following: The
transaction is not business combination, and at the same time of
transaction, the accounting profits will not be affected, ncr the taxable
amount (or the deductible loss)

Where the deductible temporary difference related to the investments
of the subsidiary companies, associated enterprises and joint enterprises
can meet the following requirements simultaneously, The Group shall
recognize the corresponding deferred income tax assets: The temporary
differences are likely to be reversed in the expected future; It is likely to
acquire any amount of taxable income tax that may be used for making
up the deductible temporary differences

Deferred income tax liabilities

Except for the deferred income tax liabilities arising from the following
transactions, the Group shall recognize the deferred income tax liabilities
arising from all taxable temporary differences:

(i)

(i)

The taxable temporary differences ansing from followings:
1) The initial recognition of business reputation;

2) The initial recognition of assets or liabilities arising from the
following: The transaction is not business combination, and at
the same time of transaction, the accounting profits will not be
affected, nor the taxable amount {or the deductible ioss).

The taxable temporary differences related to the investments
of subsidiary companies, associated enterprises and contractual
enterprises: The investing erterprise can control the time cf the reverse
of temporary differences; and the temporary differences are unlikely to
be reversed in the excepted future.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) fo heyeu 2003

(Expressed in RM8 milhon
unless otherwise indicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(19) Leases
(a)  financial lease and operating lease

Where a lease satisfies one or more of the following criteria, 1t shall be
recognized as a finance lease:

(i) The ownership of the leased asset is transferred 1o the lessee when the
term of lease expires; (ii) The lessee has the option to buy the leased asset
at a price which 1s expected to be far lower than the fair value of the leased
asset at the date when the option becomes exercisable. Thus, on the lease
beginning date, it can be reasonably ascertained that the option will be
exercised; (i) Even if the ownership of the asset is not transferred, the
lease- term covers the major part of the use life of the leased asset (general
refer to 75% or above), (iv) In the case of the lessee, the present value
of the minimum lease payments on the lease beginning date amounts to
substantially (general refer to 90% or above) the fair value of the leased asset
on the lease beginning date; in the case of the leaser, the present value of the
mimmum lease receipts on the lease beginning date amounts to substantially
(general refer 10 90% or above) the fair value of the leased asset on the lease
beginning date; (v) The leased assets are of a specialized nature that only the
fessee can use them without making significant modifications.

Lease except financial lease is operating lease
{b)  Accounting treatments in finance leases
(i) Accounting Treatments of Lessees:

On the lease beginning date, a lessee shall record the lower one of the
fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments on the lease beginning date as the entering value in
an account, recognize the amount of the minimum fease payments
as the entering value in an account of long-term account payable,
and treat the balance between the recorded amount of the leased
asset and the long-term account payable as unrecognized financing
charges. The initial direct costs directly attributable to the leased item
incurred during the process of lease negotiating and signing the leasing
agreement shall be recorded into the asset value of the current period.
The unrecognized financing charge shall according to the effective
interest rate method to calculate and recognize the financing charge in
the current period. Contingent rents shall be recognized as an expense
in the period in which they are actually incurred
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unless otherwrse ndicated)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

(19)

(20)

Leases (continued)
(b)  Accounting treatments in finance leases (continued)
(i) Accounting Treatments of Lessees: (continued)

In calculating the depreciation of a leased asset, the Group should adopt
a depreciation policy for leased assets consistent with that for depreciable
assets which are owned by the lessee. If it is reasonable 10 be certain that
the lessee will obtain the ownership of the leased asset when the lease term
expires, the leased asset shall be fully depreciated over its useful life. If it is
not reasonable to be certain that the lessee will obtain the ownership of the
leased asset at the expiry of the lease term, the leased asset shall be fully
depreciated over the shorter one of the lease term or its useful life.

(i)  Accounting Treatments oi lessor

On the beginning date of the lease term, recognize the sum of the
minimum lease receipts on the lease beginning date and the initial
direct costs as the entering value in an account of the financing lease
values receivable, and record the unguaranteed residual value at the
same time The balance between the sums of the minimum lease
receipts, the initial direct costs and the unguaranteed residual value,
and the sum of their present values shall be recognized as unrealized
financing income. The lessor shall calculate the financing income at
the current period by adopting the effective interest rate method
Contingent rents shall be recorded into the profits and iosses of the
period in which they actually arise

() Accounting treatments in operating leases

The rents from operating leases shall be recorded by the lessor and lessee in
the profits and losses of the current period by using the straight-line method
over each period of the lease term. The initial direct costs incurred to a lessor
and lessee shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the current period
The contingent rents shall be recorded into the profits and losses of the
current period in which they actually arise

Significant changes of accounting policies

In terms of the requirement of document “Interpretation of accounting standards
No.3“(CA!I KUAI [2009] No.8), safety production expenses should be recogmzed in the
special reserves As a result of retrospective adyustment of safety production expenses,
the beginning balance of shareholders equity is totally increased by RMB 5 million
including increased the beginaing balance of speciai reserve by 21 milion and decreasec
the beginning balance of surplus reserve by 21 million; increased the beginning balance
of deferred tax assets S million and decreased the deferred income tax expenses by 2
million at the year of 2007 and by 3 million at the year of 2008 respectively.
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S.

TAXATION

(8}

Principal tax and tax rate

Type of tax

Taxation basis
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For the year 2009
(Expressed in RME million
unless otherwise indicated}

Tax rate

VAT

Business tax
City construction and maintenance tax,

Output VAT less
input VAT
Taxable income

13%,17%

3%. 5%

Education surcharge and local
education surcharge

Custom duty

Corporate income tax

Paid circulating tax

FOB

7%.3%.1%

5%-15%

Taxable income 25%

(2) Tax preference and official documents

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law promulgated on March 16, 2007(Order
of the President [2007] No.63), the Group enjoyed tax exemption relating to
enterprise technology and development cost amounting to 251 million

(3) Others

Other taxes paid complying with relevant tax laws of PRC.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT

(1) Subsidiary

{a) Subsidiaries acquired by set up method

Acval
lmvestment Other
Typeof Ragistration  Matweof  Registered ot the end ssentid
Full name ubsidiary plie the business wpinl  Buslwess scope  of the year  investment
Asgaeg Sieel Dstrimtos  Wholyowned Wyl Stead 80 Steel 22g rired [
w.naniCo, LY Sub 08Ty Precessng products
CAAgang Wehat) n praduciion,
Oetrdrfioa £I0085574,
whalzsali i3
red
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e e mion NO1ES 10 the financial statements (continued)

uniess otherwise indicated)

6. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT (continued)

(1) Subsidiary

(a) Subsidiaries acquired by set up method (continued)

The Propartion
The proportion of voting-
o turhoiding gt
Fillmamre %) %)

tndoded in

comalidated

satenens

Wbodty
Intarest

Dedocthble

oty
Interest

Balaxe of
pamat
Group's equity
atter deducting
the difference
that loss of
oinority
Interests
axtond oquity
obtained by
mirority
shareholdens

Angang Sied Dsobyon 107 10
(e le. ae

(b)  Subsidiaries acquired by business combination not under common control

Actat
imvestment Other
Type of Registration  Kature of  Reglstered at the end essential
Full name ubsidary place the business. wpital  Businessscope  of the year  investment
Tuny~ Angang Turte Eeoy pout ) Steel 3700 Steed prxeseng 1407
Cole Rofed Sheets Grewp venlure processag Mae
Lmied 1 Tanps Teate’) Osrbrer
Balance of
parect
Growp's equlty
atter deducting
the ditferene
ot loss of
minortty
nterests
xcond equity
The Proportion Induded in Deductibie obtained by
The propartion ofvoting:  comsalidaind Minodty minortty minorhty
fofl ase of sharehoiding gkt satements Interest Rterest shareholdens
% %
Targn Angang i2ntw (oM 2204
Shee's Group Lomted % 3¢ \ 1,366

Dok
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Notes to the financial statements (continved) o e e 2009

(Expressed i RM8 mitlion
unless otherwse indicated)

6. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

(2)

(3)

The change of the consolidation scope
Tianjin Tiantie was established jointly by the Group and Tianjin metallurgical holding
("Tiantie group”).The proportion of shareholding of two parts is 50% respectively

According to the Articies of Tianjin Tiantie:

(@) Tiantie's financial and operational policy 1s in conformance with that of the
Group

(b)  Chairman of the board is recommended by the Group

() The board consists of nine directors of which five are recommended by the
Group and four are recommended by the Tiantie Group (Resolution of the
board passed by agreed over half of the directors of board).

(d) Financial controller is recommended by the Group

For above-listed reasons, the Group has control power over the Tianjin Tiantie, so
Tianjin Tiantie is included among consolidation scope

Subsidiaries that included in consolidation scope first time this year

Net assets at the Net profits of
Name end of the year the year
Tianjin Triantie 2,731 (82)

Note: The Group invested RMB 975 millions to Tianyin Tiantie up to date of 31 Dec 2008
according to the joint operation agreements signed with Tiantie group on 26 Sep 2008
and 12 Dec 2008 respectively, acquired 34.51% of shares of Tianjin Tiantie. The Group
increased investment in fianjin Tiantic by RMB 432 millions on 29 Sep..2009 and the
proportion of shareholding reached to 50% Tianjin Tiantie was included among the
Group’s consolidation scope on 30 Sep.,2009




For the year 2009

e emien NOteSs to the financial statements (continued)

unless otherwise mdicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In the notes below(including notes to parent financial statements), unless otherwise special
indicated, the ending of the year is 31 Dec.2009, the beginning of the year is 1 Jan. 2009,
the “this year” is twelve months ended at 31 Dec.2009, the “last year” is twelve months

ended at 31 Dec.2008.

(1) CASH AT BANKS AND ON HAND

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Cash on hand 1 1
Cash at banks 1,542 2,973
Other monetary capital 699
Total 2,242 2,974
(2) BILLS RECEIVABLE
(a) Classification of bills receivable
Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Bank acceptance bills 3,396 2,583
Total 3,396 2,583

Note: The ending balance of bills receivable was increased by 31% comparing
with beginning balance due to following reasons: 1) Products sales increased
at the end of the year, thus the bills received from the clients increased
correspondingly; 2) Tianjin Tiantie was consolidated into the Group

(b)  As at 31 Dec, 2009, no bills recevable is used for mortgage.

(<) For this year, there was no bills receivable transferred to accounts receivable
due to that the issuer is unable to honor its commitment.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) fo ey 2000

{Expeessed i RMB milron
unless otherwrse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(2) BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(d)  Outstanding undue endorsed bills

lssuer Issuing date Expire date  Balance
Beijing North Vehicle Logistics Gevelopment Cc., ttd Jud to Nov 2009 Jan to Apr 2010 261
Anshan Orgrance Materials Corporation Jul to Dec 2009 1an 1o Jun 2010 216
Ye Hui (China} Techncogy Material Co., Lté Jul to Oct 2009 lanto Apr 2010 154
China Railway Materials {Shenyang,} Gioup JuftoDec 2009 Jan to May 2010 139
Funakoshi Automcbile Matenial (Wukan) Co, Ltd , Sep 10 Dec 2009 Jan to Apr 2010 97
Total . 87

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

(a)  Classified by account nature

Ending balance
Book balance Bad debt provision
Items Balance Percentage Balance  Percentage
(%) (%)
Significant amount of individual
accounts receivable 1,676 95
Other :nsigriiicant accounts receivatle 94
Total 1,770 100
Beginning balance
Book balance Bad debt provision
ltems Balance  Percentage Balance  Perceniage
(%) (%)
Significant amount of
indardual accounts receivable 1,119 9N
Other insignificant accounts recervable 116 9
Total 1.235 100

Note 1) The company regard account receivables above 30 m:iiion as account
recevable with single significant amount

2)  The encing balance of accounts recevable was increased by 43%, due
to increase of accountable receivable from credit sale and big customer
with the market effect
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unless otherwise indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(b)  Bad debt provision accrued ai the end of the year:
The management considered that significant accounts recewvable could be
recovered and the debtors is able to honor their commitment, so bad debt
provision rate is relatively low.
() The total amounts of accounts receivable due from shareholders with more

than 5% (including 5%) voting shares of the Group at the end of the year is
disclosed as follows:

Ending balance Beginning balance
Bad debt Bad debt
Debtor Balance  provision Balance provision
Angang holding 2 97
Total 2 97

(d) As at 31 Dec. 2009, the total amounts of accounts receivable due from the
Group's top five debtors is disclosed as follows:

Debtors Relationship Amounts  Duration Percentage

(%)

Angang Group International Trade Fellow subidiary 836  Within 51
Corporation {*Angang Trade*) 1 month

FAW Purchasing Center Thed party 474 Within 7
4 months

Chena petroleum chemical industey Co., LTD. Third party 128 Within 7
Supplies equipment department 1 month

ANSC-TKS Changchun Steel Logistics Jointly 98  Within 6
Co, Ltd {*TKAS-SSC?) controlied 1 month

enterprise

China Petroleum Matenals Corporatior: Third party 80  Within 4
2 months

Total 1676 95

(e) There was amount of 1,021 million at the ending balance due from cther
related parties, accounted for 58% of accounts receivable, the related parties
transactions disclosed in Note:9 (3)(g)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) For the year 2009

(Expressed m RME million
unless othervirse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(4) OTHER RECEIVABLES
(a)  Classified by account nature

Ending balance

Book balance Bad debt provision
Type Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
(%) (%)
Individual other receivables with
Significant amount
Other insignificant other receivables 19 100
Total . 19 100

Beginning balance

Book balance Bad debt provision
Type Amount  Percentage Amount  Percentage
(%} (%}

Individuat other recevables with

significant amount 60 77
Other insignificant other receivables 18 23
“otal 78 100
Note:
1) The company regard other 1ecevabies above 10 millions as other receivables

with s ngle significant amecunt

2) The ending balance. of other receivables was Cecreased by 76% comparing

with beginning balance The decrease was due to 60 million other recevable
due from Heilongpang Lengmay Mining Group Co ., Ltd (“Longmay Group™)
transferred 10 a long-term equity investment Fo- details see ihe related party
transaction disciosed in Note. (9)

(b)  Bad debt provision for othe- recevable at the erd of the year
“he management nas opinior that most of otner recewvables a: the era of the

year can be repaid and debtors have capabllity of repayment, so percentage
of provision is comparably low.
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(5) PREPAYMENTS

(@)  The aging analysis of prepayments

Ending balance
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e emion NOtES t0 the financial statements (continved)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Beginning balance

Aging Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
; (%) (%)
Within 1 year 5,241 85 1,579 58
1 to 2 years 521 8 1,152 4
: 2 to 3 years 450 7
| Total 6,212 100 2,731 100

Note: The prepayments aged more than one year were prepaid to Angang Trade for

importing equipment and spare parts

(b) At 31 Dec. 2009, top five debtors were as follows:

Reason for

Debtors Relationship Amounts  Aging unsettlement

Angang Trade Fellow subsidiary 4,551 Within undue
2 years

Tiangin Tiantie Metallurgy Trade Group Third party 298 Within undue
Co. ld 1 year

China First Heavy Machinery Group Group  Third party 2 Within undue
3 years

Tianjin Foreign Trade Group, Third party 190 Within undue
Nichelmport and Export Trading Group 1 year

Tianyin Metallurgical Rolling Iron and Thied party 112 Within undue
Steel Group Co., Ltd 1 year

Tetal 542

(¢} No amount due from shareholders with more than 5% (including 5%) of the
voting shares of the Group was included in the above balance of prepayments.
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(Expressad i RM8 milion
unless otherwse indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(6) INVENTORIES
(a)  An analysis of inventories by types

Ending balance

Provision for

diminution

of inventory Carrying
Items Book value value value
Raw materials 2,681 23 2,658
Work :n progress 2,671 10 2,661
Finished goods 1,580 9 1,571
Consumables 1.285 1,285
Spare parts 2,468 2,468
Materials in transit 4 4
Qutsourcing material 11 1
Total 10,700 42 10,658

Beginning balance

Provision for

diminution

of inventory Carrying
Items Book value value value
Raw materials 4,284 978 3,306
Work in progress 3,866 644 3,222
Finished goods 1,234 382 852
Consumables 1,084 1,084
Spare parts 1,906 1,906
Materals in transit 2 2
Outsourcing material
Total 12,376 2,004 10,372
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(6) INVENTORIES (continued)
{b) An analysis of provision for d'minution in value of inventories:

Decrease of the year

Provision
Begin'ng  withdrawn Written Written Ending
Items * balance for tne year back off balance
Raw materals 978 187 1142 23
Work 1n progress 644 361 995 10
Finished goods 382 129 502 9
Total 2,004 677 2,639 42

{c) Analysis of provisions for diminution in value of inventories

{i) The market price of steel products dropped this year which resulted
in the net realizable value of fimshed goods and the relevant raw
materials i1s lower than the cost, therefore, provision for diminution in
value of inventories 1s made at the end of the year

(i} The reason that Provision for diminution n value of .nventories
decreased was due to corresponding products had been soid, so the

relevant provision haa been transferred to cost of sale.

(7) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Ending Beginning
items balance balance
Available-for-sale equity instrument 161 45
Total 161 a5

Note: The Ending balance was decreased by 258% due to the Group subscribed 10 millicr
A shae common stock of Zhuzhou Smelter Group Lid through non public offering,
Market value of the stock was 45 million at the end of the last year (RMB 4.49 per
share). Market value of the stock was 161 million at the enc of the year (RMB 16 16
per share)
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(8) INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTERPRISES AND ASSOCIATES

0] Particulars of jointly controlled enterprises of the Group

The The
Legal proportion  proportion
Registation  repre- Hature of Registered  of share-  of voting.
Name of imvestes  Type Place sentative  business cagital  holding (%) rights (%)
ANSC-TRS Sino-Foregn Da'an leKy Sieel W 0 50
Gavaaung Co, Cooperaive processing edlion
Lid (CANSCTKS®) Veriue
ANSC-Dachuan Heawy  Limutad Labikty  Dshan Daqngln  Sieel M3 E S0
Ihdusines Dahan Grouy processing radion
Sieel 00" adsae
Processing ax
Dstnuton Group
unted ARG
Cach.zn")
Chargchn FAM Sino-foragn Changhun ~ Baoge U Steel M390 374 S0 9
el Xocess.ng Cooperatwe 100N relion
and Stion Venlue processing
Grovp Lmited and senvce
{*Cha~gehue
(L1
TRAS-SC Sino-Foreign Changchen Yanping Stael uspn2 S0 20
Cocperetve waig process g oo
Veniue ara sde
Total  Total net Total
Total assets  liabilities  assets at revenue  Net profit
attheend attheend the end of in the in the
Name of investee of the year of the year the year  thisyear  this year
ANSC-TKS 2.685 1,312 1373 2,033 146
ANSC-Dachuan 1.641 1,244 397 1,286 14 .
Changchun FAM 307 200 107 492 10 .
TKAS-$5C 414 N 73 438 7
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8)

(continued)

(in)

Particulars of associates of the Group

INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTERPRISES AND ASSOCIATES

The The
Legal proportion  proportion
Registration  repre- Nature of Registered  of share of voting-
Name of investee Type PMace sentative  business apital  holding (%) rights (%)
KAS Angirg vaed lad .y Sheryang Guange  Taikoee batks RvB42 3 X
Shenyang Steel Ciop o processing mikion
Prodxt Procesyng
axd Distabuton
Groud Linited
(*Argayg
Sneryarg*)
(Changehun) Tadored — Sino-forengn Changchen  Manfred  Steel Usbio 5 5
Branks Ud ((TKAS")  Jourt Vediure Nag DICRSSG mibion
3nd logei
1027 Angang Ltz aebiky  Anshen Suarge Packagirg MBI T b4l 30
iy group Giowp M steel be'i
packng packagg anc steel
beliCo nd piocessng
(“Eriy Pacng®)
Avgarg Frarce umed Lty Arsnar Wanpar. Cexsrt RMB1XY) 0 0
Corporztion Giocp Yo finange mi on
Tanpng Taate Bohar  Limated Laddly  Tain: Degi Jo Serace RM33 mibon k] bl
Metfugeal gty Group
Co.ud
(*Brha usiy’i
Total  Total net Total
Total assets  liabilities  assets at revenue  Net profit
attheend attheend the end of in the in the
Name of investee of the year of the year the year this year  this year
Angang Shenyang 153 103 50 520 2
TKAS 172 76 96 254 15
Entity Packing 34 7 27 S (5)
Angang Finance 19271 17,283 1,988 605 387
Binhai Industry - 30 23 7 39

e e
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Notes to the financial statements (ontinued) Fou ihe e 2009

{Exxessed in RMB mithon
unless otheswise indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(9) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT

(a)  An analysis of long-term equity investments by types

Beginning Increase of  Decrease of Ending
Type . balance the year the year balance
Investment in jointly controlled enterprises 864 n 2 934
Investment in associates 1,388 58 981 465
Other equity investments 10 220 230
Less' Provision for impa:ment of
long-term equity investment
Total e 0 %3 1629

(b)  Details for long-term equity investments

Initial
Accounting irvestment 8eginnirg  Variation of Ending

Name of investee method st balance the year balance
ANSC-TKS Equity method 533 587 65 652
ANSC-Dachuan Equity method 190 191 7 198
Changchun FAM Equity method 45 4 {1 53
TKAS-SSC £qurty method 43 2 " ]l
Angang Shenyang tquity method 14 17 {4) 13
TKAS Equity method 37 40 3 43
Entity Packing Equity method 1" 10 )] 9
Angang Ftnance Equity method 315 346 52 398
Binhai Indusiry Equity method 2 2 2
WHSDRI Engineering and

Research Incorporation

Limited("WISDRI*) Cost methed 10 e 10
Longmay Greup Cost method .20 220 20
Tianin Tiantie Cost method 975 975 (979)
Total 2,262 (633) 1,629
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For the year 2009

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(9) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

(b}  Details for long-term equity investments {continued)

Note for
difference
between
The  proportions Provision for
The  proportion  of voting- impairment
proportion of  of voting-  rights and  Provision for accrued Cash
Name Of investee $Shareholding rights shareholding  impairment this year dividends
(%) (%)
ANSC-TKS 0 20
ANSCDactuan 50 S0
Chingchua FAM S0 90 4
TRAS-SSC 3 %
Angang Sheryag 30 30
TKAS 45 &
tatdy Packing 30 30
ArgargFrance o r 3
Birhai lncusiny 30 30
WISORI 7 7 10
rorg Ry Croup 1 i
Teapn Tanie 50 kY
Totai 4
L D . 151
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Notes to the financial statements (ontinued) For the yoar 2005

(Expressed m RM8 million
unless otherwise indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(10) FIXED ASSETS

(3)  Analysis of fixed assets

Peginning  Increase of  Decrease of Ending

Items balance the year the year balance
Cost 60,490 17,065 198 71357
Of which. Buildings and Plants 16,685 4,736 18 21,403
Machireries and Equipments 40,820 11,652 129 52,343

Others 2,985 677 51 3611
Accumulated depreciation 11,082 6,483 141 2344
Of whick Buildings and Plants 3089 112 4 4,207
Machineries and Equipmenis 12,763 4928 90 17,601

Others 1,23 433 47 1616

Net book value 43,408 10,582 57 53,933
Of which.  Buildings and Plants 13,596 3614 14 17,196
Machineries and Euipments 28,057 6,724 39 34,742

Cthers 1,755 144 4 1,995

Provision for impairment 1% 6 34 128
Of which.  Bui'dings and Plants 3 3 10 16
Machineries and Equipments 121 3 il 109

Others 6 3 3

Book value 43,29 53,805
Of which. Buidings and Plants 13,573 17180
Mactineries and Equipments 21.93% 34,633

Others 1,749 1,992
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e o mion NOTES 10 the financial statements (continved)
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(10) FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a)  Analysis of fixed assets (continued)

Note:
1) The depreciation of this year was 6,262 million
2) During this year. the cost that the construction in progress transferred into fixed

assets was 14,692 million .

3) According to the expert opinion of the asset management departments,
provision for impairmen: 15 made for the fixed assets ,which could not bring
economic benefits to the enterprise, due to technological absolescence,
damage, or other reasons, and the provision amount to the difference between
the carrying amount and recoverable amount. The recoverable amount was
calculated based on estimated net cash flows ansing from the normat usage
during the estimated useful life and the asset disposal.

(b)  Temporarily idle fixed assets

Accumulated  Provision for

ftems Cost  depreciation  impairment Book value Notes
Buitdings and Plants 2 1 1 Rebuild
Machineries and

Equipments 83 a5 31 7 Renovation
Others 14 10 3 1 Renovation
Total 99 56 34 9

(<) The group had no financial leased fixed asset from others at 31 Dec.2009

(d)  Operating leased fixed asset 1o others

ftems Cost Notes
Buildings and Plants 38
Machineries and Equipments 6
Total 44
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

(a) Analysis of construction in progress

Ending balance Eeginnng balance
Provision for Piswgon for

items Book balance  impairment  Book value  Book balance  impaument Bock vahue
3apuquan proyect 3240 Ju0 8475 LXTE
Tite oroect 1875 1875
Fgh capatity co'd ralling

s"con steed podacton re 2988 2,988 1.267 1257
450 co'c rodrg

procrcucn Lne W22 122
Chemxa! plani reagvation 2 2 310 310
New £8.55 and 74 futnace 165 15 831 837
31 casung machine 187 187 i6 16
Seamless 177

s prpeline 200 200 2 0
Wue croducton ine renoval on 3% 326 S8 8
Oryger preducer 194 194 267 282
Cortra! powe: $:3501 30 301 142 142
- Coatawaus of.ag Ine ¢f

western dsinct H H H S
3rd furnace renovabion 143 143
Otters 1,108 1,105 290 290
izal 10588 10,568 12.5¢7 12547
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

(b)  Change in main project of construction in progress

Transferred
Beginning  Increase of  into fixed Other Ending
items Budget balance the year assets decrease balance
Bayugquan project 33,800 8475 6022 1.237 3,10
Tant2 projact 5975 1875 1875
+igh capabirty cold roliag sdon
stezl production line 3130 1,267 1,720 2988
1450 cold roling production ine 2900 12 n 195
Chemical plant reaovation 2589 10 194 502 H
Rew &', 5 and 7* furnace 1,415 837 56 1,08 165
3 casing machice 955 1€ m 187
Searrless 177 detroleun pioelire 817 20 180 200
W re OCLCi0n 'Ne “2rovation 7% 58 %8 326
Oryger produter €18 62 s 93 194
{eals powe: $alo1 I8 14 *30 301
Conuees wof rghine of
dstret n S S
3¢ fuinace rercvaton %5 143 ns 38
Others ‘890 LN 1159 1,108
Total 12,547 12,733 14,582 10,588

. 155




18

| . ARINUAL REPORT

Pz ke~ g, (g
Nruomiw b

Notes to the financial statements (continued) Forthe year 2009

(Expressed in RME million
uniess otherwise indica ted)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

(b)  Change in main project of construction in progress (continued)

Acaumulated
apitalized Of which:
borrowing  capitalized Capitaization  Expenditure Project Resource
ftems st this year nte of budget progress of capital
¥ %) %)
23730091 90 1,35¢ 347 ¥ 82 & H-ang,
Speqazl
rrowings,
T3 progct 4 5 568 H 3
viggh canat 2ty <od -oling n 13% £ 8
suacer seel prog o e
‘ 450 cld rl'ng € £ 00 Seftinanng,
91 Eorowmngs
< 3 m " 38 a 34 Setlmenarng
New 41, 9 6 2 58 §7 9 Seldrareng
P (aLrg NI % 3 3 34 L 0 Seli‘maeng
Seariess 177 peuoes~ dpelne € 7 48 8 & Sellfnavng
Wie zrod 197 1n¢ 202l on 14 1 £ & I i
Oryger- £ -aduer 3 r 34 81 87 Seidenarg
(eniia pawer i3t 15 ? 5% & 8 Seifeenarg
2.2 0l ire ‘1 15 o Setfrarang
o wesie™ esiact
3 fnxce enovaten ' 4 43 E 97 Sebifmaeng
300Mrgs
Ohes 120 u

Toul 2.5C €84

Note: The self-financing consisted of non-special borrowings and gains from
operating

() As at 31 Deg, 2009, no book value of construction in progress was higner
than its realizable value.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

(d) Project schedule of main construction in progress

Project
Items progress
(%)
Bayuquan project 82
Tiantie project 3
High capability cold rolling silicon steel production line 89
1459 cold rolling production line 100
Chemical piant renovation 94
New 4*, 5* and 7* furnace 94
3* casting machine 20
Seamless 177 peiroleum pipeline 88
Wire production line renovation a1
Oxygen producer 87
Central power station 82
Continuous rotling line of western district 77
3rd furnace renovation 97
(12) CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL
Begnning  Increaseof  Decrease of Ending
Items batance the year the year balance
Bayuquan project 4,998 3,794 6,600 2192
Tiantie project S5 18 17
High capabilty cold rolling silicon
steel production line 645 384 1,023 §
1450 cc¥d rolling production ne 96 24 120
Chemical plar: renovaiion 82 n 109 4
New 4°, 5 and 7* furnace : 24 48 7 2
3¢ casting machine 1 58 53 6
Seamless 177 petroleum pipeline 60 53 122 1
Wire production line renovation 172 m 1
Oxygen producer 143 2 145
Central power station 25 16 109 2
3rd furnace renovation 18 8 10 1%
Others 149 313 3215 47
Total 5,242 7,908 11,816 2,334

Note: The end:ng balance of constructicn materia! was decreased by 62% compaing with

the beginning balance due to the reduction of construction in progress
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)  epeses nsmerien

(Expressed in RMB8 miflion
unless otherwise indicated)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(13) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Beginring Inciease of  Decrease of Ending
Items balance the year the year balance
Total cost 122 458 1,680
Land use nghts 7,181 458 1,639
Software 9 9
Non-patented technology R k2]
Accumulative amoriization 461 158 619
Land use nights a4 151 593
Software S ? 7
Industrial technology 14 S 19
Total net book value 6,761 300 7.061
Land use rights . 6,739 307 1,046
Software 4 )] 2
Non-patented technology 18 (5} 13
Total piovis on for impairment
Land use rights
Software
Non-pateated tectadlogy
Total book value 6,761 7,061
Land use rights 6,739 1,046
Software 4 2
Non-patented techrology 18 13

Note: The amortization amount was 155 mithion this year
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7.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(14) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

(a)

(b}

Recognized deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

Ending Beginning

Items balance balance
Deferred income tax assets
Provision for diminution in value of

inventories 10 501
Provision for impairment against fixed

assets 32 39
Accumutated depreciation of fixed

asset S 5
Salaries payable 46 42
Termination benefits 25 36
Safety production expense 13 S
Employee training expenses 10 6
Adjustment for unrealized inter-Group

profit 28 12
Fair value variation on available-for-

sale financial asset 9
Government grant 28 9
Deductible losses 915 438
Total 1,112 1,102
Deferred income tax liabilities
fair value vaniation on avalable-for-

sale financial asset 20
Capitalized borrowing cost of general

purpose loan a1 a7
Total 61 a7

As at 31 Dec.2009, there was no temporary difference or deductible loss in

connection with which the deferred income tax assets was not recognized.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Fou e yeur 2009

{Expressed n RM8 million
unless otherwise indicatedj

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(14) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
(continued)

(c) Temporary differences

Amounts of
the temporary

Items differences
Provision for diminution in value of inventories 42
Provision for impairment against fixed assets 128
Accumulated depreciation of fixed asset 22
Salaries payable 182
Termination benefits 102
Safety production expense 50
Employee training expenses 39
Adjustment for unrealized Inter-Group profit 12
Farir value variation on available-foi-sale financial asset 81
Government grant 112
Deductible losses 3,659
Capitalized borrowing cost of general purpose loan 162
Total 4,691

(15) PROVISIONS FOR IMPAIRMENT

Beginning Provision Decrease Ending
Items balance for this year Written back  Wrilten off balance
Provision for diminution in
value of inventories 2,004 677 2,639 42
Provision for impairment
against fixed assets 156 6 34 128
Totat 2,160 683 2673 170
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o e i NOtES tO the financial statements (continved)
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7.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(16)

an

(18)

SHORT-TERM LOANS

(a)  Analysis of short-term loans

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Credit loan : 13,710 7.570
Total 13,710 7,570

Note: The ending balance was increased by 81% due to increase of operation capital
requirement

(b)  There was no over-due short-term loan at the end of this year.

BILLS PAYABLE

Ending Beginning
Classification of bills balance balance
Bank acceptance bills 3,509 4,585
Total 3,509 4,585

Note: The Smount that would be due within the next accounting year was 3,509
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

[€)] Accounts payable classified according to natures

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Accounts payable for purchasing 2,918 3,227
Construction cost 300 130
Operation expenses on supporting
production 49 - 7
Freight 28 33
Others 23 30
Total 3,318 3427
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(18) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

(b)

()

The total amounts of accounts payable due to shareholders with more than
5% (including 5%) of the voting shares of the Group and other related parties
at the end of the year were 84 million, the related party transaction disclosed
in Note 9 (6)

There was no significant accounts payable aged over 1 year at the end of the
year.

(19) ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

(a)

(b)

Advances from customers classified according to natures

Ending 8eginning
items balance balance
Sales of products 5,942 3,629
Total 5,942 3,629

Note: The ending balance of advances from customers was increased by 63%
comparing with the beginning balance was due to 1) The products sales
increased lead to advances from customers was increased 2) Tianjin Tiantie was
consolidated into the Group.

The total amounts of Advances from customers due from shareholders with
more than 5% (including 5%) of the voung shares of the Group and otner
related parties at the end of the year were 1,636 million, and the related
party transaction was disclosed in Note 9 (6).

There were no large-amount advances from customers aged over 1 year at the
end of the year
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For the year 2009

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(20) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

Accrued
Beginning  during this Paid during Ending
items balance year this year balance
Salaries, bonus and allowance 235 1,378 1,377 236
Staff welfare 131 131
Social insurance 462 462
Therein- Pension insurance 276 276
Medical insurance 137 137
Staft and worker” injury
insurance 21 21
Unemployment insurance 28 28
Housing fund 194 194
Labor union fee and staff training fee 50 49 46 53
Termination benefits 44 133 140 37
Others 110 110
Total 329 2,457 2.460 326

Note. Salaries, bonus, and allowance would be paid n January 2010 Termination benefits
and labor union fee and staff training fee would be paid in 2010

(21) TAX AND SURCHARGES PAYABLE

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
VAT (2,113) (1.836)
Enterprise income tax (203) . (985)
Individual income tax 9 9
City maintenance and construction tax 14 15
Property tax 7 9
Education surcharges 6 6
Local education surcharges 2 2
Stamp tax S 15
Lanc use tax 1
Taxes to be deducied (24) 6)
Total (2,296) (2.771)

163




164

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7.

NPy rrrea o

PULLISUILE

For the year 2009

(Expressed i RMB million

unless otherwise indited)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(22) OTHER PAYABLES

(a) Analysis of other payables

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Construction costs 1,61 1,686
freight charges 95 78
Withholding tax payable 17 44
Land use fee 92
Deposit for steel shelves 43 60
Performance guarantee 162 94
Guarantee -project/spare parts 1,055 1,359
The Energy-saving and Emission-reducing

funds transferred by Angang holding 193

Others 107 i10
Total 3,283 3,523

(b} The total amounts of other payables due to shareholders with more than 5%
(including 5%) of the voting shares of the Group and other related parties in
the end of the year were 970 mulion, the related party transaction disclosed

in Note:9 (6)

(c) The large-amount other payables aged over 1 year

Whether paid
after the
Ending balance sheet
Creditor balance Reason date
MCC Coking And Refractory
Engineering Consulting Co 113 Project quality margin No
Angang Constructior. Group 76 Project quality margin No
MCC Northeast Constryction
Co.ltd 75  Project quality margin No
Northeast Geotechnical
Investigation Co.,Ltd 38 Project quality margin No
Angang Automation Co 25 Earnest money No
Angang Heavy Machinary Quality margin for
Co.ltd 25 machinery purchasing No
V Quality margin for spare
Taiyaun Heavy Industry Co.,ltd 23 part purchasing No
Others 480
Total 855
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(23) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN 1 YEAR

(3) Long-term liability due within 1 year

Ending 8eginning
Items balance balance
Long-term loans due within 1 year 7,653 1,031
Total 7,653 1,031

Note: the reason of increase of long-term hability due within 1 year disclosed in note

7(25)

(b) The analysis of long-term loans due w'thin 1 year was as follows

0}

(i)

The analysis of long-term loans due within 1 year

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Guaranteed loans 315
Credit loans . 7.338 1,031
Total 7,653 1,031
Top five long-term loans due within 1 year
Commence Expiry  Interest  Ending Beginring
Loaner date date raie  balance  baance
(%)
Industrial and Commercial ~ Apr 20067 Apr 2310 591 300 300
Bank of Ch:na Anshan
Branch
Industrial and Commercial — Apr 2007 Apr 2010 591 300 300
Bank of China Anshan
Branch
Industnal and Commercial ~ May 2007  May2510 991 300 300
Bank of China Anshan
2ranch
Industrial and Commercial  May 2007 May2010 591 300 300
Bank of China Anshan
Branch
Industrial and Commercial ~ May 2007 May2010 591 300 300
Bank of China Anshar.
8ranch
Total 1,500 1,500

There were no overdue 'oans in long-term |oans due within 1 year

Ve v e
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Notes to the financial statements (continved)
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7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(24) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Ending Beginning
item Content balance balance
Deferred income Wind power generation project, etc. a2
Total 42

(25) LONG-TERM LOANS
(a)  Classification of Long-term Ioa.ns
Ending Beginning
tems balance balance
Credit loans 11,502 17,565
Total 11,502 17.565

Note: The ending balance of the long-term loans was decreased by 34% mainly due

to part of the long-term loans that would due within 1 year

(b)  Top five long-term loans

Commence Expity  Interest  Ending Beginaing
Loaner date date iate  balance  balance
(%}
China Construction Bank branch in  Aug 2006  Jan 2014 5.94 1120
Tianjin Nankar Park
Industrial and Commercial Bank of  Jul 2008 Dec 2011 6.97 700 700
China Anshan Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of  Jul 2008 Dec 2012 6.97 700 700
China Anshan 8ranch
industnial and Commercial Bank of ~ Jul 2008 Jul 2013 6.97 700 700
China Anshan Branch
Bank of China Anshan Branch Sep 2008 Sep 2011 6.56 700 700
Totat 3,920 2,800
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(26) OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

27)

Ending Beginning

Item Content balance balance
Termination Employee benefits payable aged over 65 102
benefits 1 year
Deferred income  Grants for Military project 32 36
Deferred income  Grants for Metallurgical research and 3 3
development
Deierred income Central power project of No.1 power 35
generation plant
Deferred income  Electros lag melt:ng project 4
Total 139 141

Note. Deferred income are government grants corresponding to asset the group received this

year

SHARE CAPITAL

Items

Vanation of the year

Shares

tramsferred

ksued from
Begin~ing e Bonus  accemulated Ending
balance sheres shares iund Others  Subtotal  balance

(1) Ordinary A shares with

restrictions on sale
State-owned shares 4341 434
{2} Shares with non-testriction
on sale
3 Ordinary A shares 1,608 1808
b, Foreign shares Isted
overseas ("H shares®) 1,086 1,086
Total 123 1235
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(28)

(29)

(30)

CAPITAL RESERVE

Beginning Increase of  Decease of Ending
Items balance the year the year balance
Share premium 31,439 31,439
Other capital reserve (16) 87 n
Toial 31,423 87 31,510

Note: Reduction of other capital reserve was due to fair value change on available-for-sale
financial assets disclosed in the Note. 7 (7).

SPECIAL RESERVE

Ending Beginning
Items balance balance
Safe production expenses S0 21
Total S0 21

Note: The increase of special reserve was safe production expenses accrued this year.

SURPLUS RESERVE

Beginning Increase of  Decease of Ending
items balance ihe year the year balance
Statutory surplus reserve 3,280 77 3,357
Total 3,280 7 3,357

e 1
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(31) UNDISTRIBUTED PROFIT

(a)

(b)

©)

Changes of undistributed profit

Appropriation
or distribution
items . Amounts proportion

Undistributed profit at the end of last

year before adjustment 11,144
Adjusiment for undistributed profit at

the beginning of year )
Undistnbuted profit at the end of last

year after adjustment 11,149

Add: Net profit attributable to
owners of parent company
during this year 727
Recovery of losses from surplus reserve
Other transferred-in
Less” Appropriation of statutory
surplus reserve 77 10%
Appropriation of discretionary
surplus reserve
Dividend to shareholder 1,519
Dividend of ordinary shares transferred
to share capital

Undistributed profit at the end of year 10,280

The undistributed profit adjustment at the beginning of year:

The undistributed profit was increased by 5 million due to the significant
changes of account policies disclosed in note 4(20)

The analysis of profit distribution.

) The Annual General- Meeting of shareholders of 2008 reviewed and
approved of the profit distribution plan for 2008 on 12 June 2009,
based on the total share capital 7,234,807,847 shares as at 31 Dec.
2008. The Company declared cash dividend of RMB 0.21 per share to
the ordinary shareholders, and distributed 1,291 million to ordinary A
shareholders and 228 million to H shareholders respectively.

{ii) The Board of Directors proposed on 14 April 2010 the distribution of
a cash dividend of RM8 0.06 per share to The Company's ordinary
shareholders, totaling RMB434 million. The proposal is subject to the
approval by the general meeting of shareholders. Such cash dividend
has not been recognized as a lability at the talance sheet date
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(32) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS

(a)

Operating income and operating costs

Items This year Last year
Operating income from

main operation 70,057 78,985

Other operating income 69 631

Total 70,126 79,616

Operating costs for main operation 63,635 65,939

Other operating costs 77 672

Total 63,712 66,611
Mair: operation classified according to industry

This year Last year

Operating Operating  Operating  Operating

income costs income costs

from main  for main  from main for main

Name of industry operation operation  overation  operation

ferrous metal smelting any

steel rolling process 70,057 63,635 78,985 65,939

Total 70,057 63,635 78,985 65,939
Mair operation classified accerding to products

This year Last year

Operating Operating  Operating  Operating

income costs income costs

from main  for main  from main for main

Name of products operation operation  operation  operation

Hot rolled preducts 25,316 23,326 25,022 21,316

Cold rolled products 24,159 21,306 29,695 24,439

Medium -thick plate 10,405 9,518 12,244 8,740

Others 10,177 9,485 12,024 11,444

Total 70,057 63,635 78,385 65,939
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(d)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(32) OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS (continued)

Main operation classified according to regions

-
Tl asouivg

Notes to the financial statements (continued

This year
Operating Operating  Operating  Operating
income costs costs

. from main  for main  from main for main
Regions operation operation  operaton  operation
China 66,617 60,560 56.375
Overseas 3,509 3,152 10,236
Totai 70,126 63,712 66,611

(e} Top five buyers
Proportion of
Operating total operating
Name of buyers income income
(%)
Angang Trade 5.694 8
China Shipbuilding Equipment &

Matenals Northeast Co 4,895 7
ANSC-TKS 1,726 3
China Railway Materials Shenyang

Group 1.541 2
China Rallway Material Group

Northeast Co.,Ltd. 998 1
Total 14,848 21

BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES
Taxation basis

Iitems This year Last year and rate
City maintenance and 10 357 7% of VAT and Business

construction 1ax tax payable
Education surcharge and local 63 204 3% and 1% of VAT and

educat on surcharge Business tax payable
Custom cuty 6 384 5%-10% oi FOB
Resources tex and

Business Tax 4 3
“otal 183 948

Note: Business tax and surcharges were decreased by 81% comparing with last year due to
decrease of VAT resulted to the reducticn of city maintenance and construct on tax and
education and local educatior surcharges. Decrease of custom duty resulted from the

reduction of export saies




